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government units and public employee retirement

systerns whose comprehensive annual financial
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standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Glenview

October 21, 2004

Honorable Presiderit and
Members of the Board of Trustees
Citizens of the Village of Glenview

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”)} of the Village of Glenview (the
“Village™) for the year ended December 31, 2003 is submitted herewith. This report represents a
comprehensive picture of the Village's financial activities during 2003 and the financial condition
of its various funds at December 31, 2003. The Village is required to issue anrmally a report of its
financial position and activity presented in conformance with generally-accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) and audited in accordance with generally-accepted auditing standards by and
independent firm of certified public accountants. Although formally addressed to the elected
officials and citizens of Glenview, this financial report has numerous other users. Foremost
among the other users are the bondholders of the Village, financial institutions, educational
institutions and other governmental entities.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data presented as well as the completeness and fairness
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Village. We believe the data, as
presented, is accurate in all material respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set
forth the financial position of the Village and the results of its operations as measured by the
financial activity of its various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain
the maximum understanding of the Village's financial affairs have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in three sections: introductory, financial
and statistical. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the Village's
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general
purpose financial statements, and the combining, individual fund and account group financial
statements and schedules, as well as the independent auditor's report on the financial statements
and schedules. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis, as well as all continuing disclosures required by
Securities Exchange Cammission Rule 15¢2-12.

1225 Waukegan Road 4 Glenview, Illino_is}%625 & (847)724-1700 ¢ (847)724-4232 TDD



The Reporting Entity and its Services

The Village of Glenview was incorporated in 1899 and operates under the council/manager form
of government. The legislative body consists of the Village President and Board of six Trustees,
all elected on an at-large basis to overlapping four-year terms. The Village Manager is responsible
for the day-to-day operation of the Village. The Village is a home rule municipality as defined by
the Illinois Constitution. Located approximately 20 miles north of the City of Chicago, in Cook
County, the Village occupies a land area of 13.27 square miles and has a certified 2000 Census of
41,847. Additional demographic information may be found in the statistical section of this report.

The Village provides a full range of general governmental services. Specifically, the Village
provides police and fire protection, health services, water and sewer utilities, street construction
and maintenance, code enforcemert, planning and zoning and general administrative services. In
addition to serving Village residents, the Fire Department also provides fire protection and
ambulance service to the Glenbrook Fire Protection District which is comprised of approximately
20,000 residents located in unincorporated Cook County and the Village of Golf. Both of these
entities have long term intergovernmental agreerents with the Village to pay for these services.
Likewise, the Village operates the North Maine utilities system which serves 5,100 customers also
primarily located in unincorporated Cook County.

The financial statements included in this report are distinctly different in form than those issued in
prior years. The statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement No. 34 (Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments) of the Governmental Accounting and Standards Board (“ GASB”). The GASB is an
organization that establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for state and local
governments in the United States. Statement No. 34 significantly changed the required format for
governmental statements in a number of ways. The most significant of these changes was to
require that governments prepare entity-wide financial statements in addition to the fund-based
financial statements governments have traditionally prepared. The entity-wide financial staterments
attempt to present a government’s financial position and results of operations in a manner similar
to business. More information about this “new financial reporting model” is provided in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A™). The MD&A is located in the financial
section of this report.

The financial reporting entity of the Village of Glenview is comprised of all funds of the primary
government (i.e., the Village of Glenview as legally defined) and its pension trust funds: the
Glenview Police Pension Fund and the Glenview Firefighters' Pension Fund. These funds were
determined to be pension trust funds due to their fiduciary and fiscal relationships with the Village
as their sole purpose is to provide retirement benefits to the Village's sworn police officers and
firefighters. The Glenview Public Library is included as a discrete presentation since a separately

elected board of trustees governs it. No other legally separate entity qualifies as a component unit
of the Village.



Accounting System and Budgetary Control

The accounts of the Village are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate and distinct accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures. Revenues are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the
purpose for which they are to be expended and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
The accounting records for general governmental operations are maintained on the modified accrual
basis, with revenues being recorded when available and measurable and expenditures being recorded
when materials or services are received and the liability incurred. Accounting records for the
Village's enterprise funds, internal service funds, agency funds, and pension trust funds are
maintained on the accrual basis of accounting.

Manageinent of the Village is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls. These controls are designed to assure that the assets of the Village are
safeguarded against any material loss, theft or misuse. These controls assure that the financial
statements are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal accounting
controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurances that control objectives will
be met. The concept of reasonable assurances recognizes that (1) the cost of control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits require estimates
and judgment by Management.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Village’ s financial planning and centrol. State
law requires that a municipality operating under the budget system adopt its annual budget prior to
the start of its fiscal year. Through the budget, spending authority is conveyed by expenditure
object. The legal level of budgetary control is the department level, or, where no departmental
segregation of a fund exists, the fund level.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

Economic Outlook. There are several measures of economic health for local governments.
Perhaps four of the more objective measures or indicators are local employment levels, retail sales
activity, family income levels and construction activity.

Employment levels in the Village have always surpassed that of Cook County and the State of
Illinois as a whole. As of December 31, 2003 the Village's unemployment rate was 4.6%,
compared to 7.3 % for Cook County, 6.7% for the State of lllinois and 6.0% for the United States.

Retail sales within the Village totaled $1.083 million for 2003. This represents an increase of
$206 million, or 23.6%, from 2002. Retail sales have increased by $430.7 million, or 66.0% since
2000. While the growth in retail sales has been significant, the Village is pleased to note that its
retail base has in fact become more diversified. The Village expects retails sales to remain strong
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as additional retail space, currently under construction, comes on line.

Median family income figures from the 2000 Census demonstrate that the average income of
Glenview residents far exceeds county and state averages. According to the Census Bureau,
Glenview's 2000 median family income was $96,552, compared to $53,784 for Coak County,
$55,545 for the State of Illinois and $50,046 for the United States. This ranked Glenview as the
fifth wealthiest community in the State of Illinois amongst comimunities with populations over
25,000. The Village also ranked fifth in terms of median household income.

New commercial and residential construction activity was significant in 2003 as there were 13 new
commercial developments constructed, with a total value of $20 million and 170 new residential
housing permits issued with a total value of $61 million.

Long-term financial planning. The Village utilizes a 5 year Capital Improvement Program
(“CIP") to address major capital and infrastructure improvements. For a project to be included in
the CIP, it must involve the creation or purchase if a tangible asset with an original cost of at least
$25,000 and a useful life of more than one year. Projects that are programmed for the first year of
the CIP (IE the upcoming budget year) are most closely scrutinized in the capital planning process
becauise associated funding must be provided in that budget. The Village has primarily followed a
“pay-as-you-go” funding strategy for maintenance and replacement of assets and has issued debt
for new projects.

Cash Management. The Village's policy regarding cash management is based upon the
realization that there is a time value to money. A high priority is placed on procedures to ensure
that monies due the Village are collected and deposited as promptly as possible. Disbursements
are closely controlled. Of equal importance is the emphasis on the management of the Village's
investment portfolio. All idle cash is invested in accordance with an established investment policy.
The investment policy establishes safety of principal as the foremost objective. The policy
provides for full collateralization of all deposits in excess of FDIC limits. The Village is not
permitted to leverage its portfolio or invest in risky derivatives.

Risk Management. The Village maintains a protected risk retention program for property,
casualty, and workers compensation claims. Health insurance for employees and retirees is
provided through a public entity risk pool, the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative.
Aggregate umbrella liability coverage is provided through the Village's membership in the High-
level Excess Liability Pool, another public entity risk pool.

Pensions and Other Post Employment Benefits. Sworn police and fire personnel receive
retirement and disability benefits from the Police Pension Fund and the Firefighters” Pension
Fund respectively. Both of these plans are defined benefit, single-employer plans administered by
local boards of trustees. The defined benefits and employer and employee contribution levels are
governed by State statutes. Police participants are required to contribute 9.91% of their base

salaries and fire participants are required to contribute 8.455% of their base salaries, The Village
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is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance each plan as determined by an
enrolled actuary. Municipalities have until the year 2033 to fully fund their police and firefighter
pension plans.

All other employees of the Village who work at least 1,000 hours per year are covered by the
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, (“IMRF”) a statewide pension plan. IMRF acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for local governments in Illinois. Benefit provisions and
funding requirements are established by State statute.

Employees participating in the IMRF are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual salary and
the Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the coverage of its
employees in the plan. The Village’s contribution rate for 2003 was 6.49% of employee salaries.

The notes to the financial statements and the required supplementary information provide more
information pertaining to employee pensions.

Independent Audit

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The accounting
firm of Sikich Gardner & Co, LLP performed the audit on the Village’s 2003 financial
staternents. The independent auditors® report is included in the financial section of this report. The
auditors have given this report an unqualified opinion, meaning that the financial statements fairly
present the Village's financial position at December 31, 2003, and the results of operations for the
year then ended,

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Village of Glenview for its
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to
program standards. The CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The Village of Glenview has
received a Certificate of Achievement for twenty-one consecutive years (fiscal years ended 1982-
2002). We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement
program requirements, and will be submitting it to GFOA.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Village President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Glenview

Glenview, Illinois

We have audited the basi¢ financial statements and the combining and individual fund financial

statements of the Village of Glenview, Tlhnois, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003,
as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Village of Glenview, Illinois’ management. Our responsibilify is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Village of Glenview, Illmois, as of December 31, 2003, and
the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of each of the individual
funds of the Village of Glenview, Illinois, as of December 31, 2003, and the results of operations
of such funds and the cash flows of individual proprietary funds for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Village has adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management s Discussion and Analysis - For State
and Local Governments, Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis - For State and Local Governments: Omnibus, Statement No. 38,
Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures and Interpretation No. 6, Recognirion and
Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial
Statements, as of January 1, 2003. This results in a change in the format and content of the basic
financial statements, combining and individual fund financial statements and notes to financial
statements.

-1-



Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole and on the combining and individual fund financial statements. The accompanying
schedules and the supplemental data listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements of the
Village of Glenview, Illinois. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic, combining and individual fund financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements and
each of the combining and individual fund financial statements taken as a whole.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the other required supplementary information
listed in the table of contents is net a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We

have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management

regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

The introductory and statistical information listed in the table of contents was not audited by us,
and accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon.

Aurora, [llimois
September 1, 2004



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

The Village of Glenview (the "Village") is implementing Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 34 fiscal year ending December 31, 2003. These new
accounting standards are designed to provide two perspectives of the Village’s financial
performance; a focus on the Village as a whole (government-wide) and a focus on the major
individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) provide a broader basis
upon which to compare and judge the Village’s financial accountability. This improved
accountability is in part achieved by consolidating financial transactions (eliminating activities
between certain funds and focusing on major funds), allocating specific revenues that finance
operations to those expenditures, and displaying information about long-term financial decisions
(Is debt used to finance operations? What financial investments are made in capital? What is
the impact of outstanding or newly issued debt?).

The Management Discussion and Analysis (“MD & A”) is designed to (1) assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the Village’s financial
activity, (3) identify Village’s financial position and ability to address future challenges, (4)
identify material deviations from budget, and (5) identify concerns specific to individual funds.

Since the MD&A is designed to focus on the current year's activities, resulting changes, and
currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Transmittal Letter (beginning on
page iv) and the Village's financial statements. This is the Village of Glenview's first MD&A.

Financial Highlights

¢« The Village’s net assets decreased by $49,798,927 or 24 % during the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2003. The governmental net assets decreased by $56,222,120 and the
business-type activities net assets increased by $6,423,193.

o The Village’s combined Governmental Funds ending fund balance decreased
$57,150,343 as of December 31, 2003.

» At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was
$17,873,812 or 54% of General Fund expenditures.

USING THE FINANCIAL SECTION OF THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL REPORT

In prior years, the primary focus of local government financial statements has been summarized
by fund type information on a current financial resource basis. This approach has been
modified, and for the first time the Village's Financial Statements present two kinds of
statements, each with a different snapshot of the Village's finances. The new Financial
Statements' focus is on both the Village as a whole (government-wide) and on the major
individual funds, Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address
relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or government to government),
and enhance the Village's accountability.

(See independent auditor's report)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide Financial Statements (see pages 17 - 19) are designed to emulate the
corporate sector in that all govermmental and business-type activities are consolidated into
columns that add to a total for the Primary Government. The focus of the Statement of Net
Assets (the "Unrestricted Net Assets") is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the
Village and its governmental and business-type activities. This statement, for the first time,
combines and consolidates governmental funds' current financial resources (short-term
spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations using the accrual basis of
accounting and economic resources measurement focus. Over time, increases or decreases in
net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether or not the financial position of the Village
is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities (see pages 18 - 19) presents information showing how the Village’s
net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year and is focused on both the gross and net
cost of various activities (including governmental and business-type), which are supported by the
Village's general taxes and other resources. This is intended to summarize and simplify the
user's analysis of the cost of various government services and/or subsidy to various business-
type activities.

The Governmental Activities reflect the Village's basic services, including police, fire, public
works, highways and streets, community development, and general administration. Property
taxes, shared State sales taxes, local utility taxes, and shared State income taxes finance the
majority of these activities. The Business-Type Activities reflect private sector-type operations
(Waterworks Fund, Sewerage Fund, Wholesale Water Fund, North Maine Water and Sewer
Fund, and the Commuter Parking Lot Fund), where the fee for service typically covers all or
most of the cost of operation, including depreciation.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Fund Financial Statement allows the
demonstration of sources and uses and/or budgeting compliance associated therewith.
Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements
presentation more familiar, The focus is now on major funds, rather than (the previous
model's) fund types. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

The Governmental Major Fund presentation (see pages 20 - 25) is presented on a sources and
uses of liquid resources basis. This is the manner in which the financial plan (the budget) is
typically developed. The flow and availability of liquid resources is a clear and appropriate
focus of any analysis of a government. The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that
of the Government-Wide Financial Statements. Both the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and
the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and

(See independent auditor's report)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continned)

governmental activities. The Governmental Major Funds Total column requires a reconciliation
because of the different measurement focus (current financial resources versus total economic
resources) which is reflected. The flow of current financial resources reflects bond proceeds
and interfund transfers as other financial sources as well as capital expenditures and bond
principal payments as expenditures. The reconciliation eliminates these transactions and
incorporates the capital assets and long-term obligation (bond and others) into the Governmental
Activities column (in the Government-Wide Statements).

The Village maintains twenty-six individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, Special Tax
Allocation Fund, Village Permanent Fund, Bond Series Fund of 1995, Glen Land Sales Fund
and the 2001 Project Fund, which are all considered to be major funds. Data from the other
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data
for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary Funds

The Village maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are used to
report the same functions presented in Business-Type Activities in the Government-Wide
Financial Statements. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the Village’s various functions. The Village uses internal
service funds to account for the vehicle repair and maintenance program, the vehicle and
equipment replacement program, and to account for the cost of property and casualty, health and
workers compensation insurance. As Internal Service Funds serve governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included with Governmental Activities in the
Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements provide the same type of information as the Government-
Wide Financial Statements, only in more detail. The Waterworks and North Maine Water and
Sewer Funds are considered to be major funds of the Village and are presented in separate
columns in the Fond Financial Statements. The Wholesale Water, Sewerage, and Commuter
Parking Lot Fund comprise the Village’s nonmajor enterprise funds. The Internal Service
Funds are combined in a single, aggregate presentation in the Proprietary Fund Financial
Statements. Individual fund data for the nonmajor enterprise and internal service funds are
presented elsewhere in the report.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the
government, (Police Pension Fund and Firefighters Pension Fund, see pages 30 - 31). Fiduciary
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because these assets are
restricted i purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the government. The Village
maintains two types of fiduciary funds: pension trust funds and agency funds.

{See independent auditor's report)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements. The Notes to the Financial
Statements can be found on pages 32 - 68 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information including the major governmental fund budgetary
schedules and data concerning the Village’s progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found on pages
69 - 78 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental,
enterprise, and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information on pensions. Combining and individual fund statements and
schedules can be found on pages 83 through 164 of this report.

Infrastrocture Assets

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure - roads, bridges, storm
sewers, etc.) have neither been reported nor depreciated in governmental financial statements.
This new statement requires that these assets be valued and reported within the Governmental
column of the Government-Wide Statements. Additionally, the government must elect to either
(1) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful life or (2) develop a system of assets
management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. If the
government develops the asset management system (the modified approach) which periodically
(at least every third year), by category, measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally-
established levels of service standards, the government may record its cost of maintenance in
lieu of depreciation. The Village has chosen to depreciate assets over their useful life. If a road
project is considered a recurring cost that does not extend the road's original useful life or
expand its capacity, the cost of the project will be expensed. An "overlay" of a road will be
considered maintenance ‘whereas a "rebuild” of a road will be capitalized.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the Village is not required to restate prior periods
for the purpose of providing comparative information. However, in future years, when prior
year information is available, a comparative analysis of Government-Wide information will be
presented.

(See independent auditor's report)




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Statement of Net Assets

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a2 government's financial position. In the
case of the Village of Glenview, assets exceeded liabilities by $169,680,462 as of December 31,
2003.

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets:

Table 1: Statement of Net Assets As of December 31, 2003

Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2003 2003 2003

Assets

Current Assets $107,348,523 $ 16,918,098 $124,266,621

Noncurrent Assets 134,631,206 34,679,482 169,310,688

Total Assets $241,979,729 $ 51,597,580 $293,577.309

Liabilities

Current Liabilities $ 30,462,867 $ 1,670,248 $ 32,133,115

Long-Term Liabilities 83.264.449 8,499,283 91,763,732

Total Liabilities $113.727.316 $ 10,169,531 $ 123,896,847

Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Debt $ 47,651,206 $ 25,625,660 $ 73,276,866
Restricted 57,086,081 - 57,086,081
Unrestricted 23,515,126 15,802,389 39,317,515

Total Net Assets $128,252 413 $41,428,049 $169,680,462

For more detailed information see the Statement of Net Assets (page 17).

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
Village's assets exceeded liabilities by $169,680,462 as of December 31, 2003. The largest
portion of the Village’s net assets is its investment in capital assets (eg. land, infrastructure,
buildings, machinery and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The second component of the
Village’s net assets are the resiricted assets which represent resources held for specific
purposes. Of the Village’s $57,086,081 of restricted assets, $54,591,008 are restricted for
capital development. The final component of the Village's net assets are the unrestricted assets
in the amount of $39,317,515, which can te used to finance day-to-day operations.

{See independent auditor's report)



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Normal Impacts

There are six basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of
Net Assets summary presentation.

Net Results of Activities - which will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted
net assets.

Borrowing for Capital - which will increase current assets and long-term debt.

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital - which will reduce current assets and increase
capital assets. There is a second impact, an increase in invested capital assets and an increase in
related net debt, which will not change the invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Spending of Nonborrowed Current Assets on New Capital - which will (a) reduce current
assets arnd increase capital assets and (b) will reduce unrestricted net assets and increase invested
in capital assets, net of debt.

Principal Pavment on Debt - which will {a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt
and (b) reduce unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation - which will reduce capital assets and
invested in capital assets, net of debt.

{See independent auditor's report)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Changes in Net Assets

The following chart shows the revenue and expenses of the Village's activities:

Table 2: Changes in Net Assets for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants
Capital Grants

General Revenues
Property Taxes
Other Taxes

Other Revenue and Transfers

Total Revenues

Expenses
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Streets
Economic Development
Interest
Waterworks
North Maine Water & Sewer
Nonmajor enterprise

Total Expenses
Changes in Net Assets
Net Assets January 1

Net Assets December 31

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
2003 2003
$ 2,009,446 $ 18,808,357
2,628,122 -

14,983,339 -
6,354,530 -

36,194,713 687,853

$62,170,150 $ 19,496,210
$ 16,249,578 $ -
19,048,844 -
79,331,667 -
37,308 -
3,724,873 -

- 6,160,140

- 5,042,768

- 1,870,109

118,392,270 $ 13,073,017

($56.222.120) $ 6,423,193

$184.474,533 $35.004.856

$128.252.413 $41.428,049

(See independent auditor's report)

Total
Primary
Government
2003

$20,817,803

2,628,122

14,983,339
6,354,530
36,882,566

81,666,36

$ 16,249,578
19,048,844
79,331,667

37,308
3,724,873
6,160,140
5,042,768
1,870.109

$ 131,465,287

($ 49,798,927)

$ 219,479,389
$ 169,680,462



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Normal Impacts
There are eight basic impacts on revenues and expenses as reflected below.
Revenues:

Economic Condition - which can reflect a declining, stable, or growing economic
environment and has a substantial impact on state income, sales, and utility tax revenue as
well as public spending habits for building permits, elective user fees, and levels of
consumption.

Increase/Decrease in Village-Approved Rates - while certain tax rates are set by statute,
the Village Board has significant authority to impose and periodically increase/decrease
rates (property taxes, water, sewer, impact fees, building fees, home rule sales tax, etc.)

Changing Patterns in Intergovernmental and Grant Revenue (both recurring and
nonrecurring) - certain recurring revenues (State-shared revenues, etc.) may experience
significant changes periodically while nonrecurring (or one-time) grants are less predictable
and often distorting in their impact on year-to-year comparisons.

Market Impacts on Investment Income - the Village's investment portfolio is managed
using a similar average maturity to most governments. Market conditions may cause
investment income to fluctuate.

Expenses:

Introduction of New Programs - within the functional expense categories (General
Government, Public Safety, and Streets and Highways, etc.), individual programs may be
added or deleted to meet changing community needs.

Change in Authorized Personnel - changes m service demand may cause the Village
Board to increase/decrease authorized staffing. Staffing costs (salary and related benefits)
represent 58 % of the Village's General Fund and 20% enterprise fund operating costs.

Salary Increases (annual adjustments and merit) - the ability to attract and retain human
and intellectual resources requires the Village to strive to approach a competitive salary
range position in the marketplace.

Inflation - while overall inflation appears to be reasonably modest, the Village is a major
consumer of certain commodities such as supplies, fuels, and parts. Some functions may
experience unusual commodity-specific increases.

(See independent auditor’s report)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Current Year Impacts
Governmental Activities

Revenues:

2003 Governmental Fund Activities
Revenue by Source

Charges for Property

Services -
250, \ Taxes
’ . 18%

Operating

Other Revenue perait
and Transfers i.n
46% 0%
QOther Taxes Capital Grants
8% 3%

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, revenues from Governmental Activities totaled
$62,170,150. The Village benefits from a highly diversified revenue base. During the fiscal
year Other Revenues and Transfers (which include State sales and income tax distributions
and the Glenbrook Fire Protection District payment to the Village) continued to be the
Village's largest revenue source at $36,882,565, or 46% of total Governmental Activity
revenue. Within this category, state-shared sales tax, which reflects economic activity within
the Village, increased from $8.8 million in 2002 to $10.8 million in 2003 while state-shared
revenues such as income tax and use tax, which are distributed on a per-capita basis and
reflect the Illinois economy, declined from $3.2 million $2.9 million. Property Taxes totaled
$14,983,339 representing 18% of the total Governmental Activity revenue. The Village
maintained its property tax levy at $8,230,905 for 2003, the same amount levied since 2000.
The balance of property tax revenue, or $6,752,434, is attributable to the property tax
increment earned in the Village’s redevelopment district. Other Taxes, at $6,354,530, is
primarily attributable to the Village’s utility and telecommunications taxes.

{See independent auditor's report)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Expenses:

2003 Governmental Fund Activities
Expenses by Source

Nortl.lllt«iaine Nonmajor General
utlies | enterprise, GOVEITENL L Saby

4%

1% 12% _
Interest \ 1 ’ / / 14%

Waterworks 3%
5%

Econonic

Highways and
Streets Development
61% 0%

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, expenses from Governmental Activities totaled
$118,392,270 with Highways and Streets, at 61%, accounting for the largest share of the total
followed by Public Safety and General Government. Of the $79.3 million associated with
Highway and Streets, $62.0 million is associated with infrastructure improvements within the
Village’s redevelopment district.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, the Governmental Funds reflect combined net
assets. of $128,252,413,

Business-Type Activities
Revenues:

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, revenues from Business-Type Activities totaled
$19,496,209. The Village’s various water and sewer utilities generated $15.5 million in Charges
for Services. During 2003 the Village negotiated an amendment to a long standing contract with a
private sector utility company to provide water for an area served by the company. As a result of
the amendment, the Village received $1.166 million for improvements to it system and the Village
anticipates the consumption in the area serviced by the company will increase modestly over time.

Expenses:

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, expenses from Business-Type Activities totaled
$13,073,017.

(See independent auditor's report)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE’S FUNDS
Governmental Funds

At December 31, 2003 the Governmental Funds (as presented on page 21) reported a combined
fund balance of $69,811,258 which is a 45.01% increase from the beginning of the year of
$126,961,601. Of the total fund balance, $12,538,397 is unreserved indicating availability for
continuing Village services. Reserved fund balance of $57,272,861 includes $54,591,008 for
capital development and $1,067,757 for debt service.

The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day
service delivery. The total fund balance of the General Fund increased by $198,602, or 1.2%,
from Fiscal Year 2002. The net change in fund balance for Fiscal Year 2002 was an increase of
$1,960,125. The net change in fund balance for Fiscal Year 2003 was an increase of $198,602
which was a $1,761,527 decrease in operations. Revenues increased by $2,913,693 or 9.6%,
and net financing uses decreased by $40,580 or 3.1% from the prior year which had a positive
effect on the change in fund balance. Expenditures increased by $2,953,965 or 9.8% from the
prior year.

Proprietary Funds
At December 31, 2003 the Proprietary Funds (as presented on pages 26 - 29) total net assets
increased by $6,423,193 or 18.3%. This increase is primarily due to the increase of operating
revenues of $2,940,829, compared to an increase in operating expenses of $745,681, and
contributions of $2,137,129.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Table 3: General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
Revenues $30,256,920 $30,256,920 $33,342,411
Expenditures 33,167,459 33,167,459 33,161,319
Excess of Revenues
over Expenditures ($2,910,539) (% 2,910,539) $ 181,092
Other Financing Sources
(Uses) $  888.247 $ 888,247 $ 17,510
Net Changes in Fund Balance ($ 2,022.292) ($ 2,022,292) § 198.602

{See independent auditor's report)
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YILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Many local revenues performed well in the fiscal year and include;

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Revenue

2002 2003 Increase
Municipal Sales Tax $8,765,038 $10,830,776 $ 2,065,738
Telecommunications Tax $1,869,589 $ 2,910,237 $ 1,040,648

The General Fund budget was not amended during the fiscal year.

General Fund actual revenues were $3,085,491 greater than the original and final budget
amount. The most significant causes of this were the strength in sale tax revenues and the
telecommunication tax.

The Special Tax Allocation Fund, also a major governmental fund, received $6,572,481 in
property tax increment as developed parcels are added to the tax roles. It is expected that the
incremental revenue will increase to $20 to $ 25 million over the next 3 to 5 years. These

revenues are used 1o pay the development costs associated with the Village’s Redevelopment
District.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Village’s investment in capital assets for its Governmental and Business-Type Activities as
of December 31, 2003, amounts to $169,310,688. The investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, equipment, improvements other than buildings, underground systems,
infrastructure, and construction in progress. This amount represents a net decrease (including
additions, deductions, and depreciation) of $2,603,801. Detailed information regarding the
change in capital assets for Governmental and Business-Type Activities is included in the Notes
to the Financial Statements on pages 44 and 45.

The Governmental Activities net capital assets decreased from last year by $2,525,497. This is
attributable to the fact that the amount of additions was less than the amount of depreciation
expensed this year. The Business-Type Activities net capital assets increased by $3,293.

DEBT OUTSTANDING

In Fiscal Year 2003, the Village issued $9,990,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2003A. The proceeds were used to advance refund $4,735,000 of the Village’s General
Obligation Bonds, Series 1996, by funding an escrow to call and redeem those bonds on
December 1, 2003 at a price of par plus accrued interest; $3,520,000 of the Village’s General
Obligation Bonds, Series 1997 and by funding an escrow to call and redeem those bonds on
December 1, 2004 at a price of par plus accrued interest; and to provide cash for system
improvements to the North Maine utility system.

{See independent auditor's report)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The Village also issued $1,955,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B. The
proceeds were used to call on April 4, 2003 the Village’s outstanding $1,920,000 General
Obligation Bonds, Series 1992 (Alternative Minimum Tax).

The Village currently has ten general obligation bond series and one note series which were used
to acquire the North Maine utility system outstanding. Total general obligation debt is
$94,010,000 of which $86,980,000 is supported by a tax levy with the balance abated from
water system revenues and property tax increment generated in the TIF Redevelopment District.
The tax mcrement financing bonds were issued for infrastructure improvements in the TIF
Redevelopment District located at The Glen. The issuance of these bonds did not produce a
fixed asset for the Village; therefore, the unrestricted net assets for Governmental Activities
have been reduced by the amount of these bonds.

The Village, under its home rule authority, does not have a legal debt limit. During Fiscal Year
2003, the Village's Aaa bond rating was reaffirmed by Moody's Investors Service citing the
Village's well-managed financial operations, moderate direct debt burden, and aggressive
retirement of its general obligation bonds. The Village will be issuing debt in 2004 to fund the
construction of a new Police Station Headquarters, estimated to cost approximately $20 million.

Additional information of the Village’s long-term debt can be found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements on pages 49 - 53.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUD GET

The Village's composition is primarily residential but with a significant commercial component.
The property tax revenue derived from the residential, commercial, and industrial properties is
stable. State shared revenues which are distributed on a per capita basis, including income and
use taxes, and the elimination of the photoprocessing tax, were negatively affected by the
general downturn in the State’s general economy. Investment income was negatively impacted
by the decline in interest rates. Sales tax revenues, however, increased during the year due to
comrmercial development throughout the Village. The commercial component includes soft
goods, restanrants, and other food and retzil businesses.

The Fiscal Year 2004 budget maintains the Village’s property tax levy constant at $8.2 million.
Building permit revenues and planning and inspections fees are expected to remain strong as
development of the The Glen, and redevelopment throughout the Village, continues. Sales tax
revenue is expected to remain strong as additional retailers come on line. In addition, the
Village approved a one-half of one percent Home Rule Sales Tax (“HRST”). The HRST will
not take effect until July 2004 and collections will not be received until October 2004. It is
anticipated that the HRST will generate $1 million in its first year with $850,000 designated for
capital investment.

(See independent auditor's report)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Budgeted expenditures include increases due to salary adjustments and health and liability
insurance costs and the hiring of three firefighters, two police officers and a maintenance
equipment operator in Public Works. Pension costs are expected to increase due to the general
declipe investment climate and increases in benefits approved by the State of Illinois.

CONTACTING THE VILLAGE'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors, and creditors with
a general overview of the Village's finances and to demonstrate the Village's accountability for
the money it receives. Questions concerning this report or requests for additional financial
information should be directed to Daniel P. Wiersma, Director of Finance, Village of
Glenview, 1225 Waukegan Road, Glenview, Illinois 60025.

(See independent auditor's report)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINDIS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2003

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowance
where applicable
Froperty taxes
Other taxes
Utlity customers
Miscellaneous
Deposits
Inventories
Due from other governments
Due from/to) other funds
Dwe from component unit
Advance (10)/from other funds
Deferred bond issuance costs
Other assets
Net pension asset
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, (net pf
accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences payable
Claims payable
Other payables
Deferred property taxes
Other deferred revenue
Due to fiduciary funds
Due to primary government
Refundable deposits
Noncurrent ligbilities

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Totdl iiabilities

NET ASSETS
[nvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Resuricted for
Street improvements
Debt service
Employee benefits
Public safety
Capital developmenl
Culture and recreation
Unrestricled

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business-Type Glenview

Activities Activities

Total Public Library

$ 95083381 § 8,563,935 $103,647,316 $ 1,582,815
7,989,318 - 7,989,318 4,630,790
4,153,610 - 4153510 .

. 5,020,873 5,020,873 -
713,820 30,282 744,102 .
1,280,975 . 1,280,975 -

. 65,602 65,602
332,895 467,931 800,826

16,996 (16,996) . .
56,247 - 56,247 -
(2,659290) 2,659,290 - -

- 125,281 125,281 -

- 1,900 1,900 -
380,571 - 380,571 -
54,479,175 302,851 54,782,026 500,000
80,152,031 34376631 114,528 662 2.337,271

241,979,729 51,597,580  293,577.309 9,050,876
11,430,137 898,401 12,328,538 84,484

73,841 19,991 93,832 18,622
303,360 65,311 368,671 -

. 108,552 108,552
365,064 - 365,064
1,067,369 664 1,068,033 -
7,957,298 - 7,957,298 4,630,790
155,492 18,299 173,791 -

358 - 158 -

- - - 96,247
4,099,596 4,491 4,104,087 .
5,010,352 554,539 5,564,891 -
83,264,449 8499283 91,763,732 81,547

113,727,316 10,169,531 123 896,847 4,891,690
47651206 25625660 73,276,866 2,755,724
305,514 305,514 -
1,067,757 . 1,067,757 -
460,141 460,141 -
661,661 661,661 .
54,591,008 . 54,591,008 -

- - . 1,403,462

23,515,026 15802389 39317515 -

$128.252413 § 41,428,049

$169,680,462 $ 4,159,186

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, [LLINOIS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Program Revenues
Charges QOperating Capital
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses for Services Grants Grants
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental activities
General government $ 16,249578 § 1,825,112 § - 3 -
Public safety 19,048,844 184,334 - -
Highways and streets 79,331,667 - - 2,628,122
Economic development 37,308 - - -
Interest 3,724,873 - - -
Total governmental activities 118,392,270 2,009,446 - 2,628,122
Business-type activities
Waterworks 6,160,140 8,739,735 - -
North Maine Water and Sewer 5,042,768 6,506,352 - -
Nonmajor enterprise 1,870,109 13,262,270 - -
Total business-type activities 13,073,017 18,808,357 - -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $131,465,287 § 20,817,803 % - 5 2,628,122
COMPONENT UNIT
Gleview Public Library $ 4379412 § 151,635 §

L}
L2
L
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Assets
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit

$ (14,424,466) 5
(18,864,510)
(76,703,545)

(37,308) - (37,308) .
(3,724,873) - (3,724,873) -

S (14,424,466) § -
(18,864,510) -
(76,703,545) -

3

(113,754,702) {113,754,702) -

- 2,579,595 2,579,593 -
- 1,763,584 1,763,584 -
- 1,392,161 1,392,161 -

- 5,735,340 5,735,340 -

(113,754,702) 5,735,340 (108,019,362) -

General revenues
Taxes
Property 14,983,339 - 14,983,339 4,328,029
Other 6,354,530 - 6,354,530 29,000
Sales tax 10,830,776 - 10,830,776 -
Income tax 2,593,235 - 2,593,235 -
Intergovernmental 7,154,252 1,165,984 8,320,236 135,021
Investment income 2,941,206 93,243 3,034,449 15,348
Miscellaneous 1,012,998 - 1,012,998 84,788
Gaim on szle of capital assets B,844,386 - 8,844,386 -
Transfers 2,708,503 (2,708,503) - -
Transfers to component unit (123,540) - (123,540) -
Transfers from component unit 232,897 - 232,897 -
Transfers to primary government - - - (232,897)
Transfers from primary government - - - 123,540
Contributions - 2,137,129 2,137,129 -

Totat 57,532,582 687,853 58,220,435 4,482,829

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS {56.222,120) 6,423,193 (49,798.927) 255,052
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 184,369,988 22,869,780 207,239,768 3,904,134

Prior period adjustment 104,545 12,135,076 12,239.62] -

NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1, RESTATED 184,474,533 35,004,856 219,479,389 3,904,134

NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 $128252413 § 41,428,049 $169,680462 % 4,159,136

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2003

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS § 69,811,258

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are
not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds 134,595,233

The net pension asset is not a current financial resource
and is therefore not reported in the governmental funds 380,571

The unamortized bond discount and unamortized bond
issuance cost is not 4 current financial resource and
is therefore not reported in the governmental funds 74,211

Interest payable is not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, not reported in the governmental funds (303,360)

Long-term lLabilities, including bonds payable, are
not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds (88,349,012)

The unrestricted net assets of the internal service funds are
included in the governmental activities in the
statement of net assets 12,043,512

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 128,252,413

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
-2
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

NETCHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures, however, they are
capitalized and depreciated in the statement of activities

The change in net pension asset is not a current financial resource and
therefore is not reported in the governmental funds

The issuance of long-term debt is reported as an other financing source in
governmental funds but as an increase of principal outstanding in the
statement of activities

The repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure when due
in governmental funds but as a reduction of principal outstanding in the
statement of assets

The payment of bond proceeds to escrow is reported as an expenditure
when due in governmental funds but as a reduction of principal
outstanding in the statement of net assets

Depreciation in the statement of activities does not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
Governmental funds
Internal service fund depreciation addback

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds

The net revenue (loss) of certain activities of internal service funds
is reported with governmental activities

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
25~

$ (57,150,343)

1,179,192

(4,596)

(6,150,000)

4,700,000

4,767,130

(3,704,689)
7,994

375,257

(242,065)

$ (56,222,120)




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2003
Businass-Type Activities Governmental
North Maine Activities
Water and ‘Nonmajor Tntemal
Waicrworks Sewer Enierprise Total Service
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash b 601,694 § 370,612 § 804,422 1,866,728 1,001,176
[nvestments 4,379,920 850,000 1,467,287 6,697,207 11,723,564
Receivables
Accounts 2,983,180 1,476,772 560,921 5,020,873 7,642
Other 29,823 - 458 30,282 -
Due from other governments - - 467,631 467,931 -
Advance to other funds 2,433,223 109,095 116,972 2,659,290 -
Due from cther funds 133,217 : - 8,276 141,593 727
Inventories 65,602 - - 65,602 -
Deferred bond issuance cosis - 78,390 46,861 125,281 -
Other assets - 1,900 - 1,900 1,086,692
Total current assets 10,626,759 2,886,769 3,563,159 17,076,687 13,819,801
CAPITAL ASSETS
Capilal assets not being depreciated 67,851 235,000 - 302,851 -
Capital assets being depreciated 31,091,318 7,170,401 11,290,435 49,552,154 55,958
Accumulated deprectation (10,502,653) (1470,087) (3,202,783) (15,175,523} (19,985)
Net capital assets 20,588,665 5,700,314 8,087,652 34,376,631 35,973
Total assets 31,215,424 8,587,083 11,650,811 51,453,318 13,855,774
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 366,255 437,150 94,096 898,401 115,592
Accrued payroll 12,214 875 6,902 19,991 125
[nterest payable - 52,708 12,603 65,311 -
Compensated absences peyable 102,140 6,412 - 108,552 -
Other payables - 664 - 664 81,448
Claims payable - - - - 365,004
Advance to other funds - - - - 1,045,180
Due to other funds 17,192 8,092 133,305 158,589 199,700
Refundable deposits 4,491 - - 4,491 -
Deferred revenue - - 18,299 18,2599 5,153
Current portion of notes payable - 99,539 - 99,539 -
Current portion of general obligation bonds payzable - 275,000 180.000 455,000 -
Total current liabilities 502,292 880,440 446,105 1,828,837 1,812,262
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Noies payable - 2,244,283 - 2,244,283 -
Unamortized foss on refunding - (320,000) - (320,000) -
General obligation bonds payeblc - 4,960,000 1,615,000 6,575,000 -
Total long-term liabilities - 6,884,283 1,615,000 £,499.283 -
Total liabilities 502,292 7,764,723 2,061,105 10,328,120 1,812,262
NET ASSETS
[nvested in capital assets, net of related debt. 20,588,665 1,503,969 6,292,652 25,377,348 35,973
Unrestricted 10,192,318 2,561,329 3,207,054 16,050,701 12,007,539
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 30,730,983 3§ 1,057,360 5 9580706 § 41.428504% $ 12043512

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FPROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Business-Type Activities Governmental
North Maine Activities
Water and Nommnajor Internal
Waterworks Sewer Enterprise Total Service
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Water and sewer charges § 8244809 % 6715448 § 2947800 § 17.908,057 % -
Water and sewer connection charges 121,597 - 9,020 130,617 -
Parking decals and meter fees 78,157 9,630 294,965 382,752 -
Late payment fees 82,313 79,349 4,733 166,395 -
Internal services - - - - 7,120,178
Miscellaneous 212,859 1,925 5,752 220,536 84,924
Total dperating revenues §,739.735 6,806,352 3,262,270 18,808,357 7,205,102
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 624,164 436,062 207,125 1,267,351 -
Operations 4,787,443 4,016,016 1,375,621 10,179,080 7,918,082
Depreciation and amortization 748,533 201.307 226,830 1,176,670 7,994
Total operating expenses 6,160,140 4,653,385 1,809,576 12,623,101 7,926,076
OFERATING INCOME (LOSS) 2,579,595 2,152.967 1,452,694 6,185256 {720,974)
NONQPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intetgovernmental 1,165,984 - - 1,165,984 -
Investment income 55,241 16,021 21,981 93,243 337,539
Gain on sale of capita] assets - - - - 163,620
Tnterest and fiscal charges - (389.383) (60,533) (449.916) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,221,225 (373,362) (38,552) 809,311 501,159
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
AND CONTRIBUTIONS 3,800,820 1,779,605 1,414,142 5,994,567 {219.815)
TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
Transfers in - 87,231 50,980 138,211 -
Transfers (out) {1.494,432) (573.500) (778,782) {2,846,714) {22,250)
Total ransfers in (out) (1,494.432) (486.269) {727,802) (2,708,503) (22,250)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 2,306,388 1,293,336 636,340 4,286,064 (242,065)
Contributions 393,581 - 1,743,548 2,137,129 -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,699,959 1,293,336 2,429,888 6,423,193 (242,065}
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1 18,439,075 (235,976) 4,666,681 22,869,780 12,285,577
Prior period adjustment 9,641,939 - 2,493,137 12,135,076 -
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1, RESTATED 28,081,014 (235.970) 7,159,818 35,004,856 12,285,577
NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 § 30,780,983 % 1.057360 3 9589.706 3§ 41428049 § 12043512

See accompanymg notes 1o [inancial statements,
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, TLLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS l
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 l
Business-Type Activities Governmental .
North Maine Activities
Water and Nonmajor Internal
Waterworks Sewer Enterprise Total Service I
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from custorners and users § 6991898 § 5,879472 § 3,178,167 § 16,049,537 § 440,056
Receipts from interfund services - - - - 6,591,210
Receipts from miscellaneous revenues 9,565 175 5,751 15,491 -
Paymenis to suppliers (4,023,339 (3,966,227) (1,254,803 (9,244,569) (7,228,244) '
Paymeris to employees {1,406,923) {417.563) {322,836) (2,147.322) (291.428) N
Net cash from operating aclivities 1,571,001 1,495,857 1,606,279 4,673,137 (488,406) !
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL :
FINANCING ACTIVITIES l
Interfund transfers (1,494,432) (486,269) {727,802) (2,708,503} (22,250) )~
Net cash from noncapital financing activities (1,494.432) (486,269) (727,802) (2,708,503} (22,250) l
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B
Principal payments - (404,851) (125,000) (529,851) -
Interest and fiscal charges - (389,384) {62,602) (451,986) -
Net cash from capital and related
financing activities - (794,235) (187,602) {981,837) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 55,241 16,021 21,981 93,243 337,674
Purchases of investments (815,237) {525,000) (622,344)  (1,962,581) (108,927)
Gain on sale of capital assets - - - - 163,620
Net cash from investing activities (759,996) (508,979) (600,363) (1.869.338) 392,367
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (683,427 £293,626) 90,512 (886,541) (118,289)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1 1,285,121 664,238 803,910 2,753,269 1,119,465

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 b 601.694 § 370.612 % 894,422 § 1866728 % 1001176

{This statement is continued on the foliowing page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOQIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Business-Type Activities Governmental
North Maine Activities
Water and Nonmajor Internal
Waierworks Sewer Enterprise Total Service

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TONET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ‘
Operating income (loss) § 2579595 § 2,152,967 § 1,452,694 $ 6185256 § (720,974)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
tonet cash from operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 748,533 201,307 226,830 1,176,670 7,994
Changes in current asseis and liabilities
Accounls receivable (1,712,988) 924,806) 255,073 (2,382,719} 2,324
Due from other funds 728 - (201,980) (201,252) 54,176
Deferred bond issuanee eosts - . (46,891) 146,891) -
Unamortized bond discount - - 16,070 16,070 -
Inventory 3,813 - - 3,813 -
Other assets (26,823) (1,900) (459) {32,182) -
Accounts payable {147,662) 98,072 (78,478) {128,068) (44,073)
Accrued payroll 12,214 875 6,902 19,991 126
Compensated absences payable 29,097 (1,774) - 27,323 -
Claims payable - - - - 188,479
Refundable deposits 4,491 {4,800) - (309) (153,372)
Other payables (18,061) {42) - (18,103) (1,526)
Due to other funds 101,064 (24,042} {23,484) 53,538 178,440
Net cash from operating activities § 1571001 8§ 1495857 § 1606279 § 4673137 5  (488.406)
NONCASH CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions of capital asseis b 393,581 § - 5 1,743548 § 2,137,129 § -

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS B
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS .
FIDUCIARY FUNDS l
December 31, 2003 |
Pension l
Trust Agency
ASSETS '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 658,990 $ 6,730
Investments
U.S. Government and agency obligations 68,454.298 50,000
Mutual funds 6,873,305 -
Insurance contracts 3,399,640 - l
Receivables ‘
Property taxes - 124,550
Due from other funds 358 - I
Total assets 79,386,591 181,280 l
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 2,400 -
Due to bondholders - 181,280
Total liabilities 2,400 181,280
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS $ 79384191 § -

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

ADDITIONS
Contributions - employer $ 1,261,855
Contributions - plan members 953,211
Miscellaneous 60
Total contributions 2,215,126

Investment income
Net appreciation (depreciation) in

fajr value of investments 2,892,768
Interest earned on investments 2,100,422
Total investment income 4,993,190

Less investment expense (8,138)
Net investment income 4,985,052
Total additions 7,200,178

DEDUCTIONS

Pensions and refunds 3,203,274
Total deductions 3,203,274
NET INCREASE 3,996,904

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR

PENSION BENEFITS
Tattuary 1 75,387,287
December 31 $ 79,384,191

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2003

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Village of Glenview, Illinois (the Village) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)),
as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Village’s accounting policies are
described below.

a.  Reporting Entity

The Village is a municipal corporation governed by an elected seven-member board.
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements
present the Village (the primary government) and its component units.

The Village’s financial statements include pension trust funds:
Police Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village’s police sworn employees participate in the Police Pension
Employees Retirement System (PPERS). PPERS fimctions for the benefit of
these employees and is governed by a five-member pension board consisting of
two members appointed by the Village’s President, one elected pension
beneficiary and two elected police. The Village and PPERS participants are
obligated to fund all PPERS costs based upon actuarial valuations. The State
of lllinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and the Village is authorized
to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of contribution
levels. Although it possesses many of the characteristics of a legally separate
government, the PPERS is reported as if it were part of the primary
govermment because its sole purpose is to finance and administer the pensions
of the Village’s police employees and because of the fiduciary nature of such
activities. The PPERS is reported as a pension trust fund.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
a,  Reporting Entity (Continued)
Firefighters’ Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village’s firefighters participate in the Firefighters’ Pension Employees
Retirement System (FPERS). FPERS functions for the benefit of these
employees and is governed by a nine-member pension board consisting of the
Village’s President, Treasurer, Clerk, Attomey and Fire Chief; one elected
pension beneficiary; and three elected fire employees. The Village and FPERS
participants are obligated to fund all FPERS costs based upon actuarial
valuations. The State of Tllinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and the
Village ts authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the
determination of contribution levels. Although it possesses many of the
characteristics of a legally separate government, the FPERS 1s reported as if it
were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to finance and
administer the pensions of the Village’s firefighters and because of the
fiduciary nature of such activities. The FPERS is reported as a pension trust
fund.

; - A G .
‘, "

Discretely Presented Component Unit - Village of Glenview Public Library
(the Library)

The Library has a separately elected seven-member board, which annually
determines its budget and resulting tax levy. Upon approval of the Village, the
levy is submitted to the County. All debt of the Library is secured by the full
faith and credit of the Village, which is wholly liable for the debt. Because the
Library possesses the characteristics of a legally separate government and does
not service the primary government, the Library is being reported as a discrete
presentation. Separate financial statemnents are disclosed in the component unit
portion of this report; the Library does not issue separate financial statenients.

b.  Fund Accounting

The Village uses funds to report on its financial position, results of its operations,
and cash flows. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to
aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government
functions or activities.

Funds are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate “fund types.”
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VILLAGE OF GLFNVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b.

Fund Accounting {Continued)

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general
activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies {special
revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of capital assets {capital projects
funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The general
fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for
in some other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the
private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound
financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided
either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies
primarily within the Village (internal service funds).

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties,
including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the Village. When
these assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, a pension trust fund
is used. Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the Village holds
on behalf of others as their agent.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
Village. The effect of material interfund activity has been eliminated from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function, segment or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and 2) grants and standard revenues that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ITLLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, propnietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The Village reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund, also referred to as the Corporate Fund, is the Village’s
primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
governiment, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Tax Allocation Fund accounts for the incremental property tax revenue
that is generated through the growth of the assessed valuation at the GNAS.

The Village Permanent Fund is used to accumulate 20% of the land sales
proceeds of the Glenview Naval Air Base for village-wide improvements as
well as short-term liquidity to the Village’s TIF projects encompassing The
Glen.

The GNAS Bond Fund Senies 1995 Fund is used to account for various
development and other projects related to the Glenview Naval Air Base and
financed with the General Obligation Bond Anticipation Bond Series of 1995.

The Glen Land Sales Fund accounts for grant funds, land sales, and property
tax revenues (via the Tax Increment Finance District) related to Glenview
Naval Air Base.

2001 Project Fund accounts for the funds derived from the 2001 General
Obligation Bond issue.

The Village reports the following major propretary funds:

The Waterworks Fund accounts for the provision of water service to the
residents of Glenview. All activity necessary to provide such services 1s
accounted for in this fund including, but not limited to, administration
(Director of Public Works), operation, maintenance, financing and related debt
service and billing and collection.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
c.  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The North Matne Water and Sewer fund accounts for all financial activity
related to the Village providing water and sewer service to an unincorporated
area southwest of the Village. This area was. formerly served by the North
Suburban Public Utilities Company.

d.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic reésources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues and additions are recorded when
earned and expenses and deductions are recorded when a liability is incurred.
Property taxes arc recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied (i.e.,
intended to finance). Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Operating
revenues/expenses include all revenues/expenses directly related to providing
enterprise fund services. Incidental revenues/expenses are reported as non-operating.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus, With this measurement focus, only current assets and
current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements
of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (1.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

All proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and
all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance
sheet. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues)
and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available).
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
“available” means collectible within the current period. The Village recognizes
property taxes when they become both measurable and available in the period
intended to finance. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund
liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service fund
for payments to be made early in the following vear.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
{Continued)

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses,
interest revenue and charges for services. Sales taxes owed to and fines collected
and held by the state/county court at year end on behalf of the Village also are
recognized as revenue. Permit revenues are not susceptible to accrual because,
generally, they are not measurable until received in cash.

The Village reports deferred revenue on its financial statements. Deferred revenues
arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available”
or earned criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise
when resources are received by the Village before it has a legal claim to them, as
when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifving expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the
Village has a legal claim to the resources, the lhability for deferred revenue is
removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Village’s proprietary fund types
consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments with a maturity of less than one year when purchased and non-negotiable
certificates of deposit are stated at cost or amortized cost. Investments with a
maturity of greater than one year when purchased and all investments of the pension
trust funds are stated at fair value. Fair value is based on prices listed on national
exchanges as of December 31, 2003 for debt and equity securities. Mutual funds,

investment funds and insurance separate accounts are valued at contract value as of
December 31, 2003.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
g.  Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are
classified as “due from other funds™ or “due to other funds™ on the balance sheet.
Short-term interfund loans, if any, are classified as “interfund receivables/payables.”
Long-term loans between funds are reporied as “advances to/from other fund”.

h. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out
(FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

1. Prepaid Items/Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of
this report are recorded as prepaid items/expenses.

j.  Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets {e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the Village as assets with an initial, individual
cost in excess of $25,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.

Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. Property, plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

~-38 -



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, TLLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5
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j. Capital Assets (Continued)

Assets Years
Buildings, Improvements and Infrastructure 25-80
Machinery and Equipment 5-10

Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The
amount of interest 1o be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense
incurred from the date of the borrowing until completion of the project with interest
earned on invested proceeds over the same period.

k.  Compensated Absences

The Village accrues a liability for vacation benefits as these benefits are earned. At
December 31, 2003, the liabilities for these accumulated unpaid benefits are
accounted for in the Enterprise Funds at all levels and in the governmental activities
column in the government-wide financial statements. In the governmental fund
financial statements a liability has been accrued for amounts owed to employees who
have retired or terminated employment by the end of the year.

l.  Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
Liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or
proprietary fund type financial statements. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face
amount of debt 1ssued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued})

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m.

Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. In the government-
wide financial statements, restricted net assets are legally restricted by outside parties
for a specific purpose. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt is the book value
of capital assets less any long-term debt outstanding that was issued to construct or
acquire the capital assets.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund services transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or
expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for
expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another
fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions
of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except interfund services transactions and
reimbursements, are reported as transfers.

Advances between funds, if any, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in
applicable governmental funds to indicate they are not available for appropriation
and are not expendable available financial resources.

(GASB Pronouncements

The Village has elected, under the provisions of GASB Statement 20, titled
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” to apply all
applicable GASB pronouncements and all FASB Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins
(ARB) issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. LEGAL COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
Deficit Fund Balances of Individual Funds

The following funds had a deficit in fund balance as of the date of this report:

Deficit

Fund Balance
GNAS Redevelopment $ 72,378
GNAS Caretaker 164,915
Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1996 338
Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2003 43,517
GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 2,513,360
Glen Land Sales 4,935,197

3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds,
except the pension trust funds. Each fund type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the
combined balance sheet as “cash and investments.” In addition, investments are separately
held by several of the Village’s funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust
funds are held separately from those of other funds. Cash on hand of $5,450 for the
primary government and cash on hand of $1,072 for the component unit has been excluded
from the amounts shown below.

Permitted Deposits and Investments - Statutes authorize the Village to make
deposits/invest in insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of
the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual
funds with portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States or agreements
to repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreements, short-term commercial paper
rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services and the
Illinois Funds. Pension funds may also invest in certain non-1J.S. obligations, Illinois
municipal corporations tax anticipation warrants, veteran’s loans, obligations of the State
of Illinois and 1ts political subdivisions and Illinois insurance company general and
separate accounts, mutual funds and equity securities.

Illinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the State of [llois, Office of the
Treasurer, which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment
purposes. Illinois Funds is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, but
does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at Illinois Fund’s share price, for which the
price the investment could be sold.
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3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

d.

Deposits

At year end, the carrying amount of the primary government’s deposits totaled
$29,976,163 and the bank balances totaled $31,143,934. The carrying amount of the
component unit’s deposits totaled $1,178,524 and the bank balances totaled

$1,227,200.

Category 1
Deposits covered by federal depository insurance,
or by collateral held by the Village, or its agent, in
the Village’s name.

Category 2
Deposits covered by collateral held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department, or its agents,
in the Village’s name.

Category 3
Deposits covered by collateral held by the pledging
financial institution, or its trust department, or its
agent but not in the Village’s name, and deposits
which are uninsured and uncollateralized.

TOTAL DEPOSITS

Bank Balances
Primary Component
Government Unit

$ 31,143,934 § 1,227,209

$31,143,934 $ 1,227,209

For pension trust funds, the types of deposits authorized and the mix of credit risk
categories do not differ significantly from the other funds of the Village.

Investments

The Village’s investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of
custodial credit risk assumed by the entity at year end. Category 1 includes
investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the
Village or its agent in the Village’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty’s trust
department or agent in the Village’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty in the
Village’s name, or held by any third party not in the Village’s name, and uninsured,

unregistered investments.
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3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
b.  Investments (Continued)

Primary Government

Fair Value
Category
1 2 3 Totals
U.S. Treesury securities $ 43,765,541 % - 5 - % 43,765,541
U.S. Agency securities 53,564,699 - - 53,564,699
Corporate bonds 22,8R7,543 - - 22,887,543
Mounicipal bonds 2,214,232 - - 2,214,232
$122432.015 § - $ - 122,432,015
* Illinois Funds 19,760,178
* Mutual funds 7,516,833
* Insurance contracts and separate accounts 3.399 640
TOTAL INVESTMENTS - $ 153,108,666

* Not subject to custodial credit risk categorization
Component Unit

Investments for the Component unit consist of $403,219 of Illinois Funds. Illinois
Funds are not subject to custodial credit risk categorization, and the fair value of the
position in the external pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

4. RECEIVABLES

Property taxes for 2003 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, 2003 on property values
assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the fiscal year (by passage
of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the County and issued on or about
February 1, 2004 and August 1, 2004 and are payable in two installments, on or about
March 1, 2004 and September 1, 2004. The County collects such taxes and remits them
periodically. The allowance for uncollectible taxes has been stated at 2% of the tax levy, to
reflect actual collection experience. Since the 2003 levy 1s intended to fund the 2004 fiscal
year, the levy has been recorded as a receivable and deferred revenue.
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NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2003 was as follows:

Primary Government

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Land right of way
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and land improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

*Beginning
Balance, Ending
Restated Increases Decreases Balance
$ 5,643,853 % - - § 5643853
48,835,322 - - 48,835,322
54,479,175 - - 54,479,175
10,234,967 - - 10,234,967
8,634,501 1,179,192 217,430 9,596,263
106,155,451 - - 106,155,451
125,024,919 1,179,192 217,430  125986,681
2,845,482 218,968 - 3,064,450
4,302,247 1,078,085 142,419 5,237,913
35,124,651 2,407,636 - 37,532,287
42,272 380 3,704,689 142,419 45,834,650
82,752,539 (2,525,497} 75,011 80,152,031
$137,231,714  §(2,525497) § 75,011 §134,631,206

*The beginning balance of the capital assets has been restated by $152,289,557 due to the
inclusion of infrastructure, the inclusion of mnternal service capital assets and due to a change
in the capitalization policy of the capital assets. Further, accumulated depreciation has been
restated by $42,272,380 to account for accumulated depreciation on capital assets not

previously depreciated.

-44 -



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o e

5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Primary Government (Continued) l
*Beginning
Balance, Ending .
Restated Increases Decreases Balance
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES l
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land b 302,851 § - ¥ - § 302,851
Total capital assets not being depreciated 302,851 - - 302,851 .
Capital assels being deprcciated
Buildings and improvements 446,954 - - 446,954
Water systemn 36,153,097 303,582 - 36,546,679 '
Sewer system 8,925,509 775,617 - 9,701,126
Equipment and vehicles 2,857,396 - - 2,857,396
Total capital assets being depreciated 48,382,956 1,169,199 - 49,552,155 .
Less accurmulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements 288,675 13,005 - 301,680
Water system 9,329,322 732,969 - 10,062,291 I
Sewer system 2,177.913 182,062 - 2,359,975
Equipment and vehicles 2,207,122 244,456 - 2451578
Total accumulated depreciation 14,003,032 1,172,492 - 15,175,524 l
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 34,379,924 (3,293) - 34,376,631
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES “I
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET § 34,682,775 § (3.293) § - $34,679,482

*The beginning balance of the capital assets has been restated by $7,047,647 due to the
inclusion of infrastructure and due to a change in the capitalization policy of the capital assets.
Further, accumulated depreciation has been restated by $1,096,557 to account for
accumulated depreciation on imfrastructure not previously reported.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General Government $ 42,756
Public Safety 528,025
Development 37,788
Public Works 3,096,120
TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 3 3,704,689
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CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Primary Government (Continued)

In proprietary funds, the following estimated useful lives are used 1o compute depreciation:

Building improvements
Water/sewer systems
Buildings

Equipment and vehicles

Office fumniture and equipment

Component Umnit

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
‘Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accwrnulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

10-20 years
50 years
40-50 years
3-10 years
3-10 years
*Beginning
Balance, Ending
Restated Increases Decreases Balance
b 500,000 § - 5 - § 500,000
500,000 } - 500,000
4,116,088 - - 4,116,088
14,044 - - 14,044
4,130,132 - 4,130,132
1,696,495 82,322 - 1,778,817
14,044 - - 14,044
1,710,539 82,322 - 1,792,861
2,419,593 (82,322) - 2,337.271
$ 2919593 § (82,322) § - § 2837271

*The beginning balance of the capital assets has been restated by $894,466 due to a change in
the capitalization policy of the capital assets. Further, accumulated depreciation has been

restated by $1,710,539 to account for accumulated depreciation on capital assets not

previously depreciated.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the governmental activities as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Culture and Recreation
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; illnesses of employees;
and natural disasters. The Village is self-insured (and participates in two public employee
risk pools for health claims} for general liability, auto, property and workers’ compensation
risks and has established a risk-financing fund, Insurance Fund (Fund), for all risks. It is
accounted for as an internal service fund where assets are set aside for claim seitlements.
Under this program, the Fund provides coverage up to a maximum of $1,000,000 for each
general liability claim, $50,000 for each workers’ compensation claim and $50,000 for
each property damage claim. The Village purchases commercial insurance for claims in
excess of the coverages provided by the Fund. Settled claims have not exceeded this
commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

All funds of the Village participate and make payments to the Fund based upon actuarial
estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims. Liabilities of the
Fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been
incurred but not reported (IBNR). Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of
inflation, recent claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of payouts and
other economic and societal factors. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during
the past two fiscal years are as follows:

2003 2002
CLAIMS PAYABLE, JANUARY 1 b 176,585 § 372,996
Add claims incurred 744,350 647,298
Less claims paid (555,871) (843,709)
CLAIMS PAYABLE, DECEMBER 31 A 365,064 § 176,585

Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC)

The Village participates in the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC).
IPBC is a public entity risk pool established by certain units of local government in Illinois
to administer some or all of the personnel benefit programs (primarily medical, dental and
life insurance coverage) offered by its members to their officers and employees and to the
officers and employees of certain other governmental, quasi-governmental and nonprofit
public service entities. Risk of loss is retained by the Village, except that IPBC purchases
excess coverage policies.

Management consists of a Board of Directors comprised of one appointed representative
from each member. In addition, there are three officers, a Benefit Administrator, and a
Treasurer. The Village does not exercise any control over activities of IPBC beyond its
representation on the Board of Directors.
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6. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
High-Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP}

The Village participates in the High-Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP). HELP isa
publie entity risk pool established by certain municipalities in Illinois to provide excess
liability coverage ($10,000,000 of coverage after a $2,000,000 self-insurance retention).
The Village’s payments to HELP are displayed on the financial statements as expenses in
the Insurance Fund.

HELP was organized on Apnl 1, 1987. The purpose of HELP is to act as a joint self-
insurance pool for the purpose of seeking the prevention or lessening of liability claims for
injuries to persons or property or claims for errors and omissions made against the members
and other parties included within the scope of coverage of HELP.

HELP is governed by a Board of Directors, which consists of one appointed representative
from each member municipality. Each director has an equal vote. The officers of HELP are
appointed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors determines the general policy of
HELP; makes all appropriations; approves contracts; adopts resolutions providing for the
issuance of debt by HELP; adopts bylaws, rules and regulations; and exercises such powers
and performs such duties as may be prescribed in the Agency Agreement or the bylaws.

The Village does not exercise any control over the activities of HELP beyond its
representation on the Board of Directors.

7.  LONG-TERM DEBT
a.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the fiscal year, the following changes oceurred in liabilities reported for long-
term liabilities:

Current
January | Additions Reductions December 31 Portion
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General obligation bonds $90,195000 § 6,150,000 3 9,365,000 $ 86,980,000 § 4,805,000
Compensated absences 1,737,690 - 368,678 1,369,012 205,352
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES $91.932690 § 6,150,000 8 9,733,678 $ 88,349.012 § 010,352
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
General obligation bonds $ 7,145000 $ 5,795,000 § 5910,000 § 7,030,000 § 455,000
Note payable 2438674 - 94,852 2,343,822 99,539
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES § 9583674 $ 5795000 § 6004852 5 9373822 § 554,539
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7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
b.  General Obligation Bonds

The Village issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of majar capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued
for both general govermment and proprietary activities. These bonds therefore are
reported in the proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary
revenues.

General obligation bonds are dirzct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of
the Village. General abligation bonds currently outstanding are as fallows:

Fund Debt Balances Balances Current
[ssue Retired By Jenuary 1 Additions Reductions  December 31 Amount
$2,895,000 Corporate Purpose
Bonds Series of 1992 dated
April 1, 1992, due in annuzl
installments of $10,000 to
$255,000 plus interest at Whole-
4.00% to 5.90% through sale
December 1, 2012, Water $ 1,920,000 § - 51,920,000 % - % -
$8,435,000 Corporate Purpose
Eond Series of 1996 dated
Novetnber 1, 1996, due in
annual installments of
$675,000 to 51,050,000 plus
jnterest at 4.60% to 4.875% Debt
through December 1, 2008. Service 5,545,000 - 5,545,000 - -
$6,175,000 Corporate Purpose
Bond Series of 1997 dated
August 1, 1997, due in annual North
installments of $100,000 to Maine
$495,000 plus interest at W ater
4.875% to 5.00% through and
December 1, 2017. Sewer 5,225,000 - 3,760,000 1,465,000 250,000
$10,000,000 General
Obligation Bond Series of
1998 A dated November 1,
1998, due in annual
installments of 695,000 to
$1,875,000 plus interest at
4.10% to 4.35% through Debt
Decernber |, 2018, Service 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

b.  General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

Fund Debt Balances Balarnces Current
Lssue Retired By January 1 Additions Reductions  December 31 Amount

$24,400,000 General

Obligation Bond Scries of

1998B dated January 1, 1999,

due in annual instaliments of

$1,000,000 to $2,050,000

plus interest at 4.25% to

4.50% through Deeember 1, Debt

2018. Service $23,005,000 § - $1450,000 § 21,555,000 $ 1,510,000

$4,970,000 General

Obligation Bond Series of

2000 dated December 15,

2000, due in annual

installments of $345,000 to

$1,875,000 plus interest at

4.30% to 4.5% through Debt

Deeember 1, 2008. Service 4,970,000 - - 4.970,000 -

$41,800,000 General

Obligation Bond Series of

2001 dated August 1, 2001,

due in annual installments of

$500,000 to $5,500,000 plus

interest at 3.50% to 4.35% Debt

through December 1, 20]12. Service 41,800,000 - 500,000 41,300,000 500,000

$6,885,000 General

Obligatien Refunding Bond

Series of 2002 dated

February 15, 2002, due in

annual instaliments of

$1,315,000 to0 $2,010,000

plus interest at 1.85% to

3.40% through Deeemnber 1, Debt

2005. Service 4,875,000 - 1,755,000 3,120,000 1,805,000

59,990,000 General

Obligation Refunding Bond

Series of 2003 A dated North Maine

April 1, 2003, due in annual Water and

installments of $185,000 to Sewer - 3,840,000 70,000 3,770,000 25,000
£1,130,000 plus interest at

2.05% to 3.10% through Debt

December 1, 2010. Service - 6,150,000 115,000 6,035,000 990,000

$1,995,000 General

Obligation Refunding Bond

Series of 2003B dated

April 1, 2003, due in annual

installments of $160,000 to

$225,000 plus interest at Whole-

1.3% to 3.85% through sale

December 1, 2012, Water - 1,955,000 160,000 1,795,000 180,000

TOTAL £97,340,000  §11,945000 $15275,000 § 94,010.000 § 5,260,000
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

c.  Notes Payable
The Village enters into notes payable to provide funds for the acquisition of capital
assets. Notes payable have been issued for proprietary activities. The proprietary
liabilities are therefore reported in the proprietary funds.

Note payable currently outstanding is as follows:

Fund Debt Balances Balances Current
Issue Retired By January 1 Additions Reductions  December 31 Amount
$2,850,000 Corporate
Puwrpose Note of 1997 dated
Septemnber 2, 1997, due in Narth
annual nstallments of Maine
$215,377 plus interest paid Water
at 4.942% through and
September 1, 2019, Sewer § 2438674 S - 5 94852 § 2343822 § 99,539

d.  Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Genera] Obligation Bonds Corporate Purpose Notes
Year Carried as Enterprise Fund Carried as Enterprise Fund
Ending General Obligation Bonds Liabilities Liabilities

December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2004 § 4,805,000 § 3,527,566 § 455000 § 234,816 § 99539 § 115,838
2005 9,065,000  3,367487 475,000 219,136 104,459 110,918
2000 9,445,000 3,035,253 490,000 202,379 109,621 105,756
2007 9,665,000 2,662,180 510,000 263,033 115,039 100,338
2008 8,890,000 2,277,773 530,000 165,077 120,725 94,652
2009 6,950,000 1,926,961 555,000 143,997 126,691 88,680
2010 7,040,000 1,642,579 580,000 126,337 132,952 82,425
2011 7,640,000 1,345,805 600,000 107,887 139,523 75,854
2012 7,735,000 1,017,105 620,000 88,347 146,419 68,958
2013 2,345,000 681,411 405,000 67,835 153,655 61,722
2014 2,440,000 581,683 425,000 55,685 161,249 54,128
2015 2,565,000 477,165 440,000 42,935 169,219 46,158
2016 2,690,000 366,630 460,000 20,295 177,582 37,795
2017 2,830,000 249,981 485,000 15,035 186,359 29,018
2018 2,875,000 126,563 - - 195,569 19,808
2019 - - - - 205,221 10,143
TOTAL $ 86,980,000 § 23,286,144 § 7030,000 § 1,761,794 $ 2,343,822 § 1,102,197
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7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

€.

Legal Debt Margin
The Government is a home rule municipality.

Article VII, Section 6(k) of the 1970 Illinois Constitution governs computation of the
legal debt margin.

“The General Assembly may limit by law the amount and require referendum
approval of debt to be incurred by home rule municipalities, payable from ad
valorem property tax receipts, only in excess of the following percentages of
the assessed value of its taxable property . . . (2) if its population is more than
25,000 and less than 500,000 an aggregate of one percent: ... indebtedness
which is outstanding on the effective date (July 1, 1971) of this constitution or
which is thereafter approved by referendum . . . shall not be included in the
foregoing percentage amounts.”

To date, the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities.

Advance Refunding - General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 A and
2003B.

On April 1, 2003, the Village issued $9,990,000 General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2003 A and $1,995,000 2003B bonds. The proceeds of the Series
2003 A General Obligation Refunding Bonds were used to call $4,735,000 of the
1996 Series General Obligation Bonds of 1996, created an escrow to call $3,520,000
of the 1997 Series General Obligation Bonds of 1997 on December 1, 2004 and to
provide cash for infrastructure improvements to the North Maine utility system. The
proceeds of the Series 2003B General Obligation Refunding Bonds were used to
fully call the 1992 Series General Obligation Bonds. This advance refunding was
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next fourteen years by
$1,017.148, and to obtain an economic gain {difference between the present value of
the debt service payments of the refunded and refunding bonds) of $867,987 of the
old debt.

Noncommitment Debt
Special Service Area Bonds

Special service area bonds outstanding as of the date of this report totaled $705,202.
These bonds are not an obligation of the Village and are secured by the levy of
special service on the real property within the special service area. The Village is in
no way liable for repayment but is only acting as the agent for the property owners in
levying and collecting the assessments and forwarding the collections to the
bondholders.
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7.  LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

E.

Noncommitment Debt (Continued)
Conduit Debt

The Village has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds (IDRBs) to provide
financial assistance to private organizations for the construction and acquisition of
industrial and commercial improvements deemed to be in the public interest. The
bonds are secured solely by the property financed and are payable solely from the
payments received on the underlying mortgage loans on the property. The Village is
not obligated in any manner for the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds
outstanding are not reported as a liability in these financial statements. As of
December 31, 2003, there was one series of IDRBs outstanding. The aggregate
principal amount payable for the IDRBs outstanding was $9,020,000.

8. CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

High-Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP)

The Village has committed to purchase excess liability insurance from the High-
Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP), a public entity risk pool for certain Tllinois
municipalities through Aprnl 30, 2008.

These amounts have been calculated using the Village’s current allecation percentage
of 8.84%. In future years, this allocation percentage will be subject to change
because the HELP Agreement provides that each year members will be assessed
based upon a formula that specifies the following four criteria for allocating premium
costs:

Miles of Streets

Full-Time Equivalent Employees
Number of Motor Vehicles
Operating Revenues

Solid Waste Agency of Northem Cook County (SWANCC)
The Village has committed to pay its share of the annual operating costs and fixed
costs of the SWANCC. The Village’s share of costs is expected to be fimded

through tipping fees paid by refuse haulers. The Village began delivering refuse to
SWANCC in May of 1995.
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8. CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)
b.  Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC) {Continued)
SWANCC has entered into solid waste disposal contracts with the twenty-three
member municipalities. The contracts are irrevocable and may not be terminated or
amended except as provided in the contract. Each member is obligated, on a “take or

pay” basis, to purchase, or in any event, to pay for a minimum annual cost of the
system.

The obligation of the Village to fnake all payments as required by this contract is
unconditional and irrevocable, without regard to performance or nonperformance by
SWANCC of 1ts obligations under this contract.
9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
Due From/To Other Funds.

Primary Government

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Major Funds
General Fund 911 Communications B 58,357
GNAS Redevelopment 8,352
GNAS Caretaker 2,248
Foreign Fire Insurance 750
Escrow Deposit 1,172
Deposit 300
Capital Projects 366,983
Bond Fund Series of 1993 4373
Waterworks 6,213
North Maine Water and Sewer 8,092
Capital Equipment Replacement 28,012
Municipal Equipmernt Repair 170,652
Insurance 1,034
GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 General 8172
Glen Land Sales Special Tax Allocation 250,000
Village Permanent 19,800
GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 225,000
2001 Project Capital Projects 66,676
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9.  INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Due From/Te Other Funds (Continued)

_Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Nonmajor Funds
911 Communications General b 3,263
GNAS - Redevelopment GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 31,000
Escrow Deposit General 240
Deposit General 1,300
Police Special Account General 24,602
Capital Projects General 10,033
‘Waterworks 11,460
2003 Project Corporate Purpose Bond Series 2003 47,187
Total governmental funds 1,355,271
Enterprise
Waterworks Sewerage 133,317
Sewerage General 8,274
Commuter Parking General 2
141,593
Internal Service
Municipal Equipment Repair 727
Trust and Agency
Police Pension General 358
TOTAL § 1,497,949

The purpose of the significant Due From/To Other Funds is as follows:

. The $366,983 due to the General Fund from the Capital Projects Fund is for
interfund operations. Repayment is expected within one year.

. The $250,000 due to the Glen Land Sales Fund from the Special Tax Allocation

Fund is for incentive fees. Repayment is expected within one year.

. The $225,000 due to the Glen Land Sales Fund from the GNAS Bond Fund Series

1995 is for interfund operations. Repayment is expected within one year.
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9.  INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Component Unit
Recetvable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Component Unit Primary Government $ 56,247

. The $56,247 due to the Library from the General Fund is to reimburse bills paid.

Advances To/From Qther Funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Government
Village Permanent Glen Land Sales $ 11,182,130
Enterprise
Waterworks Capital Equipment Replacement 819,114
Capital Projects 1,614,109
North Maine Water and Sewer Capital Equipment Replacement 109,095
Sewerage Capital Equipment Replacement 116,972
TOTAL $13,841,420

The purpose of the significant Advances To/From Other Funds is as follows:

. The $11,182,130 due to the Village Permanent Fund from the Glen Land Sales Fund
is for interfund operations. Repayment will be completed at the end of the Tax
Increment Financing District.

. $819,114 advanced to the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund from the
Waterworks Fund for vehicle and equipment purchases. Repayment is expected in
more than one year.

. $1,614,109 advanced to the Capital Projects Fund from the Waterworks Fund for
infrastructure improvements. Repayment is expected in more than one year.

. $109,095 advanced to the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund from the North
Maine Water and Sewer Fund for vehicle and equipment purchases. Repayment is
expected in more than one year.

. $116,972 advanced to the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund from the Sewerage
Fund for vehicle and equipment purchases. Repayment is expected in more than one
year.
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INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Interfund Transfers

Primarvy Government

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount
Major Funds
General Fund 911 Communications B 120,000
(GNAS Redevelopment 2,000
GNAS Caretaker 2,000
Escrow Deposit 80,000
Waterworks 529,400
North Maine Water and Sewer 307,500
Wholesale Water 106,000
Sewerage 75,530
Commuter Parking 42765
Special Tax Allocation Glen Land Sales 5,420,537
Village Permanent Glen Land Sales 697,256
GNAS Bond Fund Series of 1995 2001 Project 17,803,419
Nonmajor Funds
IMRF 911 Communications 11,370
GNAS Redevelopment 36,000
GNAS Caretaker 27,050
Waterworks 65,690
Wholesale Water 1,200
North Maine Water and Sewer 29,000
Sewerage 12,100
Commuter Parking 2,725
Municipal Equipment Repair 22,250
GNAS Redevelopment Special Tax Allocation 1,580,000
GNAS Caretaker Special Tax Allocation 1,345,000
Total Governmental Funds 28,318,692
Nonmajor Debt Service
Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1996 Special Tax Allocation 836,035
Corporate Purpose Series of 2003 111,958
Cormporate Purpose Bond Series of 1998  Special Tax Allocation 2,885,988
Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2000  General 219,335
Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2001  Special Tax Allocation 2,137,125
Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2002 Waterworks 124,342
Sewerage 8,462
Corporate Purpose Bond Series 0of 2003 Special Tax Allocation 197,675
6,520,920
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9.  INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Interfund Transfers (Continued)

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount

Nonmajor Capital Project

Capital Projects General 3 1,041,000
Motor Fuel Tax 1,190,300
Waterworks 745,000
Wholesale Water 200,000
North Maine Water and Sewer 237,000
Sewerage 330,000
3,743,300
Enterprise
Major

North Maine Water and Sewer Corporate Purpose Bond Serics of 2003 87,231

Nonmajor
Wholesale Water Waterworks 30,000
Comruter Parking Capital Projects 20,980
138,211

$ 38721223

The purpose of the significant Interfund Transfers are as follows:

’ $120,000 transfer to General Fund from the 911 Communications Fund to fund
operations.

. $529,400 transfer to General Fund from the Waterworks Fund to fund operations.

. $106,000 transfer to General Fund from the Wholesale Water Fund to fund
operations.

. $307.500 transfer to General Fund from the North Maine Water and Sewer to fund
operations.

. $1,580,000 transfer to GNAS Redevelopment Fund from the Special Tax Allocation
Fund to fund operations.

. $1,345,000 transfer to GNAS Caretaker Fund from the Special Tax Allocation Fund
to fund operations.

. $5,420,537 transfer to Special Tax Allocation from the Glen Land Sales Fund to fund
operations,
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9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Interfund Transfers (Continued)

$836,035 transfer to Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1996 from the Special Tax
Allocation Fund to fund operations.

$111,958 transfer to Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1996 from the Corporate
Purpose Series of 2003 for principal and interest payments.

$2,885,988 transfer to Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1998 Fund from the Special
Tax Allocation Fund for principal and interest payments.

$219,335 transfer to Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2000 from the General Fund
for principal and interest payments.

$2,137,125 transfer to Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2001 from the Special Tax
Allocation Fund for principal and interest payments.

$124,342 transfer to Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2002 from the Waterworks
Fund for principal and interest payments.

$197,675 transfer to Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2003 from the Special Tax
Allocation Fund for principal and interest payments.

$1,041,000 transfer to Capital Projects Fund from the General Fund to fund various
projects.

$1,190,300 transfer to Capital Projects Fund from the Motor Fuel Tax Fund to fund
road resurfacing,

$745,000 transfer to Capital Projects Fund from the Waterworks Fund to fund
various projects.

$200,000 transfer to Capital Projects Fund from the Wholesale Water Fund to fund
VATIOUS pProjects.

$237,000 transfer to Capital Projects Fund from the North Maine Water and Sewer
Fund to fund various projects.

$330,000 transfer to Capital Projects Fund from the Sewerage Fund to fund various
projects.

$697,256 transfer to Village Permanent Fund from the Glen Land Sales Fund per
ordinance to contribute 20% of sales for future infrastructure improvements.
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9.  INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS {Continued)
Interfund Transfers (Continued)

. $17,803,419 transfer to GNAS Bond Fund Series of 1995 from the 2001 Projects
Fund for infrastructure improvemeats for the Redevelopment District per ordinance.

Component Unit

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount
Component Unit Primary Government h 123,540
Primary Government Component Unit 232,897

. $123,540 transfers to the Library from the General Fund for varions capital
expenditures.

. $232,897 transfers to the General Fund from the Library to reimburse for
expenditures.

10. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a.  Litigation

The Viliage is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these
lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the Village Attorney, the
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the Village.

b. Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Village expects such amounts,
if any, to be immaterial,

¢.  High-Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP)
The Village has committed to purchase excess liability insurance from the High-level

Excess Liability Pool (HELP) through April 30, 2008. The Village expects to make the
following payments to HELP:
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10. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

c.  High-Level Excess Liability Pool (HELP) (Continued)

Year Ending

December 31 Amount
2004 § 142,888
2005 142,888
2006 142,888
2007 142,888
2008 142,888

d.  Solid Waste Agency of Northem Cook County (SWANCC)

The Village has committed to make payments to SWANCC for solid waste refuse
disposal and expects to pay the following amounts:

Year Ending

December 31 Amount
2004 $ 216,042
2005 216,084
2006 216,016
2007-2022 2,159,727

These amounts have been estimated based upon the Village’s commitment for 2003. In
future years, the annual expense will be subject to change based upon the actual
tonnage of refuse disposed of and current SWANCC costs.

e.  Municipal Infrastructure Maintenance Fees

Effective January 1, 1998, the Village imposed a municipal telecommunications
infrastructure maintenance fee (IMF) on persons in the business of transmitting,
supplying, or furnishing telecommunications and all associated services (e.g.,
telecommunications retailers) in Illinois for the “use of public right-of-ways”. The
fee was authorized by state statute (35 ILCS 635). In March 2001, a wircless
telecommunications provider brought action against an Illinois government
challenging the constitutionality of the municipal telecommunications infrastructure
matntenance fee. The lllinois Supreme Court (Court) found the IMF to be
unconstitutional as applied to wireless carriers. The Court’s decision held upon
appeal. The municipal IMF fee was eliminated effective December 31, 2002.
Potential damages to the Village under this case precedent could aggregate the total
of amounts remitted to the Village for IMF by all carriers during the period from
January 1, 1998 through December 31, 2002. The Village has estimated a liability
under potential IMF lawsuits in the amount of $§974,017 for amounts paid under
protest during this time. The liability has been accrued and is presented as an other
liability in these financial statements.
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1L,

JOINT VENTURES
Solid Waste Agency of Northem Cook County (SWANCC)
Description of Joint Venture

The Village is a member of the Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC)
which consists of twenty-three municipalities. SWANCC is a municipal corporation and
public body politic and corporate established pursuant to the Constitution of the State of
Illinois and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of the State of Illinois, as amended (the
Act). SWANCC is empowered under the Act to plan, construct, finance, operate and
maintain a solid waste disposal system to serve its members.

SWANCC 1s governed by a Board of Directors which consists of one appointed mayor or
president from each member municipality. Each director has an equal vote. The officers of
SWANCC are appointed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors determines the
general policy of SWANCC,; makes all appropriations; approves contracts; adopts
resolutions providing for the issuance of bonds or notes by SWANCC; adopts bylaws, rules
and regulations; and exercises such powers and performs such duties as may be prescribed
in the SWANCC Agreement or the bylaws.

Complete financial statements for SWANCC can be obtained from the SWANCC’s
administrative office at 1616 East Golf Road, Des Plaines, Illinois 60016 or available on
the web at www,.swancc.com.

SWANCC’s outstanding bonds are revenue obligations. They are limited obligations of
SWANCC with a claim for payment solely from and secured by a pledge of the revenues of
SWANCC and amounts in various funds and accounts established by agency resolutions.
The bonds are not the debt of any member. SWANCC has no power to levy taxes.

Revenues of SWANCC consist of (1) all receipts derived from solid waste disposal
contracts or any other contracts for the disposal of waste; (2) all mcome denived from the
investment of monies; and (3) all income, fees, and service charges and all grants, rents and
receipts derived by SWANCC from the ownership and operation of the system. SWANCC
covenants to éstablish fees and charges sufficient to provide revenues to meet all its
requirements.

In accordance with the contract, the Village made $705,975 in payments to SWANCC for
the year ended December 31, 2003. The payments are recorded in the Refuse and
Recycling Fund. The Village does not have an equity interest in SWANCC at

December 31, 2003.
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12.

13.

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Village provides post-
employment health care benefits for retired public safety employees. Substantially all of
the Village’s public safety employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach
normal retirement age while working for the Village. The cost of retiree health care
benefits is recognized as an expenditure as claims are paid. For the fiscal year, those costs
total $284,006 for the 65 participants. The retirees pay an annual premium, which is equal
to the actuarially determined cost for each plan year. Accordingly, no liability has been
recorded for post-retirement health care benefits.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
a.  Plan Descriptions and Provisions

The Village contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the Illinois Municipal
Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent-multiple-employer public employee retirement
system; the Police Pension Plan which 1s a single-employer pension plan; and, the
Firefighters’ Pension Plan which is also a single-employer pension plan. The
benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer contributions for all
three plans are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes and can only be amended by
the [llinois General Assembly. None of the pension plans issue separate reports on
the pension plans. However, IMRF does issue a pubhcly available report that
includes financial statements and supplementary information for the plan as a whole,
but not for individual employers. That report can be obtained from IMRF, 2211
York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523.

Nlinois Municipal Retirement Fund

All employees (other than those covered by the Police or Firefighters’ plans) hired in
positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled

m IMRF as participating members. Pension benefits vest after eight years of service.

Participating members who retire at or after age 60 with eight years of credited
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an
amount equal to | 2/3% of their final rate of eamings, for each year of credited
service up to 15 years and 2% for eacl: year thereafter. IMRF also provides death
and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by state statute. Participating members are required to contribute 4.5%
of their annual salary to IMRF. The Village is required to contribute the remaining
amounts necessary to fund the IMRF as specified by statute. The employer
contribution for the year ended December 31, 2003 was 6.49% of covered payroll.
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13. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)
a.  Plan Descriptions and Provisions (Continued)
Police Pension

Police sworn persommel are covered by the Police Pension Plan. Although thisisa
single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer
contributions levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (Chapter 40
Article 5/3) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The Village
accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund. At December 31, 2002, the Police
Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 33
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet
receiving them 1
Current employees
Vested 46
Nonvested 29
TOTAL 109

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Covered employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years
of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of
the salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service or for one year prior to
the last day, whichever is greater. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of
such salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a
maximum of 75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least eight years but less than
20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced
benefit. The monthly pension of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years
of service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually, following the first
anniversary date of retirement atid be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years,
by 3.00% of the original pension and 3.00% compounded annually thereafter.

Employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police Pension
Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service,
accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest.
The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the
plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. Effective July 1, 1993, the
Village’s contributions must accumulate to the point where the past service cost for
the Police Pension Plan is fully funded by the year 2033. For the year ended
December 31, 2002, the Village’s contribution was 11.41% of covered payroll.
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13.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions and Provisions (Continued)
Firefighters’ Pension

Fire sworn personnel are covered by the Firefighters’ Pension Plan, which is a
defined benefit single-employer pension plan. Although this is a single-employer
pension plan, the defined benefits as well as the employee and employer
contributions levels are mandated by Illinois Compiled Statutes (Chapter 40
Article 5/4) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The Village
accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund. At December 31, 2002, the
Firefighters® Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 45
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet
receiving them 1
Current employees
Vested 44
Nonvested 37
TOTAL 127

The Firefighters’ Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and
disability benefits. Employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years
of creditable service are entitled to receive a monthly retirement benefit of one-half
of the monthly salary attached to the rank held in the fire service at the date of
retirement. The monthly pension shall be increased by 1/12 of 2.50% of such
monthly salary for each additional month over 20 years of service through 30 years of
service to a maximum of 75.00% of such monthly salary. Employees with at least 10
years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or afier age 60 and
receive a reduced retirement benefit. The monthly pension of a covered employee
who retired with 20 or more years of service after Jannary 1, 1977 shall be increased
annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and paid upon reaching at
least the age 55, by 3% of the original pension and 3% compounded annually
thereafter,

Covered employees are required to contribute 8.455% of their salary to the
Firefighters’ Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less
than 20 years of service, accurhulated employee contributions may be refunded
without accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the remaining
amounts necessary to finance the plan as actnanally determined by an enrolled
actuary. Effective July 1, 1993, the Village’s contributions must accumulate to the
point where the past service cost for the Firefighters® Pension Plan is fully funded by
the year 2033. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Village's contribution
was 10.40% of covered payroli.
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13. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

b.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The pension trust funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions and
benefits are recognized when due. Administrative cost are financed by investment

income,

There are no investments (other than U.S. government and U.S. government
guaranteed obligations) in any one organization that represent 5.00% or more of net
assets for either the Police or the Firefighter’s Pension Plans. Information for IMRF

1s not available.

Employer contributions have been determined as follows:

Actuarial Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Asset Valuation Method

Amortization Method

Amortization Period

Significant Actuarial Assumptions
a) Rate of Return on
Present and Future Assets

b) Projected Salary Increase -
Attributable to Inflation

¢) Additional Projected
Salary Increases -
Seniority/Merit

d) Post-Retirement Benefit
Increases

Mlinois
Municipal Police Firefighters’
Retirement Pension Pension
December 31, January 1, January 1,
2001 2003 2003
Entry-age Entry-age Entry-age
Normal Normal Normal
5 Year Market Market
Smoothed
Markst
Level Level Level
Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
Payroll Payroll Payroll
10 Years, 32 Years, 32 Years,
Closed Closed Closed
7.50% 8.00% 8.00%
Compounded Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually Annually
4.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Compounded Compounded Compounded
Amually Annually Annually
A0 to 11.60% 2.50% 2.50%
3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
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13. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

b.  Significant Investinents (Continued)

-

Employer annual pension cost (APC), actual contributions and the net pension
obligation (asset) (NPO) are as follows. The NPO (asset) is the cumulative
difference between the APC and the contributions actually made.

llinois
Municipal Police Firefighters’
Year Retirement* Pension* Pension*
Arnnual Pension Cost 2000 $ 825173 %5 186,505 § 45,527
(APC) 2001 796,191 435,292 403,804
2002 706,259 542,373 530,201
Actual Contribution 2000 3 825,173 § 427503 § 173,821
2001 796,191 388,310 257,224
2002 706,259 540,072 527,906
Percentage of APC Contributed 2000 100,00% 229.2% 381.8%
2001 100.00 §9.2 63.7
2002 100.00 99.6 99.6
NPO (Assef) 2000 - §  (260,510) § (318219)
2001 ; (213,528) (171,639)
2002 - (211,227 (169,344)

* Information presented is for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2001, 2002
and 2003 from actuarial reports as of December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002.

The net pension obligation (asset) has been calculated as follows:

- - - EE O N D B B S S

Police Firefighters’
Pension Pension

Annual required contributions $ 549,860 $ 536,220
Interest on net pension obligation (17,082) (13,731)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 9,595 7,712
Annual pension cost 542,373 530,201
Contributions made 540,072 527,906
{Increase) decrease in net pensibn obligation (asset) 2,301 2,295
Net pension obligation (asset) beginning of year (213,528) (171,639) l
NET PENSION OBLIGATION (ASSET),

END OF YEAR $§ (211,227) §  (169,344) I
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14.

15.

16.

SALE OF LAND

As part of the development of the property formerly occupied by the Glenview Naval Air
Station, $8,919,398 was recorded as revenue in the Glen Land Sales Fund for the sale of
land.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Prior period adjustments were recorded to implement GASB Statement Nos. 34, 37, 38 and
Interpretation No. 6. Further, fund balance in the general fund increased by $104,545 for
revenue recognition of local use tax to be in compliance with GASB Statement No. 33.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On July 6, 2004 the Village approved the issuance of $25,000,000 of General Obligation
Bonds Series 2004A and $22,315,000 General Obligation Bonds Series B. The Series A
proceeds will be used for infrastructure improvements in the Village’s redevelopment
district, known as The Glen. The Series B proceeds will be used to construct a new Police
Headquarters building,
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeits
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers in - component unit
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1

Prior period adjustment

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1, RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and

Final
Budget Actual
$10,678,320 $12,381,094
14,949,109 16,964,397
1,182,341 1,021,693
2,137,000 1,671,554
200,000 181,384
360,000 155,307
750,150 966,982
30,256,920 33,342 411
7,652,765 7,834,675
18,343,136 18,243,047
7,171,558 7,083,597
33,167,459 33,161,319
(2,910,539 181,092
2,060,195 1,265,195
12,650 12,650
(1,184,598)  (1,260,335)
888,247 17,510
$ (2.022.292) 198,602
15,898,842
1,776,368

17,675,210

$17.873.812




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINQIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes $ 10,000,000 § 6,572,481
Investment income 750 12,777
Total revenues 10,000,750 6,585,258
EXPENDITURES
General government
Contractual services 3,487,000 3,700,716
Total expenditures 3,487,000 3,700,716
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 6,513,750 2,884,542
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,000,000 5,420,537
Transfers (out) (6,157,674) (8,981,823)
Total other financing sources {(uses) (5,157,674) (3,561,286)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 1,356,076 (676,744)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 953,690
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 276,946

(See independent auditor’s report.)
-70 -



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

December 31, 2003

4) UAAL
{2) Unfunded {0OAAL)
Actuarial {Overfunded) Asa
Actuarial {1) Accrued {3} AAL Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded (UAAL) (5) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio {OAAL) Covered Payroll
December 31 Assets - Entry Age {13/(2) (2)-{1} Payroll {4/ (5)
1998 $ 17,834,171 § 17,399,577 102.50% $ (434,594) § 8,842,628 (4.91%)
1999 20,971,639 19,680,215 106.56%  (1,291,424) 9,514,512 (13.57%)
2000 24,477,730 21,790,735 112.33%  (2,686,995) 10,379,550 (25.89%)
2001 26,203,617 23,785,832 110.16%  (2,417,785) 11,708,708 (20.65%)
2002 25,950,441 25,778,690 100.67% (171,751) 12,325,643 (1.39%)
2003 26,365,710 28,168,552 93.60% 1,802,842 13,089,903 13.77%

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REQUIRED SUFPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
POLICE PENSION FUND

December 31, 2003

(2) UAAL
Actuarial (4) Asa
Actuarial (1) Accrued (3) TUnfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL (5) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL} Covered Payroll
December 31 Assets - Entry Age (1}/(2) (2)-(1) Payroll (4)/(5)
1998 $ 27211,245 % 24.277,70] 112.08% § (2,933,544) $§ 2,789,745 {105.15%)
1999 25,629,270 25,769,884 99.45% 140,614 4,008,491 3.51%
2000 29,157,173 30,130,881 96.77% 973,708 4,309,083 22.60%
2001 29,380,377 31,728,241 92.60% 2,347,864 4,583,354 51.23%
2002 31,060,435 34,312,189 90.52% 3,251,754 4,731,354 68.73%
2003 NA NA NA NA NA NA

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

December 31, 2003
(4 UAAL
2) Unfunded (OAAL)
Actuarial (Overfunded) Asa
Actnarial (1 Accrued (3) AAL Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded (UAAL) (%) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (OAAL) Covered Payroll
December 31 Assets - Entry Ape (1)/(2) 2)- (1) Payroll {(4)/(3)
1998 $ 37,887,879 % 31,839,389 119.00% § (6,048,490) § 4,304,126 (140.53%)
1999 36,747,302 34,999,514 104.99% (1,747,788) 4,506,495 (38.78%)
2000 40,166,889 38,856,179 103.37% (1,310,710) 4,760,709 (27.53%)
2001 41,979,483 40,548,063 103.53% (1,431,420) 5,148,997 (27.80%)
2002 44,325,852 44,164,653 100.37% {162,199) 5,074,146 (3.20%)
2003 NA NA NA NA NA NA

(See independent auditor's report.)
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

December 31, 2003

Annual
‘Pension
Calendar Employer Cost

Year Contributions (APC)
1998 8 804,679 5 804,679
1999 831,568 831,568
2000 825,173 825,173
2001 796,191 796,191
2002 706,259 706,259
2003 849,534 849,534

(See independent anditor's report.)
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Percentage
Contributed

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
POLICE PENSION FUND

December 31, 2003

Calendar
Year

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

Annual
Pension
Employer Cost
Contributions (APQ)
$ 376.836 b 389,071
387,208 389,558
427,503 186,505
388,310 435,292
540,072 542,373
680,190 NA

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Percentage
Contnbuted

96.86%

99.40%

229.22%

89.21%

99.58%

NA




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUFPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

December 31, 2003
Annual
Pension
Calendar Employer Cost Percentage

Year Contributions (APC) Contributed
1998 3 236,334 127,498 185.36%
1999 157,476 123,437 127.58%
2000 173,821 45,527 381.80%
2001 257,224 403,804 63.70%
2002 527,906 530,201 99.57%
2003 581,665 NA NA

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

December 31, 2003

BUDGETS

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted (at the fund level) for the General, Special
Revenue, Debt Service (except the Corporate Purpose Bond Fund Series of 2003) and
Capital Projects Funds (except the 2003 Projects Fund) on the modified accrual basis and
for the Enterprise, Internal Service and Pension Trust Funds on the accrual basis. The
annual appropriated budget is legally enacted and provides for a legal level of control at
the fund level. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

During the current year, budgets were not adopted for the following funds:

Debt Service Funds:
Corporate Purpose Bond Fund Series of 2003

Capital Projects Funds:
2003 Projects Fund

The source of revenue and nature of expenditures for these funds are not subject to
prediction, and therefore, budgets were not adopted.

All departments of the Village submit requests for appropriation to the Village Manager so
that a budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund and includes information
on the past year, current year estimates and requested appropriations for the next fiscal
year.

The proposed budget is presented to the governing body for review. The governing body
holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change appropriations, but may not
change the form of the budget.

The Village Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments
within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must

be approved by the governing body.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund Ievel. During the
year, a supplementary appropriation was necessary.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued)

2. EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES OVER BUDGET IN
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

The following funds had an excess of actual expenditures/expenses (exclusive of
depreciation and amortization) over budget for the fiscal year:

Fund Excess
Foreign Fire Insurance h)
IMRF
Motor Fuel Tax 165,385
Police Special Account
Capital Projects 4,059,504
Wholesale Water 56,826
Insurance 356,176
Firefighters' Pension 123,209
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MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Village Permanent Fund - to accumulate 20% of the land sales proceeds of the Glenview Naval
Air Base for village-wide improvements as well as short-term liquidity to the Village’s TIF
projects encompassing The Glen.

GNAS Bond Fund Series 1995 - to account for various development and other projects related to
the Glenview Naval Air Base and financed with the General Obligation Bond Anticipation Bond
Series of 1995.

Glen Land Sales Fund - to account for grant funds, land sales, and property tax revenues (via the
Tax Increment Finance District) related to the Glenview Naval Air Base.

2001 Project Fund - to account for the funds derived from the 2001 General Obligation Bond
1SsUue.



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
VILLAGE PERMANENT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income $ 250,500 $ 315,187
Total revenues 250,500 315,187
EXPENDITURES
None - -
Total expenditures - -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 250,500 315,187
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 697,256
Total other financing sources (uses) - 697,256
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 250,500 1,012,443
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 . 37,309,450
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 38,321,893

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GNAS BOND FUND SERIES 1995

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Intergovernmental § 3,965,050 $ 400,655
Investment income 1,500 2,355
Miscellaneous - 953
Total revenues 3,966,550 403,963
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 44,616,034 17,167,616
Total expenditures 44,616,034 17,167,616
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (40,649,484) (16,763,653)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 17,867,806 17,803,419
Total other financing sources (uses) 17,867,806 17,803,419
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $(22,781.678) 1,039,766
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1 (3,553,126)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 $ (2.513.360)

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GNAS BOND FUND SERIES 1995

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
PROJECT COSTS

Development fees $ 1,900,000 $ 4,000
System improvements - 50,431
Demolition 1,050,000 1,716
Surveys, plats, and maps 50,000 84,710
Lake construction 4,805,866 1,988,220
Engineering 1,402,790 1,262,624
Sidewalk and curb 550,000 -
Stormwater management - 28,385
Sanitary sewer 68,976 27,576
Miscellanieous improvements - 195,249
Memorial restoration 154,000 76,793
SCADA systetn 100,615 100,181
Lehigh Avenue roadways 3,187,183 1,606,819
Chestnut NS to golf course 200,000 30,900
Traffic signals - Lehigh 360,492 269,770
Drainage - Lehigh 1,600,000 892,014
Engineering/Construction management - Lake 1,906,740 1,164,201
Water source improvements 3,825,000 1,156,513
Fire department building 2,360,000 1,340,246
Bike paths 491,039 71,227
Street lights - Lehigh 478,252 280,697
Youth services 200,000 162,351
Gallery Park landscape and amenities 2,527,494 1,510,452
Parkway median and landscape 552,558 222,095
Prairie wetland and management 395,572 94,506
W Lake to Chestnut 850,000 1,668,101
NIPSTA 1,421,300 1,290,528
Lighting and traffic signals 1,558,000 661,908
Lake outlet and culvert 700,000 77,590
Rugen engineering 535,244 -
Water system 10,000 -
Rugen reservoir and pump 4,000,000 44
Electric utility allowance 300,000 51,403
Michael Joseph foundation 40,000 -
Potable water construction work 290,410 54,103

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GNAS BOND FUND SERIES 1995

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
PROJECT COSTS {Continued)
Metra station design and construction $ 500,000 § 476,466
Metra station parking lots 686,742 -
Stormwater piping and construction 1,472,891 -
Land purchase easements 799,500 9,168
Construction fence/silt fence 26,010 585
Public works 500,000 -
Prairie Lawn Closing 150,000 -
Thomas Place - 178,974
Miscellaneous restoration 647,000 77,070
Contingencies 1,962,360 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $44616,034 §$17,167,616

(Sce independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GLEN LAND SALES FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income b 2,000 § 1,675,933
Miscellaneous
Land sales - 8,919,398
Total revenues 2,000 10,595,331
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 45,725,000 44,842 356
Total expenditures 45,725,000 44,842 356
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (45,723,000) (34,247,025)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) (1,000,000)  (6,117,794)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,000,000) (6,117,794)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE _$(46,723,000) {40,364.819)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 35,429,622
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 $ (4.935,197)

(See independent auditor's Teport.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
2001 PROJECT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment mcome $ 302,500 § 288,249
EXPENDITURES
None - -
Total expenditures - -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 302,500 288,249
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) (17,867,806) (17,803,419)
Total other financing sources (uses) (17,867,806) (17,803,419)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $(17.565.306) (17,515,170)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 22,140,363
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $§ 4,625,193

(See independent auditor's report.)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Foreign Fire Insurance Fund - to account for a tax on insurance premiums assessed on insurance
companies located outside of the State of Tllinois that provide coverage to homes and businesses
within the Village.

1llinois Municipal Retirement Fund - to account for the revenues and expenditures associated
with providing disability and pension benefits for Glenview employees. This fund also provides
the employer with a portion of F.1.C.A. contributions.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund - to account for the activities thvolved with street maintenance and
construction. Financing is provided by the Village’s share of state gasoline taxes. State law
requires these gasoline taxes to be used to maintain streets.

Refuse and Recycling Fund - to account for the financial activity of the community wide
recycling program. The program is designed to license and monitor prime scavenger services
operating in the residential arcas of the Village. Their activities will mainly be involved with the
collection and disposition of recyclable items.

911 Communications Fund - to account for the activity of the 911 emergency service system.
Financial activity began in 1990 and the system became operational in 1992,

GNAS Redevelopment Fund - to account for the resources and expenditures incurred in the
developmerit of the Glenview Naval Air Base land.

GNAS Caretaker Fund - to account for the resources and expenditures related to the Village's
custodial arrangement with the U.S. Navy regarding caretaking of the Glenview Naval Air Base.

Escrow Deposit Fund (formerly expendable trust funds) - to account for the funds placed on
deposit with the Village by building contractors working within the Village’s limits. Interest
carned on escrow deposits is annually transferred to the Corporate Fund.

Deposit Fund (formerly expendable trust funds) - to account for money on deposit with the
Village being held on a temporary basis, such as security deposits for use of the Village’s
equipment.

Police Department Special Account Fund (formerly expendable trust funds) - to account for
funds received from the Illinois State Police office to be used in various types of investigations.



Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1996 Fund - This issue in the amount of $8,435,000 was sold
to finance General Obligation Bond Anticipation Bonds that matured in 1996.

Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1998 Fund - These issues in the amounts of $10,000,000 of
Series A and $24,400,000 of Series B were sold to finance the development of the Glenview
Naval Air Base.

Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2000 Fund - This issue in the amount of $4,970,000 was sold
to finance various capital improvements throughout the Village.

Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 2001 Fund - This issue in the amount of $41,800,000 was sold
to finance the development of the former Glenview Naval Air Station.

General Obligation Refunding Bond Series of 2002 Fund - This issue in the amount of
$6,885,000 was sold to refund the Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1993 and 1994.

General Obligation Refunding Bond Series of 2003 Fund - This issue in the amount of
$9,990,000 was sold to refund the Corporate Purpose Bond Series of 1992 and 1996.

Capital Projects Fund - to account for revenues and expenditures involved with all other capital
improvements throughout the Village.

Bond Fund Series of 1993 Fund - to account for the proceeds received from the Corporate
Purpose Bond Series of 1993.

2000 Project Fund - to account for the funds dertved from the 2000 General Obligation Bond
1ssue.

2003 Project Fund - to account for the funds derived from the 2003 General Obligation Bond
issue.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2003

Special Revenue

Foreign Tlinots Refuse
Fire Municipal Motor and
Insurance Retirement Fuel Tax Recyeling
ASSETS I
Cash 5 73,599 § 095,529 3§ 209,186 § 17,604
Investments - 500,000 R 2,024,142 .
Receivables
Property taxes - 606,796 - -
Other - - - 90,193
Deposits - - - -
Due from other governments - - 96,328 -
Due from other funds - - - - .
TOTAL ASSETS 3 73,599 § 1202325 § 305,514 § 2,131,939
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 8 - 5 135,344 3§ - b 14,595 .

Accrued payroll - - - -

Refundable deposits - - - -

Other payables - 44 - -

Due to other funds 750 - - -

Advance to other funds - - - -

Deferred property taxes - 606,796 - - .
Total liabilities 750 742,184 - 14,595

FUND BALANCES I

Reserved for street improvements - - 305,514 -

Reserved for deposits - - - -

Reserved for debt service - - - -

Reserved for employee benefits - 460,141 - -

Reserved for public safety 72,849 - - -

Reserved for capital development - - - -

Unreserved - - - 2,117,344 .
Totel fund balances (deficit) 72,849 460,141 305,514 2,117,344 l
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES b3 73,599 § 1202325 § 305,514 § 2,131,939 I
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l Special Revenue
Police
Department
' 911 GNAS GNAS Escrow Special
Communications Redevelopment  Caretaker Deposit Deposit Agcount
$ 176,952 § 10,016 8 416 8 466,105 § 22,142 § 21,815
l 400,000 - - 3,163,469 400,000 -
32,020 - - - - -
l - - - 194,283 - -
3,263 31,000 - 240 1,300 24,602
' § 612,235 § 41,016 § 416 § 3,824,097 § 423442 % 46.417
$ 11,483 § 103,749 3§ 162,529 § 136,171 % 1,465 § -
- - - 3,559,410 362,241 -
- 1,293 - - - -
I 58,357 8,352 2,248 1,172 300 -
' 69,840 113,354 165,331 3,696,753 364,006 -
- - - 127,344 59,436 -
' 542,395 - - - - 46,417
I - (72,378) {164,915) - - -
542,395 (72,378) (164,915) 127,344 59,436 46,417
3 612235 § 41016 % 416 § 3,824,057 § 423442 % 46,417
I (This statement is continued on the following pages.)
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"VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2003

Debt Service
Corporate Corporate Corporate Corporate
Purpose Purpose Purpose Purpose
Bond Series Bond Series Bond Series Bond Series
of 1996 of 1998 of 2000 of 2001
ASSETS

Cash § - s 6,676 & 6,004 3 3,970
Investments - - - -
Receivables

Property taxes - - - -

Other - - - -
Deposits - - - -
Due from other governments - - - -
Due from other funds - . - - -

TOTAL ASSETS ¥ - by 6,676 & 6,004 § 1,970
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 338 % - g - $ -

Accrued payroll - - - -

Refundable deposits - - - -

‘Other payables - - - -

Due to other funds - - - -
Advance to other funds - - - .
Deferred property taxes - - - -

Total liabilities 338 - - -

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for street improvements - - - -
Reserved for deposits - - .
Reserved for debt service - 6,676 6,004 1,970
Reserved for employee benefits - - - -
Reserved for publie safety - - - -
Reserved for capital develepment - - - -

Unreserved {338) - _ - -
Total fund balances (deficit) (338) 6,676 _ 6,004 3,970
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES 5 - b 6.676 § 6,004 % 3,970

-87-




I Debt Service Capital Projects
General Corporate
Obligation Purpose Bond
l Refunding Bond Bond Series Capital Fund 2000 2003
- Series of 2002 of 2003 Projects Series of 1993 Project Project Total
$ 6,176 % 3970 & 1,119,855 § 95221 % 42,993 % 76,720 $ 2,454,949
l 1,650,000 - 8,435,537 550,000 3,549,875 250,000 20,323,023
1,744,430 - - - - - 2,383,246
- - 450,424 - - - 540,617
l - - - - - - 194,283
- - - - - - 96,328
- - 21,493 - - 47,187 129,085
' § 2,800,606 8 3970 § 10,027,309 § 645221 § 3592868 % 373,907 % 26,121,531
. $ - b - 3 533935 8 95,829 % 64,800 § 70,540 § 1,330,778
Il - - - - - - 554
- - 177,945 - - - 4,099,596
‘ 5,069 - - - - - 6,406
l - 47,487 434,152 4,073 - - 556,891
- - 1,614,109 - - - 1,614,109
1,744,430 - - - - - 2,351,226
' 1,749,499 47 AR7 2,760,141 99,502 64,800 70,540 9,959,560
l - - - - - - 305,514
- - - - - - 186,780
1,051,107 - - - - - 1,067,757
l - - - - - - 460,141
- - - - - - 661,661
. - - 7,267,168 545,319 3,528,068 303,367 11,643,922
l ! (43,517) - - - - 1,836,196
1,051,107 (43,517) 7,267,168 545,319 3,528,068 303,367 16,161,971
$ 2.800.606 § 3970 § 10,027,309 § 645221 § 3,592.868 § 373907 § 26,121,531
. See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Special Revenue

Foreign Nlinois Refuse
Fire Municipal Motor and
Insurance Retirement Fuel Tax Recycling
REVENUES
Taxes % 48,164 & 532,437 % - -
Intergovernmental - - 1,250,755 -
Charges for services - - - 1,119,539
Fines and forfeitures - . - -
Investment income 239 7,553 1,480 25,060
Miscellaneous
Other - . - -
Total revenuves 48,403 539,990 1,252,235 1,144,599
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government - 862,823 - 890,209
Public safety 15,091 - - -
Debt service
Principal - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - - -
Capitat outlay - - R -
Total expenditures 15,091 862,823 - 890,209
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 33,312 (322,833) 1,252,235 254,390
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Bonds issued - - - -
Payments to escrow agent - - - -
Discount on bonds issued - - - -
Transfers in - 207,385 - -
Transfers (out) - - (1,190,300) -
Transfers in - component unit - 107,088 - -
Transfers (put ) - component unit - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - 314473 (1,190,300} -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 33,312 (8,360) 61,935 254,390
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JANUARY | 39,537 468,501 243,579 1,862,954
Prior period adjustment - - - -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1, RESTATED 39,537 468,501 243,579 1,862.954
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 $ 72,849 5 460,141 § 305514 5 2117344
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Special Revenue

Potlice
Department
911 GNAS GNAS Escrow Special
Communications Redevelopment  Caretaker Deposit Deposit Account
k3 - - - - 5 - -
615,846 - . - - -
- - - - - 24,602
3,632 426 450 61,946 3,609 110
- 3,162 10,136 - - 10,926
619,478 3,528 10,586 61,946 3,609 35,638
- 1,621,370 1,432,933 - - -
263,151 - - - - 15,406
263,151 1,621,370 1,432,933 - - 15,406
356,327 {1,617.842) (1,422,347) 61,946 3,609 20,232
- 1,580,000 1,345,000 - -
{131,370) {38,000} {29,050) {(80,000) - -
(131,370} 1,542,000 1,315,950 (80,000) - -
224,957 (75.842)  (106,397) (18,054) 3,609 20,232
305,842 (50,806) (58,518) 145,398 55,827 26,185
11,596 54,270 - - - -
317,438 3,464 (58,518) 145,398 55,827 26,185
s 542395 (72.378) §  (164.915) § 127.344 % 59436 % 46.417

(This statement is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (Continued})
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Debt Service

Corporate Corporate Corporate Corporate
Purpose Purpose Purpose Purpose
Bond Series  Bond Seties Bond Series Bond Series
ol 1996 of 1998 of 2000 of 2001
REVENUES
Taxes 3 - g - Y - g -
Intergovernmental - - - -
Charges for services - - -
Fines and forfeitures - - - -
Investment income 40 95 118 321
Miscellaneous
“Other - - - -
Total revenues 40 95 118 321
EXPENDITURES
Current
General governrment - - - -
Public safety - - - -
Debl service
Principal 810,000 1,450,000 - 500,000
Interest and fiscal charges 151,696 1,441,776 219,935 1,694,850
Capital outlay - - - -
Total expenditures 961,656 2,891,776 216,935 2,194,850

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

‘OVER EXPENDITURES

(961,656) (2,891,681} (219817} (2,194,529)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bonds 1ssued
Payments 1o gscrow agent
Discount on bonds issued

947,993 2,885,988 219,335 2,137,125

Transfers in

Transfers {(out) - - - -

Transfers n - component unit - - - -

Transfers (out ) - component unit - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) 947,993 2,885,988 219,335 2,137,125

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (13,663} (5,693) (482) (57,404)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1 13,325 12,369 6,486 61,374

Prior period adjustment - - -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1, RESTATED 13,325 12,369 6,486 61,374
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 § (338 § 6676 % 6004 % 3970
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Debt Service Capital Projects
General Corporate
Obligation Purpose Bond
Refunding Bond Bond Series Capital Fund 2000 2003
Series of 2002 of 2003 Projects Series of 1993 Project Project Total
£ 1,803,693 § - - $ - - - 2,384,294
- - 1,962,456 - - - 3,213,211
. - - . - - 1,735,385
- - 2,950 - - - 27,552
27317 340 200,297 19,819 130,860 7,686 491,398
- - 16,999 3,900 - 45,063
1,831,010 340 2,182,702 23,719 130,860 7,686 7,896,903
- - - - 4,807,335
- - - - - - 293,648
1,755,000 185,000 - - - - 4,700,000
113,075 105,213 - - - - 3,726,545
- - 6,445,504 1,051,466 64,800 759.400 8,321,170
1,868,075 260,213 6,445,504 1,051,466 64,800 759,400 21,848,698
37,065} (289,873) (4,262,802) (1,027,747 66,060 {751,714)  {13,951,795)
- 5,015,000 - - - 1,135,000 6,150,000
- (4,767,130) - - - - (4,767,130)
- - - . - {79,919) (79,919
132,804 197,675 3,743,300 - - - 13,396,605
- (199,189) (20,980) - - - (1,688,889)
- - 113,159 - - - 220,247
- - {123,540} - - - (123,540)
132,804 246,355 3,711,939 - - 1,055,081 13,107,374
95,739 43,517} {550,863) (1,027,747} 66,060 303,367 {844,421}
955,368 - 7,818,031 1,573,066 3,462 008 - 16,940,526
- - - - - - 65,866
955,368 - 7.818,031 1,573,066 1,462,008 . 17,006,392
5 1,051,107 § (43.517) § 7.267.168 § 545319 & 3528068 & 303,367 § 16,161,571

See aceompanying noies to financial staternents.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOREIGN FIRE INSURANCE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Foreign fire insurance tax b 40,000 § 48,164
Investment income _ - 239
Total revenues 40,000 48,403
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Contractual services - 15,091
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 40,000 33,312
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 39,537
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 8 72,849

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes - current § 515,000 § - 506,938
Property taxes - prior 500 5,499
Replacemernt taxes 20,000 20,000
Investment income 4,000 7,553
Total revenues 539,500 539,990
EXPENDITURES
(General government
Contractual services 862,000 862,823
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (322,500) (322,833)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 207,385 207,385
Transfers in - component unit 107,088 107,088
Total other financmg sources (uses) 314,473 314,473
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (8.027) (8,360)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 468,501
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 460,141

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Intergovermmental $ 1,146,600 $ 1,250,755
Investment income 250 1,480
Total revenues 1,146,850 1,252,235
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 60,000 -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,086,850 1,252,235
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 700,000 -
Transfers (out) _ - (1,190,300)
Total other financing sources (uses) 700,000 (1,150,300)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE § 1,786.850 61,935
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 243,579
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 305514

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
REFUSE AND RECYCLING FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,088,125 § 1,119,539
Investment income 26,000 25,060
Total revenues 1,114,125 1,144,599
EXPENDITURES
General government
Contractual services 105,000 144,450
Materials and supplies 76,500 28,744
Other 880,000 717,015
Total expenditurcs 1,061,500 _ 890,209
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 52,625 254,390
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 1,862,954
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 2,117,344

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

911 COMMUNICATIONS FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 475,000 § 615,846
Investment income 2,500 3,632
Total revenues 477,500 619,478
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Personal services 176,188 105,030
Contractual services 145,737 88,881
Materials and supplies 151,850 835
Other 108,455 68,405
Total expenditures 582,230 263,151
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (104,730) 356,327
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) {131,370) (131,370)
Total other financing sources (uses) (131,370} {131,370)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $  (236,100) 224,957
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 305,842
Prior period adjustment 11,596
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1, RESTATED 317,438
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 §  542.395

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GNAS REDEVELOPMENT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income $ 600 $ 426
Miscellaneous - 3,102
Total revenues 600 3,528
EXPENDITURES
General government 2,154,116 1,621,370
Total expenditures 2,154,116 1,621,370
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (2,153,516)  (1,617,842)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 1,580,000
Transfers (out) (38,000) (38,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (38,000) 1,542,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (2,191,516} (75,842)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1 (50,806)
Prior period adjustment 54,270
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1, RESTATED 3,464
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 $  (72.378)

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GNAS REDEVELOPMENT FUND
ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Administration
Personal service $ 697229 § 696,469
Contractual services 1,026,795 491,724
Material and supplies 37,500 46,050
Other charges 357,592 342,699
Capital outlay 35,000 44,428
TOTAL EXPENDITURES _§ 2,154,116 § 1.621.370

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GNAS CARETAKER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

REVENUES
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Final
Budget Actual

$ 100 § 450
- 10,136

100 10,586
2,508,801 1,432,933
2,508,801 1,432,933
(2,508,701)  (1,422,347)

- 1,345,000
(29,050) (29,050)
(29,050) 1,315,950
$ (2,537,751) (106,397)
(58,518)
§ (164915)




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GNAS CARETAKER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Overhead
Personal service $ 26,500 $ 2,238
Contractual services 18,000 39,135
Matcrial and supplies 6,000 2,340
Capital outlay 125,000 115,972
Other 169,221 159222
Total overhead 344 721 318,907
Street maintenance
Personal service 55,947 1,549
Contractual services 85,000 104,582
Material and supplies 5,500 305
Total street maintenance 146,447 106,436
Traffic
Persenal service 26,500 26,036
Contractual services 24,000 43,582
Material and supplies 1,000 11,863
Capital outlay - 19,111
Other 63,500 §9,057
Total traffic 115,000 169,649
Storm water management
Personal sérvice 61,947 20,697
Contractual services 75,000 -
Material and supplies 10,300 17.660
Other 4,000 4,000
Total storm water management 151,247 42,357
Snow and ice contro}
Personal service 57,000 3,866
Contractual services 50,000 -
Material and supplies 33,000 15,940
Total snow and ice control 140,000 19,806

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GNAS CARETAKER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Achual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Forestry
Personal service 5 23,000 § 3,787
Contractual services 1,500 1,229
Material and supplies 7,400 1,392
Total forestry 31,900 6,408
Grounds
Personal service 17,000 4,092
Contractual services 363,000 117,028
Material and supplies 8,000 4,452
Capital outlay 3,700 3,993
Total grounds 396,700 129,565
(reat park maintenance
Personal service 52,000 31,811
Contractual services 408,000 262261
Matenial and supplies 33,500 18,311
Capital outlay 6,000 4307
Other 41,200 28,058
Total great park maintenance 540,700 344748
Lake management
Personal service 27,420 61,510
Contractual services 34,000 2,452
Material and supplies 7,000 31
Other 26,000 1,154
Total lake management 94,420 65,147
Prairie management
Personal service 15,500 244
Contractual services 38,500 5,382
Material and supplies 22,000 4,302
Other 7,000 -
Total prairie management 83,000 9,928

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GNAS CARETAKER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Water distribution system
Personal service
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Other

Total water distribution system
Sanitary sewer system
Personal service
Contractual services
Matenal and supplies
Capital outlay
Total sanitary sewer system
Parking deck system
Contractual services
Other

Total parking deck system

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Final
Budget Actual

$ 109,920 § 95,611
2,600 9,409
215,200 57,770
1,000 61
328,720 162,851
60,946 20,274

1,000 -
4,000 3,313
- 1,000
65,946 24,587
70,000 14,189
- 18,355
70,000 32,544
§ 2,508.801 § 1432533




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ESCROW DEPOSIT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

REVENUES
[nvestment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
None

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers (out)

Total financing sourc

es (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Original
and Final
Budget Actual
$ 100,000 % 61,946
100,000 61,946
100,000 61,946
{100,000} (80,000}
(100,000} (80,000)
Ny - (18,054)
145,398
§ 127344




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEPOSIT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income $ - $ 3,609
Total revenues - 3,609
EXPENDITURES
None - -
Total expenditures - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - 3,609
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 55,827
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 59,436

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
POLICE DEPARTMENT SPECIAL ACCOUNT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures $ 1,500 $ 24,602
Investment income 100 110
Miscellaneous - 10,926
Total revenues 1,600 35,638
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Other charges 7,500 15,406
Total expenditures 7,500 15,406
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (5,900) 20,232
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 26,185
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 46,417

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CORPORATE PURPOSE BOND SERIES OF 1996 FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income $ 2,600 § 40
Total revenues 2,600 40
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal 810,000 810,000
Interest and fiscal charges 264,(_)48 151,696
Total expenditures 1,074,048 961,696
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES {1,071,448) (961,656)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,073,448 947,993
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,073,448 947,993
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 2.000 (13,663)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 13,325
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 3 (338)

(See independent auditor's report. )
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l VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
l SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
I CORPORATE PURPOSE BOND SERIES OF 1998 FUND
l For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
. Final
Budget Actual
' REVENUES
' Investment income b 15,250 §$ 95
Total revenues 15,250 85
I EXPENDITURES
- Debt service
l Principal 1,450,000 1,450,000
; Interest and fiscal charges 1,442,376 1,441,776
‘ Total expenditures 2,892,376 2,891,776
l EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES.
OVER EXPENDITURES (2,877,126)  (2,891,681)
l OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,889,976 2,885,988
. Total other financing sources (uses) 2,889,976 2,885,988
l NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 12,850 (5,693)
, FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 12,369
.I
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 3 6,676

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS )
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND l
CHANGES TN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CORPORATE PURPOSE BOND SERIES OF 2000 FUND I
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 '
Final l
Budget Actual .
REVENUES
Investment income $ 500 $ 118 '
Total revenues 500 118
EXPENDITURES '
Debt service 5
Interest and fiscal charges 220,935 219,935 '
Total expenditures 220,935 219,935 '
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (220435)  (219,817) .
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -
Transfers in 219,335 219,335 '
Total other financing sources (uses) 219,335 219,335 I
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 {1,100) (482)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 6,486 l
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 g 6,004 I\

{(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CORPORATE PURPOSE BOND SERIES OF 2001 FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

REVENUES
Investment income

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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Final
Budget Actual

$ 3,100 $ 321
3,100 321
500,000 500,000
1,694,850 1,694,850
2,194,850 2,194,850
(2,191,750)  (2,194,529)
2,194,250 2,137,125
2,194,250 2,137,125
$ 2.500 (57,404)
61,374

$ 3.970




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, [LLINOIS ,
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND '
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND SERIES OF 2002 FUND I
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 '
Final .
Budget Actual .
REVENUES )
Taxes
Property $ 1,735271 § 1,803,693
Investment income 500 27,317 .
Total revenues 1,735,771 1,831,010 '
EXPENDITURES '
Debt service
Principal 1,755,000 1,755,000 l
Interest and fiscal charges 113,075 113,075
Total expenditures 1,868,075 1,868,075 '
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (132,304) (37,065) '\.
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) l
Transfers in 132,804 132,804 '
Total other financing sources (uses) 132,804 132,804 l
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 500 95,739 I
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 955,368 |
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 1,051.107 I
(See independent auditor's report.) .
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CORPORATE PURPOSE BOND SERIES OF 2003

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income 5 - $ 340
Total revenues - 340
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal - 185,000
Interest and fiscal charges - 105,213
Total expenditures - 290,213
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES - (289,873)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds issued - 5,015,000
Payment to escrow agent. - (4,767,130)
Transfers in - 197,675
Transfers (out) - (199,189)
Total other financing sources (uses) - 246,356
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - {43,517)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 -
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 .8 (43517

(See independent auditor's repert.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

- o

Final
Budget Actual l
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 1,000 § 1,962,456
Fines and forfeitures - 2,950
Investment income 202,500 200,297 .
Map sales 500 16,999 .
Total revenues 204,000 2,182,702 '
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 2,386,000 6,445,504 l
Total expenditures 2,386,000 6,445,504 _
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES l
OVER EXPENDITURES (2,182,000)  (4,262,802) !
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 3,743,300 3,743,300 I
Transfers in - component unit 160,000 113,159 ‘
Transfers (out) (1,075,000) (20,980)
Transfers (out) - component unit - (123,540) "
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,828,300 3,711,939
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 646,300 (550,863)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 7,818,031
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 7.267,168

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BOND FUND SERIES OF 1993

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income 5 10,500 § 19,819
Miscellaneous - 3,900
Total revenues 10,500 23,719
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 1,588,310 1,051,466
Total expenditures 1,588,310 1,051,466
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (1.577.810)  (1,027,747)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 1,573,066
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 ~§ 545319

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
2000 PROJECT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income $ 100,500 § 130,860
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 2,250,000 64,800
Total expenditures 2,250,000 64,800
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (2,149,500 66,060
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 3,462,008
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $  3.528.068

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
2003 PROJECT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income 3 - $ 7,686
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay - 759,400
Total expenditures - 759,400
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES - (751,714)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds issued - 1,135,000
Discount on bonds issued - (79,919)
Total other financing sources (uses) - 1,055,081
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - 303,367

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 -

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31

&3

303.367

(See independent auditor's report.)
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MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Waterworks Fund - to account for the provision of water service to the residents of Glenview.
All activity necessary to provide such services is accounted for in this fund including, but not
limited to, administration (Director of Public Works), operation, maintenance, financing and
related debt service and billing and coliection.

North Maine Water and Sewer Fund - to account for all financial activity related to the Village
providing water and sewer service to an unincorporated area southwest of the Village. This area
was formerly served by the North Suburban Public Utilities Company.



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS ‘
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES '
IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL i
WATERWORKS FUND l
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 '
Final '
Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES '
Charges for services
Water charges § 7,073,792 § 8.244,809
Water meter repatr charges - 448 l
Water connection charges 105,000 121,597
Water melers and remote readers 75,000 78,157 :
Miscellaneous '
Late payment fees 60,000 82,313
Water meter supplies - 140,398 -
‘Water for construction 25,000 36,436 '
Recapture agreements 10,000 1,801
Other 30,000 33,776 ’
Total operating revenues 7,378,792 8,739,735
OPERATING EXPENSES '
Administration 2,474,295 624,164
Operations 3
Supply and metering 3,150,800 3,031,155 I
Pumping station - east 278,300 208,499
Pumping station - west 178,450 146,468 '
Distribution systemn 897,802 922,805 l
Overhead 454,723 478,516
Depreciation - 748,533 I
Total operating expenses 7,434 370 6,160,140
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (55,578) 2,579,595 .
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) l
Intergovernmental - 1,165,984
Investment income 38,500 55,241
Total non operating revenues (expenses) 38,500 1,221,225 I
(This schedule is continued on the following page.) l
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
WATERWORKS FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

AND TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
Transfers €out)

Total transfers in (out)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1
Prior period adjustment
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1, RESTATED

NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31

$ (17078} $ 3,800,820

(949.432) (1,494,432

(949.432)  (1,494,432)

(966,510) 2,306,388

- 393,581

§  (966,510) 2,699,969

18,439,075
9,641,939
28,081,014

$ 30.780.983

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -

-\- - N

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATERWORKS FUND .
For the Year Ended Decernber 31, 2003 ‘
Final
Budget Actual .
ADMINISTRATION
Contractunal services $ 101,350 § 33,020 |
Materials and supplies 1,500 731
Capital outlay 1,795,000 81,633
Other 576,445 508,780 l
Total administration 2,474,295 24,164
OPERATIONS '
Supply and metering '
Personal services 134,000 125,076
Contractual services 143,000 41,182 .
Water purchase 2,764,800 2,786,577
Materials and supplies 109,000 - 78,320
Total supply and metering 3,150,800 3,031,155 .
Pumping station - east
Personal services 70,500 50,450 '
Contractual services 52,450 38,544
Materials and supplies 12,350 10,082
Capital outlay 24,000 24,163 I
Other 119,000 85,260
Total pumping station - east 278,300 208,499 '
Pumping station - west
Personal services 60,350 34,331 I
Contractnal services 27,700 13,640
Materials and supples 12,400 10,781
Capital outlay 16,000 - .
Other 62,000 87,716
Total pumping station - wesl 178,450 146,468 '
Distribution system
Personal services 547,302 444,268
Contractual services 302,000 250,635 l
Materials and supplies 28,500 225,131
Capital outlay 12,000 2,237 _
Other 8,000 534 '
Total distribution system B97,802 922,805
(This schedule is continued on the following page.) .
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
WATERWORKS FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

OPERATIONS (Continued)
Overhead
Personal services
Contractual services
Materials arid supplies
Capital outlay
Other

Total overhead

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION

{See independent auditor's report.)
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Final
Budget Actnal
$ 287473 § 312,627
33,850 42,091
32,100 25,643
65,000 19,524
36,300 78,631
454,723 478,516
$ 7434370 § 5,411,607
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NORTH MAINE WATER AND SEWER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Water charges $ 5719300 § 6,339,863
Sewer charges 365,000 375,585
Miscellaneous
New water meters - 9.630
Late payment fees 30,000 79,349
Other - 1,925
Total operating revenues 6,114,300 6,806,352
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 537,339 436,062
Operations
Supply and metering 3,995,300 3,417,802
Pumping station 89.400 134,694
Distribution system 1,320,150 397911
Collection system 157,200 65,609
Depreciation and amortization - 201,307
Total operating expenses 6,099,389 4,653,385
OPERATING INCOME 14911 2,152,967
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 17,500 i6,021
Interest expense (379,307) (389,383)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (361,807) (373,362)
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFEERS {346,896) 1,779,605
TRANSFERS IN {OUT)
Transfers in 60,000 87,231
Transfers {out) (573,500) {573,500}
Total transfers in (out) {513,500) {486,269)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $  (860.396) 1,293,336
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 {235,976)
NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 £ 1,057,360

(See independent auditor's report.)
-122-



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NORTH MAINE WATER AND SEWER FUND

Far the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Fmal
Budget Actua]
ADMINISTRATION
Personal services § 153867 § 76,278
Contractual scrvices 104,500 61,337
Material and supplies 9,500 41,348
Bond and note principal 334 852 404,851 .
Capital outlay - 37,057
Other 269,472 220,042
72,191 840,913
Less nonoperating expenses
Bond and note principal paid (334,852) (404,851
Tetal administration 537,339 436,062 '
OPERATIONS '
Supply and metering
Personal services 124,200 80,773 .
Coantractus)] services 3,655,100 3,219,570 |
Material and supplies 10,000 23,862
Capital autlay 206,000 93,597 .
Total supply and metering 3.995,300 3,417,802
Purfiping station
Personal services 22,300 92,762
Contractual services 54,000 29,563
Material 4nd supplies 3,100 2,347
Other 10,000 10,022 l
Total pumping station 89,400 134,694
Distribution system l
Personal services 132,400 152,438 ‘
Contractual serviees 124,000 102,577
Material and supplies 48,750 32,737
Capital outlay 1,011,000 108,526 I
Other 3,000 1,633
Total distribution systern 1,320,150 397,911 l
Collection system )
Personal services 48,800 14,413
Contractual scrvices 24,000 36,180 '
Material and supplies 9,400 11,714
Capital outlay 75,000 3,302
Total collection system 157,200 65,609 l
Total aperations 5,562.050 4,016,016
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES l
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION § 6.099.389 § 4.452,078
(See ndependent sudilor's report.) |:
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Wholesale Water Fund - to account for the provision of water service to the Illinois American
‘Water Company enabling the private utility to receive Lake Michigan water.

Sewerage Fund - to account for the funds necessary to provide sanitary sewer service to both
incorporated and unincorporated Village of Glenview customers.

Commuter Parking Lot Fund - to account for the activity involved with, but not limited to, the
administration (Finance Director), sale of permits and maintenance of the commuter parking
facilities within the Village.




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, [LLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

December 31, 2003

‘Wholesale Comrmuter
Water Sewerage Parking Lot Tatal
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash § 288550 § 522965 % 82,907 § 894,422
Investments 425,000 200,000 842,287 1,467,287
Receivables
Accounts (net) 136,870 424,051 - 560,921
Other - 459 - 459
Due from other governmenis - - 467,931 467,931
Advance to other funds - 116,972 - 116,972
Due from other funds - 8,274 2 8,276
Deferred bond issuance costs - 46,891 - - 46,891
Total current assets 897,311 1,272,721 1,393,127 3,563,159
CAPITAL ASSETS
(Capital assets being depreciated 2,512,633 8,561,210 216,592 11,290,435
Accumulated depreciation (677,275)  (2.334,680) (190,828) (3,202,783)
Net capital assets 1,835,358 6,226,530 25,764 8,087,652
Total assets 2,732,669 7,499,251 1,418,851 11,650,811
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 70,640 17,343 7,005 94,996
Accrued payroll 785 6,117 - 6,902
Interest payable 12,603 - - 12,603
Due to other funds - 133,305 - 133,305
Deferred revenue - - 18,269 18,299
Current portion of general
obligation bonds payable 180,000 - - 180,000
Total current liabilities 264,034 156,767 25,304 446,108
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
(General obligation bonds payable 1,615,000 - - 1,615,000
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,615,000 - - 1,615,000
Total liabilities 1,879,034 156,767 25,304 2,061,105
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 40,358 6,226,530 25,764 6,292,652
Unrestricted 813,277 1,115,954 1,367,823 3,297,054
TOTAL NET ASSETS § 833635 § 7342484 § 1353587 § 9,589,706

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-§25-



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINCIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
NONMAJGR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Wholesale Commuter
Water Sewerage Parking Lot Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Water and sewer charges ¥ 1,709,155 § 1,238,645 § - 5 2,947,800
Water and sewer connection charges - 9,020 - 9,020
Parking decals and meter fees - - 294,965 294,965
Late payment fees - 4,733 - 4,733
Migcellaneous - - 5,752 5,752
Total operating revenues 1,709,155 1,252,398 300,717 3,262,770
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration - 74,450 132,475 207,125
Operations 910,545 409,208 55868 1,375,621
Depreciation and amortization 66,995 151,703 8,132 226,830
Total vperating expenses 977.540 635,561 196,475 1,809,576
OPERATING INCOME 731,615 616,837 104,242 1,452,694
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 8,178 3,641 10,162 21,981
Interest and fiscal charges {60,533) - - (60,533)
T otal nonoperating revenues (expenses) (52,355) | 3,641 10,162 {38,552)
NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS
AND CONTRIBUTICNS 679,260 620,478 114,404 1,414,142
TRANSFERS IN (QUT)
Transfers in 30,000 - 20,980 50,980
Transfers (our) (307,200) (426,092} {45,450} (778,782)
Total transfers in (out) (277,200)  (426,092) (24,510) (727,802)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 402,060 194,386 £9,894 486,340
Contributions - 775,617 967,931 1,743,548
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 402,060 970,003 1,057,825 2,429 B8R
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 451,575 3,879,344 335,762 4,666,681
Prior period adjustment - 2,493,137 - 2,493,137
NET ASSETS, JANUJARY 1, RESTATED 451,575 6,372,481 335,762 7159818
NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 $ 853,635 % 7342484 5§ 1,393.587 § 9.589.706

See accompunying notes to finaneial staterments.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

- N B =

‘Wholesale Commuter
Water Sewerage Parking Lot Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipis from customers and usérs $ 1,681,861 & 1.201,343 § 294963 § 3,178,167
Receipts from miscellanous revenues - - 5,751 5,751
Payments to suppliers (966,621% (96,685) (191,497 {1,254,803)
Payments to emplovees {15,526} (290,810) (16,500} (322,836)
Net cash from operating activities 699,714 813,848 92,717 1,606,279
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interfund transfers (277,200) (426,092) (24,510} (727,802)
Net cash from noncapital financing activities (277 200 (426,002) (24.510) (727,802)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments (125,000) - - (125,000}
Interest and fiscal charges (62,602) - - (62,602)
Net cash from captial and related financing activities (187,602} - - (187.602)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 8,178 3,641 10,162 21,981
Purchase of investments (265,000) (200,000) {157,344) (622,344)
Net cash from investing activities (256,822) (196,359 (147,182) (600.363)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (21910) 191,397 (78,975) 90,512
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1 310,460 331,568 161,882 803,910
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 3 288550 % 522965 § 82907 3§ 804422

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income § 731615 & 616,837 § 104242 & 1,452,694
Adjustments o reconcile operating income 10 net
cash from operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 66,995 151,703 8,132 226,830
Changes in current assets and liabilities
Aecounts receivable 3,528 251,547 - 255,075
Due from other funds - {201,978) 2) (201,980)
Deferred bond issnance costs (46,891) - - {46,891
Unamortized bond discount 16,070 - - 16,070
Other assets - {459) - {459)
Accounts payable (71,251) 11,377 (18,604) {78,478)
Acerued payroll 785 6,117 - 6,902
Due 1o other funds (1,137) (21296) (1,051 (23,484)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES F 699714 3 813.848 % 92,717 § 1606279
NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Contributions of eapital assets b - 3 775617 % 967931 § 1743548

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-127 -




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WHOLESALE WATER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales $ 1,230,040 § 1,709,155
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations
Supply and metering 836,954 825,854
Pumping station 78,700 83,852
Distribution system 5,060 839
Depreciation and amortization - 66,995
Total operating expenses 920,714 977,540
OPERATING INCOME 309,326 731,615
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 16,000 8,178
Interest expense (271,525) (60,533)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (255,525) (52,355)
NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 53,801 679,260
TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
Transfers in 30,000 30,000
Transfers (out) (307,200) (307,200)
Total transfers in (out) (277,200) (277,200)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS § (223399 402,060
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 451,575
NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 $ 853,635

(See independent auditor's reportt.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WHOLESALE WATER FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
OPERATIONS
Supply and metering

Contractual services $ 827,000 $ 814,180

Material and supplies 500 -
Capital outlay - 3,268
Other 9,454 8,406
Total supply and metering 836,954 825,854

Pumping station
Personal services 17,500 15,472
Contractual services 1,200 923
Material and supplies 1,500 470
Other charges 58,500 66,987
Total pumping station 78,700 83,852
Distribution system

Personal services 2,060 839

Contractual services 3,000 -

Bond principal 145,000 -
150,060 839

Less nonoperating expenses (145,000) -
Total distribution system 5,060 839

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION $§ 920,714 § 910,545

(See independent anditor's repart. )
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YILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINCIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SEWERAGE FUND

Far the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budpet Actral |
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Lease fees S 10,000 5 -
Sewer charges 923 747 1,238,645
Sewer connection charges 15,000 9,020
Late payment fees 7,500 4,733
Total operating revenues 956,247 1,252,398
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 487,530 74,650
Operations
Pumping station 94,243 83,414
Coilection 257,744 325,794
Depreciation = 151,703
Total operating expenses 836917 635,361
OPERATING INCOME 116,330 616,837
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 5,000 3,641
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses} 5,000 3,041
NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS
AND CONTRIBUTIONS 121,330 620,478
TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
Transfer {out) (96,092} (426,092)
Total transfers in (out) (96,092) (426,092)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFOQRE CONTRIBUTIONS 25,238 194,386
Contributions - 775,617
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS § 25238 970,003
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 3,879,344
Prior period adjustmerit 2,493,137
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1, RESTATED 6,372,481
NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 § 7.342.484

{See independent auditor’s report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SEWERAGE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
ADMINISTRATION
Other h) 14,250 § 8,052
Insurance 43,680 43,680
Capital outlay 430,000 22918
Total administration 487,930 74,650
OPERATIONS
Pumping station
General
Personal services 8,400 4,232
Contractual services 2,000 1,203
Municipal equipment repair 45,267 36,210
Capital equipment replacement 20,276 20,276
Total general 75,943 61,921
Heatherfield lift station
Personal services 8,400 16,389
Contractual services 5,800 1,125
Material and supplies 4,100 3,979
Total Heatherficld lift station 18,300 21,493
Total pumping station 94,243 83,414
Collection system
Personal services 177,664 276,306
Contractual services 29,800 37,365
Material and supplies 29,300 10,442
Other 20,980 1,681
Total collection system 257,744 325,794
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 839917 § 483838

(See independent auditor's report.)
-132 -
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
I SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
l COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Final
l Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
I Charges for services
Meter fees A 50,000 § 78,362,
Parking decals 207,000 216,603
l Miscellaneous 6,000 5752
Total operating revenues 263,000 300,717
' OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 202,930 132,475
.. Operations 74,650 55,868
L Depreciation - 8,132
l Total operating expenses 277,580 196,475
OPERATING INCOME (LQOSS) {14,580) 104,242
' NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 3,000 10,162
l. Total nennoperating revenues (expenses) 3,000 10,162
l NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (11,580) 114,404
TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
Transfers in - 20,980
Transfers (out) (55,490) (45,490}
l Total transfers i (out) (55,490) (24,510)
) CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE CONTRIRUTIONS (67,070) 89,894
l- Centributions. - 967,931
l CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $  (67,070) 1,057,825
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 335,762
' NET ASSETS, DECEMEER 31 § 1,393,587
l (See mdependent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
ADMINISTRATION
Personal services $ 25,130 % 13,995
Contractual services 79,500 61,308
Material and supplies 13,400 8,399
Other charges 82,900 48,773
Capital outlay 2,000 -
Total administration 202,930 132,475
OPERATIONS
Personal services 22,500 2,506
Contractual services 37,950 50,032
Material and supplies 14,200 2,678
Capital outlay - 652
Total operations 74,650 55,868
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION $ 277580 & 188,343

(See independent auditor's report.)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Mounicipal Equipment Repair Fund - to account for the costs of repairing and maintaining all
vehicles of the Village. These costs include labor, material, fuel and fixed overhead of the
Village’s repair facility.

Insurance Fund - to account for the financial activity of the Village’s entire insurance program.
In addition to conventional primary insurance, the Village is a member of the High-Level Excess
Liability Pool (HELP), which provides excess liability coverage. Also, the Village provides
health and life insurance by participating in the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative
(IPBC).

Capital Equipment Replacement Fund (formerly a capital projects fund) - to account for the
funds annually set aside for the eventual replacement of certain capital equipment.




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

December 31, 2003

Municipal Capital
Equipment Equipment
Repair Insurance Replacement Total
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 3 85217 % 316,803 § 399,156 & 1,001,176
Inivestments - 2,275,000 9 448.564 11,723,564
Receivables
Accounts, net 448 7,194 - 7,642
Due from other funds 727 - - 727
Deposits - 1,086,692 - 1,086,692
Total current assets 86,392 3,685,689 10,047,720 13,819,801
CAPITAL ASSETS
Cost 55,958 - - 55,958
Accumulated depreciation {19,985) - - (19,985)
Net capital assets 35,973 - - 35,973
Total assets 122,365 3,685,689 10,047,720 13,855,774
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 55,375 14,576 45,641 115,592
Accrued payroll 125 - - 125
Claims payable - 365,064 - 365,064
Deferred revenue - 5,153 - 5,153
Due to other funds 170,654 1,034 28,012 199,700
Advance to other funds - - 1,045,180 1,045,180
Other payables - 81,448 - 81,448
Total liabilities 226,154 467,275 1,118,833 1,812,262
NET ASSETS
I[nvested in capital assets,
net of related debt 35,973 - - 35,973
Unrestricted (139,762) 3,218,414 8,528,887 12,007,539
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ (103,78%) § 3218414 § 8928887 § 12043512

See accompanying notes to financial staterents.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, [LLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations
Depreciation
Capital outlay
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income
‘Gain on sale of capital assets
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS IN (QUT)
Transfers {out)

Total transfers in (out)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT}, DECEMBER 31

Municipal Capital
Equipment Equipment

Repair Insurance Replacement Total
$ 898,526 § 4,602,504 3 1,619,148 § 7,120,178
83,424 - 1,500 84,924
981,950 4,602,504 1,620,648 7,205,102
1,144,664 5,117,551 - 6,262,215
7.994 - - 7,994
- - 1,655,867 1,655,867
1,152,658 5.117,551 1,655,867 7,926,076
{170,708) {515,047) (35,219) {720,974}
362 195,390 141,787 337,539
- - 163,620 163,620
362 195,390 305,407 501,159
{170,346) (319,657) 270,188 (219,813}
(22,250) - - (22,250)
(22,250) - - (22.250)
(192,596) (319,657) 270,188 (242,065)
88.807 3,538,071 8,658,699 12,285,577
$ (103.789) § 3218414 § B928887 § 12,043,512

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLTNOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from interfund servicss
Payments to suppliers
Pavments to emplovees

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL.
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interfund transfers

Net cash from noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
None

Net cash from capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest recetved
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Net cash from investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMREER 31

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating incomc (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in assets and liabilitics
Accounts receivable
Deposils
Dnye from other funds
Accounts payable
Accrued payrall
Claims payabie
Other pavables
Due to other funds

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Municipal Capital
Equipment Equipment
Repair Insuranee Replacement Total

5 141877 §F 296,679 § 1,500 & 440,056
821,695 4,150,367 1,619,148 6,591,210
(653,546)  (4,924,848)  (1.649,.850) (7,228.244)
(291,428) ; - (291,428)
18,598 {477,802) (20,202)  (488.406)
(22,250) - - (22,250)
(22.250) - - {22,250.00)

362 195,525 141,787 337,674
- (105,000) (3,927 {108,927)

- - 163,620 163,620

362 90,525 301,480 392,367

(3,290) (387.277) 272,278 {118,289)
88,507 704,080 326,878 1,119,465

by 85217 3 316.803 % 599.156 § 1.001,176
$ (170,708) § (515047) §  (35.219) §  (720,974)
7,994 - - 7,994

4276 (1,952) . 2,324

- (153,372) . (153,372)

54,176 - - 54,176
(28,537) 4,582 (20,118) (44,073)

126 - - 126

- 188,479 - 188,479

- (1,526) y (1,526)

151,271 1,034 26.135 178,440

5 18598 5§ (477.802) § (29.202) § (488.406)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



' VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
i SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
I MUNICIPAL EQUIPMENT REPAIR FUND
I For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
l Final
Budget Actual
' OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,195583 §% 898,526
l Insurance recoveries 10,000 -
Miscellaneous 75,000 83,424
' Total operating revenues 1,280,583 981,950
l OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations 1,165,321 1,144,664
ﬁ Depreciation - 7,994
Total operating expenses 1,165,321 1,152,658
l OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 115,262 (170,708)
l NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 3,250 362
l Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 3,250 362
l NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 118,512 (170,346)
_ TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
l Transfers (out) (22,250) (22,250)
' Total transfers in (out) (22,250) (22,250}
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS b 96,262 (192,596)
I NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 88,807
' NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 $ (103,789)
' (See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

MUNICIPAL EQUIPMENT REPAIR FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

OPERATIONS
Regular salanes
Overtime salaries
Temporary salaries
Longevity pay
FICA payment
Contractual professional services
Dues subscription membership
Maintenance of equipment
Maintenance of buildings
Accident repairs
Training
Village wide info systems
Uniform allowance
Fuel
Office and other supplies/tools
Maintenance supplies
Vehicles

Capital equipment and replacement

Insurance
Machinery and equipment

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Final

Budget Actual
$ 358800 § 261,478
12,000 8,188
12,000 21,888

5,000 -
29,700 15,435
5,500 12,674

40 -
108,000 132,681
10,500 10,393
20,000 49,626
2,000 3,968
- 2,170
5,000 4,701
260,000 282,837
230,100 119,528
3,000 118,586
- 4,244
13,000 13,000
65,831 63,831
24,850 19,436
§ 1.165321 § 1.144.664
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
INSURANCE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for services
Fund charges § 4477217 § 4,602,504
EXPENSES
Operations
Contractual professional services 5,000 3,037
Health and life insurance 475,000 540,223
Dental insurance 168,000 162,679
Excess liability 115,000 128,974
Unemployment benefits 30,000 4,458
(General insurance program 3,307,818 3,464,563
PTM policy 15,710 15,800
Property/casualty claims 500,000 732,920
Workers' compensation insurance 130,000 64,897
Total expenses 4,746,528 5,117,551
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (269,311) (515,047)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment income 51,500 195,390
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ (217.811) (319,657)
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 3,538,071
NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 § 3.218414

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,627,148 § 1,619,148
Miscellaneous
Auto reimbursements 1,500 1,500
Total revenues 1,628,648 1,620,648
EXPENSES
Capital outlay 2,161,350 1,655,867
Total expenses 2,161,350 1,655,867
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (532,702) (35,219)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment income 90,500 141,787
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 50,000 163,620
Total nonoperating revenues 140,500 305,407
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ (392.202) 270,188
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 8,658,699
NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 $ 8.928,887

(See independent auditor's report.)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Pension Trust

Police Pension Fund - to account for the resources necessary to provide disability and retirement
benefits to personnel of the Glenview Police Department.

Firefighters' Pension Fund - to account for the resources necessary to provide disability and
retirement benefits to personnel of the Glenview Fire Department.

Agency

Special Service Areas Fund - to account for various special service area bond issues.

Arbitrage Rebate Fund - to account for the recording and payment of any arbitrage rebates
payable.




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

December 31, 2003

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments, at fair value
U.S. Government and agency obligations
Mutual Funds
Insurance contracts

Total investments, at fair value
Due from other funds
Total assets

LIABILITIES
. Accounts payable

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS

Police Firefighters'

Pension Pension Totals
$ 216,882 § 442,108 § 658,990
26,871,948 41,582,350 68,454,208
4,621,099 2,252,206 6,873,305
2,485,042 914,598 3,369 640
33,078,089 44,749,154 78,727,243
358 - 358
34,195,329 45,191,262 79,386,591
1,200 1,200 2,400
$ 34,194,129 § 45,190,062 § 79,384,191

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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l VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
' COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
7 PENSION TRUST FUNDS
l' Far the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Police Firefighters'
l Pension Pension Total
ADDITIONS
l Contributions - employer § 680,190 § 581,665 § 1,261,855
Contributions - plan members 498,745 454 466 953,211
I Miscellaneous - 60 60
I Total contributions 1,178,935 1,036,191 2,215,126
Investment income
~Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair
I value of investments 2,582,185 310,583 2,892,768
Interest earned on investments 653,446 1,446,976 2,100,422
l Total investment income 3,235,631 1,757,559 4,993,190
“ Less investment expense (3,496) (4,642) (8,138)
. Net investment income 3,232,135 1,752,917 4,985,052
. Total additions 4,411,070 2,789,108 7,200,178
l DEDUCTIONS
Pensions and refunds 1,277,376 1,925,898 3,203,274
I Total deductions 1,277,376 1,925,898 3,203,274
' NET INCREASE 3,133,694 863,210 3,996,904
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
l PENSION BENEFITS
January 1 31,060,435 44,326,852 75,387,287
l December 31 $ 34194129 § 45,190,062 § 79.384.19]
l- See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 146 -




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
POLICE PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Final
Budget Actual
ADDITIONS
Contributions - employer $ 685,000 $ 680,190
Contributions - employees 485,000 498,745
Total contributions 1,170,000 1,178,935
Investment income
Net appreciation {depreciation) in
fair value of investments - 2,582,185
Interest earned on investments 652,000 653,446
Total investment income 652,000 3,235,631
Less investment expense (18,000) (3,496)
Net investment income 634,000 3,232,135
Tota] additions 1,804,000 4,411,070
DEDUCTIONS
Retirement pension 1,140,564 1,122,161
Widow pension 120,995 120,996
Disability pension 34,219 34,219
Total deductions 1,295,778 1,277,376
NET INCREASE $ 508,222 3,133,694
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS
January 1 31,060,435
December 31 $§ 34.194.129

(See independent auditor's report.)
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' VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
l SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
l FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND
I For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
' Final
Budget Actual
' ADDITIONS
Contributions - employer $ 585,000 $ 581,665
Contributions - employees 440,000 454,466
' Miscellaneous - 60
l Total contributions 1,025,000 1,036,191
Investment income
l Net appreciation (depreciation) in
fair value of investments - 310,583
l Interest earned on investments 1,402,000 1,446,976
Total investment income 1,402,000 1,757,559
l Less investment expense ~ (18,000) (4,642)
Net investment income 1,384,000 1,752,917
I Total additions 2,409,000 2,789,108
l DEDUCTIONS
- Retirement pension 1,489,116 1,569,865
Widow pension 50,851 50,851
l Disability pension 262,722 305,182
' Total deductions _ 1,802,689 1,925,898
NET INCREASE $ 606.311 863,210
' NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS
' January 1 44,326,852
. December 31 $ 45.190.062
I {See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

All Funds

ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables - property taxes
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Arbitrage payable
Due to bondholders

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Special Service Areas Fund
ASSETS
Cash

Investments
Recetvables - property taxes

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to bondholders

Arbitrage Rebate Fund

ASSETS
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Arbitrage payable

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Balances Balances
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31
54,401 - 47,671 % 6,730
- 50,000 - 50,000
125,436 - 886 124,550
4,700 - 4,700 -
184,537 50,000 53,257 § 181.280
4,700 - 4,700 3 -
179,837 2,329 886 181,280
184,537 2,329 5.586 § 181,280
54,401 - 47,671 § 6,730
- 50,000 - 50,000
125,436 - 886 124,550
179,837 50.000 48,557 § 181,280
179.837 2,329 886 5 181.280
4,700 - 4,700 3 -
4,700 - 4700 §% -
4,700 - 4700 § -
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COMPONENT UNIT

Component Unit (Library Fund) - to account for the resourees necessary to provide the
educational, cultural and recreational activities of the Glenview Public Library.



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND BALANCE SHEET
COMPONENT UNIT - LIBRARY FUND

December 31, 2003

Modified Statement
~ Accrual Adjustments of Activities
ASSETS

Cash $ 526,712 § - 3 526712
Investments 1,056,103 - 1,056,103

Receivables
Property taxes 4,630,790 - 4,630,790
Capital assets - 2,837,271 2,837,271
TOTAL ASSETS § 6213605 § 2,837271 § 9,050,876

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE/

NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 84,484 § - $ 84,484
Accrued payroll 38,622 - 38,622
Deferred property taxes 4,630,790 - 4,630,790
Due to primary government 56,247 - 56,247
Due in more than one year - 81,547 81,547
Total liabilities 4,810,143 81,547 4,891,690
FUND BALANCE/NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - 2,755,724 2,755,724
Restricted for culture and recreation - 1,403,462 1,403,462
Unreserved 1,403,462 (1,403,462) -
Total fund balance/net assets 1,403,462 2,755,724 4,159,186
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE/NET ASSETS $ 6.213.605 § 2.837.271 § 9.050,876

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMPONENT UNIT - LIBRARY FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Original and
Final Statement
Budget Actual Adjustments  of Activities
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes - current $ 433189 § 4289542 § - $ 4,289,542
Property taxes - prior - 38,487 - 38,487
Replacement taxes 29,000 29,000 - 29,000
Intergovernmental
Per capita grant 41,847 - - -
Make-whole payment 125,000 135,021 - 135,021
Charpes for services 92,835 90,850 - 90,850
Fines and forfeits. 70,000 60,785 - 60,785
Investment income 24,700 15,348 - 15,348
Miscellaneous -
Donations - 33,585 - 33,585
Other 500 51,203 - 51,203
Total revenues 4,715,771 4,743,821 - 4,743,821
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation 4,338,802 4,291,958 87,454 4,379,412
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 376,969 451,863 (87,454) 364,409
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - primary government - 123,540 - 123,540
Transfers (out) - primary government (279,738) (232.897) - (232.897)
Total other financing sources (uses) (275.738) (109,357) - (109,357)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 97.231 342,506 (87,454) 255,052
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 984,541 2,919,593 3,904,134
Prior period adjustment 76,415 (76,415) -
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1, RESTATED 1,060,956 2,843,178 3,904,134
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 1403462 § 2755724 § 4.159.186

{See mdependent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMPONENT UNIT - LIBRARY FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

CULTURE AND RECREATION

Regular salaries

Part time salaries

Overtime salaries
Temporary salaries

Legal and professional fees
Public information
Electronic resources

Printing, binding and publication

Utilities

Postage ‘
Telephone and telegraph
Dues and subscriptions

Maintenance of equipment and vehicles

Maintenance of buildings
Maintenance supplies
General insurance
Training

Employee welfare
Trustee

Director expenses
Librery programs
ADA compliance
Office supplies
Computer supplies
Processing supplies
Circulation supplies
Audio visual supplies

Books, pamphlets and materials

Periodicals

Audiovisual

Micro-form

Video tapes

Uniforms

Cataloging

Contingencies

Other operating expenses
Machinery and equipment
Municipal equipment repair
Insurance

Building improvements
F.I1.C.A. payments
Miscellancous

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Original
and Final
Budger Acmal

$ 1,572,877 % 1,457,267
861,983 546,395
- 82,137
- 271,780
35,000 29,529
25,650 16,758
95,950 92,611
7,500 11,794
9,460 10,652
21,700 18,025
30,000 22,039
5,546 7.085
137,814 119,861
92,858 113,330
- 32
49,800 50,547
52,230 30,999
- 606
4,300 5,523
1,000 1,385
31,020 34434
500 272
19,500 16,262
- 4,457
13,150 1,835
12,375 8512
12,250 26,904
457,500 414,544
53,275 43,854
65,100 44,183
40,800 41,207
25,950 20,571
- 58
41,800 26415
1,000 878
- 11,932
31,800 137,498
- 572
338,114 338,114
- 49,646
179,000 179,850
12,000 1,608
§ 4,338,802 3 4,291,958
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

GENERAL FUND

TAXES
Property taxes - current
Property taxes - prior
Utility tax - mobile services
Utility tax - N. 1. Gas
Utility tax - Commonwealth Edison
Utility tax - telecommunications
Amusement tax
Hote! roomt tax

Total taxes

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Business
Liquor
Pet
Building permits
Certificate of occupancy
Contractors fees
Plumbing and sewer
Driveway permits

Total licenses and permits

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
(Glenbrook Fire Protection District
Replacement taxes
Sales tax
Illinois income tax
Photo use tax
Road and bridge
Road and bridge - prior

Village of Golf Fire Protection Services

Miscellaneous intergovernment
Make-whole payment

Total intergovernmental

Original and
Final

Budget Actual
$ 5,903,320 $ 5,822,896
50,000 53,570
- 23,536
600,000 959,944
1,800,000 1,893,425
1,725,000 2,910,237
- 15,151
600,000 702,335
10,678,320 12,381,094
65,000 66,739
90,000 57,950
5,000 1,920
1,800,000 1,370,118
52,200 29,735
50,000 64,436
64,800 69,265
10,000 11,391
2,137.000 1,671,554
2,260,000 2,245,157
94,609 104,067
8,300,000 10,830,776
2,910,000 2,593,235
395,000 377,023
200,000 215,597
2,000 2,664
130,000 127,336
332,500 146,064
325,000 322,478
14,949,109 16,964,397

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Fire communications
Plan review fees
Reinspection fees
Elevator inspection fees
Planning fees
Electrical mspection
Engineering fees
Unclassified public works
Other service charges
Lease fees
Dog impounding fees

Total charges for services

FINES AND FORFEITS

INVESTMENT INCOME

Investment income
Total investment income

OTHER REVENUES
Infrastructure maintenance fee
Franchise tax - cable TV
Nicor franchisg tax
Map sales
Land sales
Miscellaneous

Total other Tevenues

TOTAL REVENUES

(See independerit auditor's report.)
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Original and
Final
Budget Actual

$ 210,000 $ 255,629
270,000 87,117
17,000 35,946
13,000 16,920
10,000 6,734
69,341 85,059
350,000 215,487

10,000 -
10,000 59,549
220,000 258,057
3,000 1,195
1,182,341 1,021,693
200,000 181,384
360,000 155,307
360,000 155,307
- 9,796
250,000 270,713
37,500 37,425
150 595

400,000 -
62,500 648,453
750,150 966,982
$ 30.256,920 § 33.342411




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Board of Trustees
Special board
Legal
Emergernicy Service Disaster Agency
Viliage Manager
Finance
Information systems management
Personnel and insurance
Cable TV

Total general government

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police department
Fire department
Printing

Total public safety

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS .
Development and public services

Adminjstration
Planning and zoning
Engineering
Public health
Buildings and grounds
Building inspection

Total development and public services

Public works
Administration
Overhead
Street maintenance
Traffic
Storm water management
Snow and ice control

Forestry
‘Grounds

Total public works
Total highways and streets

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Original and
Final

Budget Actual
§ 36,780 35,034
668,051 255,382
278,900 396,467
6,350 3,951
584,386 592,866
1,402,833 1,845,181
574,207 623,220
3,989,415 3,985,948
111,843 96,626
7,652,765 7,834,675
9,104,787 8,943,667
9,179,399 9,257,905
58,950 41475

18,343,136 18,243,047

372,304 409,091
261,990 219,999
989,133 923,660
248,194 243,322
258,960 224,839
1,035,415 1,086,978
3,165,996 3,107,889
323919 323,282
1,695,253 1,526,792
273,820 515,304
418,800 455,528
216,100 115,338
553,200 333,839
293,660 538,465
230,810 167,160
4,005,562 3,975,708
7,171,558 7,083,597

§ 33167459 § 33,161,319

(See independent auditor's rcport.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINCIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Original and
Final
Budget Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Board of Trustees
Personal services $ 9,000 ¢ 9,788
Contractual services 6,000 17,204
Material and supplies 2,000 385
Other 19,780 7,657
Total Board of Trustees 36,780 35,034
Special board
Contractual services 268,051 252,712
Material and supplies - 1,201
Capital outlay 400,000 1,469
Tota] special board 668,051 255,382
Legal
Contractual services 275,100 394,653
Material and supplies 3,800 1,812
Total legal 278,900 396,467
Emergency Service Disaster Agency
Contractual services 4 650 3,951
Material and supplies 1,700 -
‘Total emergency service disaster agency 6,350 3,951
Village Manager
Personal services 481,275 493,547
Contractual services 79,500 81,856
Material and supplies 6,165 5,795
Other 17,446 11,668
Total Village Manager 584,386 592,866

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Finance

Personal services

Contractual services

Material and supplies

Other

Capital outlay

Total finance

Information systems management
Personal services
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Other
Capital outlay

Total information systems management

Personnel and insurance
Personal services
Contractual services

Material and supplies
Other

Total personnel and insurance

Cable TV department
Personal services
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Other
Capital outlay

Total cable TV department

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Original and
Final

Budget Actual
$ 681,020 3 676,645
634,870 1,124,901
36,300 30,972
50,643 11,287
- 1,376
1,402,833 1,845,181
142,903 134,573
245354 268,637
11,300 31,327
24,450 62,985
150,200 125,698
574,207 623,220
78,418 85,197
85,445 59,093
750 295
3,824,802 3,841,363
3,989,415 3,985,948
59,956 61,676
7,000 6,952
9,150 7418
12,237 5,094
23,500 15,486
111,843 96,626

$ 7,652,765 § 7.834,675

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Original and
Final
Budget Actual
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police department
Personal services § 7096655 § 7,027,375
Pension 685,000 680,190
Contractual services 264,300 286,838
Material and supplies 193,900 157,145
Other 181,550 165,331
Capital outlay 26,400 16,433
Equipment repair and replacement 656,982 610,355
Total police department 9,104,787 8,943,667
Fire department
Personal services 7,090,654 7,350,604
Pension 585,000 581,665
Contractual services 408,063 353,659
Material and supplies 206,772 209,654
Other 121,598 122,542
Capital outlay 134,350 112,965
Equipment repair and replacement 632,962 526,816
Total fire department 9,179,399 9,257,905
Printing
Contractual services 750 2,389
Material and supplies 26,200 22475
Other 32,000 16,611
Total printing 58,950 41,475
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY $ 18343136 § 18.243,047

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
- 158 -




VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

GENERAL FUND

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS

Development and public service
General
Personal services
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Equipment repair and replacement
Other

Total general

Planning and zoning
Personal services
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Other

Total planning and zoning

Engineering
Personal services
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Other
Equipment repair and replacement
Capital outlay

Total engineering

Public health
Personal services
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Equipment repair and replacement
Other

Total public health

Original and
Final
Budget Actual
$ 344299 358,828
16,960 35,521
1,300 887
7,345 12,502
2,400 1,353
372,304 409,091
166,690 123,347
89,300 91,810
1,500 1,429
4,500 3,413
261,990 219,999
858,671 805,633
64,460 41,023
8,700 8,344
7,370 13,504
49,932 52,089
- 3,067
089,133 923,660
223,103 227,781
2,775 891
4,400 917
13,376 9,816
4,540 3,917
248,194 243,322

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Original and
Final
Budget Actual
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS (Continued)
Development and public service (Continued)
Buildings and grounds
Personal services by 33,760 § 32,793
Contractual services 135,700 121,298
Material and supplies 11,500 13,784
Capital outlay - 403
Other 78,000 56,561
Total buildings and grounds 258,960 224,839
Building inspection
Personal services 922,131 938,643
Contractual services 28,160 49,765
Material and supplies 12,900 12,966
Equipment repair and replacement 44,624 40,546
Other 27,600 45,058
Total building inspection 1,035,415 1,086,978
Total development and public service 3,165,996 3,107,889
Public works
Administration
Personal services 294,634 279,094
Contractual services 19,435 15,150
Material and supplies 9,850 10,153
Capital outlay - 268
Other 19,900 18,617
Tota] administration 323,919 323,282
Overhead
Personal services 702,321 640,836
Contractual services 57,400 69,126
Material and supplies 36,950 32,030

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Original and
Final
Budget Actual
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS (Continued)
Public works (Continued)
Overhead (Continued)
Capital outlay § 824432 3% 711,806
Other 74,150 72,994
Total overhead 1,695,253 1,526,792
Street maintenance
Personal services 223,560 459,397
Contractual services 32,000 5,519
Material and supplies 18,260 50,388
Total street maintenance 273,820 51 5,304_
Traffic
Personal services 108,000 162,024
Contractual services 180,000 185,636
Material and supplies 2,500 1,946
Other 128,300 105,922
Total traffic 418,800 455,528
Storm water management
Personal services 146,000 58,107
Contractual services 36,000 5,375
Material and supplies 32,600 48,216
Capital outlay - 2,140
Other 1,500 1,500
Total storm water management 216,100 115,338
Snow and ice control
Personal services 325,200 167.640
Contractual services 11,000 20,100

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS (Continued)
Public works (Continued)
Snow and ice control (Continued)
Material and supplies
Capital outlay

Total snow and ice controi

Forestry
Personal services
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Capital oullay

Total forestry
Grounds

Personal services
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Other

Total grounds

Total public works

TOTAL HIGHWAYS AND STREETS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Origina] and
Final
Budget Actual
$ 182,000 § 131,084
35,000 15,015
553,200 333,839
269,060 524,015
13,600 6,547
11,000 7,273
- 630
293,660 538,465
97,260 71,182
110,000 71,964
23,550 22,208
- 1,806
230,810 167,160
4,005,562 3,975,708
$ 7.171,558 8 7.083.597




LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES OF 1997

December 31, 2003

Date of Issue

Aupust 15, 1997

Date of Maturity December 1, 2017
Authorized Issue $ 6,175,000
Actual Issue 5 5,000
Interest Rates Bonds
001-717 4.875%
718-792 4.900%
792-1235 5.000%
Interest Dates June 1 and December 1
Principal Maturity Date December 1
Payable at American National Bank and
Trust Company of Chicago
FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Interest Due on
Fiscal Bond
Year  Numbers Principal Totals June 1 Amount December 1 Amouni
2004 239-288 5§ 250,000 § 71,420 § 321,420 2004 8§ 35710 2004 § 35710
2005 289-340 260,000 59,232 319,232 2005 29,616 2005 29,616
2006 341-395 275,000 46,556 321,556 2006 23,278 2006 23,278
2007 396-453 290,000 111,660 401,660 2007 55,830 2007 55,830
2008 454-514 305,000 19,014 324,014 2008 9,507 2008 9.507
2009 515-543 85,000 4,144 89,144 2009 2,072 2009 2,072
$ 1,465,000 8§ 312,026 § 1,777,026 8 156,013 ¥ 156,013

NOTE:

Debt service is payable from the North Maine Water and Sewer Fund.

Bonds numbered 544 through 1,235 were refunded with the proceeds of the 2003B G. O. Bonds

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
CORPORATE PURPOSE NOTES OF 1997

December 31, 2003

Date of Issue
Date of Matunty
Authorized Issue

September 2, 1997
September 1, 2019
$ 2,850,000

Actual Issue $ 1,425,000

Interest Rates 4.942%

Interest Dates September 1

Principal Maturity Date September 1

_Payable at North Suburban Public Utility
Overland Park, Kansas
FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Fiscal Requirements
Year Principal Interest Totals
2004 5 99,539 § 115838 § 215377
2005 104,459 110,918 215,377
2006 109,621 105,756 215,377
2007 115,039 100,338 215,377
2008 120,725 94,652 215,377
2009 126,691 88,686 215,377
2010 132,952 82,425 215,377
2011 139,523 75,854 215,377
2012 146,419 68,958 215,377
2013 153,655 61,722 215,377
2014 161,249 54,128 215,377
2015 169,219 46,158 215,377
2016 177,582 37,795 215,377
2017 186,359 29,018 215,377
2018 195,569 19,808 215,377
2019 205,221 10,143 215,364
§ 2343822 § 1,102,197 § 3,446,019

NOTE:  Debt service is payable from the North Maine Water and Sewer Fund.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES OF 19984

December 31, 2003

Date of 1ssue

November 1, 1998

Date of Maturity December 1, 2018
Authornized 1ssue 3 10,000,000
Actual Issue 3 5,000
Interest Rates Bonds
1-139 4.10%
140-389 4.15%
380-661 4.20%
662-957 4.25%
958-1278 4.30%
1279-2000 4.35%
Interest Dates June 1 and December 1
Principal Maturity Date December 1
Payable at American Natiohal Bank and
Trust Company of Chicago
FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Tax Levy Interest Due on
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount December 1  Amount
2004 b - $ 426440 § 426,440 2004 3 213,220 2004 § 213,220
2005 - 426,440 426,440 2005 213,220 2005 213,220
2006 - 426,440 426,440 2006 213,220 2006 213,220
2007 - 426,440 426,440 2007 213,220 2007 213,220
2008 - 426,440 426,440 2008 213,220 2008 213,220
2009 - 426,440 426,440 2009 213,220 2009 213,220
2010 - 426,440 426,440 2010 213,220 2010 213,220
2011 - 426,440 426,440 2011 213,220 2011 213,220
2012 695,000 426,440 1,121,440 2012 213,220 2012 213,220
2013 1,250,000 397,945 1,647,945 2013 198,973 2013 198,973
2014 1,360,000 346,070 1,706,070 2014 173,035 2014 173,035
2015 1,480,000 288,950 1,768,950 2015 144,475 2018 144,475
2016 1,605,000 226,050 1,831,050 2016 113,025 2016 113,025
2017 1,735,000 157,035 1,892,035 2017 78,518 2017 78,518
2018 1,875,000 81,563 1,956,563 2018 40,781 2018 40,782
§$10,000,000 $ 5335573 §157335573 ¥ 2,667,787 $ 2,667,788
NOTE: Debt service is payable from the Debt Service Fund using monies transferred from the GNAS

Redevelopment Fund.

{See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES OF 1998B

December 31, 2003

Date of Issue

January 1, 1999

Date of Maturity December 1, 2018
Authorized Issue $ 24,400,000
Actual Issue b 5,000
Interest Rates Bonds
1-154 4.250%
1515-2215 4.375%
2216-2589 4.400%
2590-4880 4.500%
Interest Dates June 1 and December 1
Principal Maturity Date December 1
Payable at American National Bank and
Trust Company of Chicago
FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Tax Levy Interest Due on
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount  December |  Amount
2004 % 1,510,000 § 951911 % 2.461,911 2004 3 475955 2004 $ 475955
2005 1,575,000 887,736 2,462,736 2005 443,868 2005 443 868
2006 1,640,000 820,799 2,460,799 2006 410,399 2006 410,399
2007 1,715,000 751,099 2,466,099 2007 375,550 2007 375,550
2008 1,790,000 676,068 2,466,068 2008 338,034 2008 338,034
2009 1,870,000 597,755 2,467,755 2009 298,878 2009 298,878
2010 1,955,000 515475 2,470,475 2010 257,737 2010 257,737
2011 2,050,000 427,500 2,477,500 2011 213,750 2011 213,750
2012 1,450,000 335,250 1,785,250 2012 167,625 2012 167,625
2013 1,000,000 270,000 1,270,000 2013 135,000 2013 135,000
2014 1,000,000 225,000 1,225,000 2014 112,500 2014 112,500
2015 1,000,000 180,000 1,180,000 2015 90,000 2015 90,000
2016 1,000,000 135,000 1,135,000 2016 67,500 2016 67,500
2017 1,000,000 90,000 1,050,000 2017 45,000 2017 45,000
2018 1,000,000 45,000 1,045,000 2018 22,500 2018 22,500
$ 21,555,000 § 6.908,593 § 28,463,593 ¥ 3,454,296 3 3,454,296
NOTE: Debt service is payable from the Debt Service Fund using monies transferred from the GNAS

Redevelopment Fund.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES OF 2000

December 31, 2003

Date of Issue
Date of Maturity

December 15, 2000
December 1, 2008

Authorized lssue $ 4,970,000
Actual Issue $ 5,000
Interest Rates Bonds
1-69 430%
70-795 4.40%
796-994 4.50%
Interest Dates June 1 and December |
Principal Maturity Date December 1
Payable at American National Bank and
Trust Company of Chicago
FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Tax Levy Interest Due on
Fiscal Bond
Year Numbers Principal Interest Totals June [ Amount  December ]  Amount
2004 ] - ¥ 219335 § 219,335 2004 % 109,668 2004 3 109,668
2005 1-69 345,000 219,335 564,335 2005 109,668 2005 109,668
2006  70-419 1,750,000 204,500 1,954,500 2006 102,250 2006 102,250
2007 420-795 1,875,000 127,500 2,002,500 2007 63,750 2007 63,750
2008  796-994 1,000,000 45000 1,045,000 2008 22,500 2008 22,500
$4,970,000 § 815670 § 5,785,670 $ 407,836 $ 407836
NOTE: Itis anticipated that the levies associated with this issue will be abated through 2004 transfers from the

General Fund. The bond proceeds will be used for infrastructure improvements throughout the Village,

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES OF 2001

December 31, 2003

Date of [ssue

Date of M

aturity

Aarthorized Issue
Actual Issue
Interest Rates

Interest Dates

Principal Matunity Date

August 1, 2001

December 1, 2012

$41,800,000
5 5,000
Bonds
1-200
201-1160
1161-5160
5161-6160
6161-7260

7261-8360

3.50%
3.75%
4.00%
4.125%
4.25%
4.35%

June 1 and December 1

December 1

Payable at American National Bank and
Trust Company of Chicago
FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Tax Levy Interest Due on
Fiscal Bond
Year  Numbers Principal [nterest Totals June 1 Amount  December 1  Amount
2004 101-200 % 500,000 3 1,676,750 § 2,176,750 2004 § 838,375 2004 £ 838375
2005  201-1160 4,800,000 1,659,250 6,459,250 2005 829,625 2005 829,625
2006 1161-2160 5,000,000 1,479,250 6,479,250 2006 739,625 2006 739,625
2007 2161-3160 5,000,000 1,279,250 6,279,250 2007 639,625 2007 639,625
2008 3161-4160 5,000,000 1,079,250 6,079,250 2008 539,625 2008 539,625
2009 4161-5160 5,000,000 879,250 5,879,250 2009 439,625 2009 439,625
2010 5161-6160 5,000,000 679,250 5,679,250 2010 339,625 2010 319,625
2011 6161-7260 5,500,000 473,000 5,973,000 2011 236,500 2011 236,500
2012 7261-8360 5,500,000 239,250 5,739,250 2012 119,625 2012 119,625
$41,300,000 § 9.444,500 $50,744,500 $4,722.250 - §$4,722.250
NOTE: Debt service is payable from the Debt Service Fund using monies transferred fram the GNAS Redevelopment

Fund.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS SERIES OF 2002

December 31, 2003

Date of Issue February 15, 2002

Date of Maturity December 1, 2005

Authorized Issue $ 6,885,000

Actual Issue ¥ 6,885,000

Interest Rates Bonds
2002 2.00%
2003 2.00%
2004 2.25%
2005 2.75%

Interést Dates June 1 and December 1

Principal Maturity Date December 1

Payable at American National Bank and

Trust Company of Chicago

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Levy Interest Due on

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount December ]  Amount

2004 % 1,805,000 § 98,860 $ 1,903,860 2004 5 49430 2004 $ 49430
2005 1,315,000 44,710 1,355,710 2005 22,355 2005 22355

3,120,000 § 143,570 $ 3,263,570 § 71785 $ 71,785

NOTE: Debt service is payable from the Debt Service Fund using mouies received from a property tax
revenues, as well as water and sewer revenues,

(See mdependent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES 2003A

December 31, 2003

Date of Issue April 1,2003
Date of Maturity December 1, 2012
Authorized Issue § 9,990,000
Denomination of Bonds $5,000
Interest Rates Bonds Rate
1-37 2.05%
38-240 2.45%
241-1,116 2.50%
1,117-1,185 2.65%
1,186-1,668 3.00%
1,669-1,998 3.10%
Interest Dates June 1 and December 1
Principal Maturity Date December |
Payable at American National Bank and Trust Co.
Chicago, IL

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Levy Interest Due On
Fiscal
Year Principal Tnterest Totals June 1 Amount  December 1 Amount
2004 § 1,015,000 § 267,024 § 1,282,024 2004 b 133,512 2004 5 133,512
2005 1,060,000 242,156 1,302,156 2005 121,078 2005 121,078
2006 1,085,000 215,656 1,300,656 2006 107,828 2006 107,828
2007 1,105,000 188,532 1,293,532 2007 94,266 2007 94,266
2008 1,130,000 160,906 1,290,906 2008 80,453 2008 80,453
2009 345,000 132,656 477,656 2009 66,328 2009 66,328
2010 455,000 123,600 578,600 2010 61,800 2010 61,800
2011 470,000 109,950 579,950 2011 54975 2011 54,975
2012 485,000 95,850 580,850 2012 47,925 2012 47,925
2013 500,000 81,300 581,300 2013 40,650 2013 40,650
2014 505,000 66,300 571,300 2014 33,150 2014 33,150
2015 525,000 51,150 576,150 2015 25,575 2015 25,575
2016 545,000 34,876 579,876 2016 17,438 2016 17,438
2017 580,000 17,980 597,980 2017 8,990 2017 8,990
$ 9,805,000 § 1,787936 § 11,592,936 § 893968 $ 893,968
NOTE: The proceeds of the 2003-A General Obligation Bonds were used to establish escrows to redeem portions

of the Series 1996 and 1997 Bonds and to provide new funds for the North Maine utility system and storm
water improvements. Principal and interest will be paid from Glen Redevelopment project revenues, the
North Maine utility system and Special Service Areas Number 36 and Number 37,

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS SERIES 2003B

December 31, 2003

Date of Issue April 1, 2003
Date of Maturity December 1, 2012
Authorized lssue $ 1,955,000
Denomination of Bonds $5,000
Interest Rates Bonds Rate
1-32 1.300% |
33-68 1.600% I
69-105 1.800%
106-142 2.000%
143-18G 2.400%
181-219 2.800%
220-260 3.200%
261-302 3.500%
303-346 3.800%
347-39] 3.850%
Interest Dates June 1 and December 1
Principal Maturity Date December 1
Payable at American National Bank and Trust Co.
Chicago, IL

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Levy Interest Due On

Fiscal
Year Prncipal Interest Totals Jupe | Amount  December ]  Amount

2004 § 180000 $ 50642 § 230,642 2004 $ 25321 2004 $ 25321

2005 185,000 47,762 232,762 2005 23,881 2005 23,881
2006 185,000 44,432 229,432 2006 22216 2006 22,216
2007 180,000 40,732 230,732 2007 20,366 2007 20,366
2008 195,000 36,172 231,172 2008 18,086 2008 18,086
2009 205,000 30,712 235,712 2009 15,356 2009 15,356
2010 210,000 24,152 234,152 2010 12,076 2010 12,076
2011 220,000 16,802 236,802 2011 8,401 2011 8,401
2012 225,000 8,662 233,662 2012 4,331 2012 4,331

$ 1,795,000 § 300,068 3 2,095,068 $ 150,036 $ 150,034

NOTE: The proceeds of the 2003B General Obligation Bonds were used to fully refund the Series 1992 Bonds.
Principal and interest will be paid from the Wholesale Water Fund.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
GOVERNMENT-WIDE REVENUES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

PROGRAM REVENUES
Charges for services $ 20,817,803
Capital grants 2,628,122
GENERAL REVENUES
Taxes ) 21,337,869
Intergovernmental 8,320,236
Investment income 3,034,448
Miscellaneous 1,012,998
Proceeds from capital assets 8,844,386
Contributions 2,137,129
TOTAL REVENUES $ 68,132,991

NOTE: The Village implemented GASB S-34 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.

Data Source

Village Records
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
GOVERNMENT-WIDE EXPENSES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government $ 33,557,816
Public safety 36,330,082
Highways and streets 27,460,955
Economic development 17,318,544
Interest 3,724,873
Total governmental activities 118,392,270

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTLIVITIES

Waterworks 6,160,140
North Maine Water and Sewer 5,042,768
Nonmajor enterprise 1,870,109
Total business-type activities 13,073,017
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 131,465,287

NOTE: The Village implemented GASB S-34 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003,

Data Source

Village Records

173 -




S pLL-

sp10aoy] adB[[IA
Somog eeg

"By ARIQIT - ] Juouodiio)) pue SPIM aotalag 1)3(] *enuaasy [e1aadg *Isuan) sSpupat] HION

EZILLIYO § LIOOLETH § 695°I80°0r § SIGTZTILE § S8ESTL'YE § TIPBOSYE § sLIBscee § ¥90°LzT0e § PTeTep'sT § 110°LE0LT § SHNNHATI TVIOL
PRILIOOT LOT'616 GELELLT 979'¢Ey EYETTET $ST'TLG LEG96] 0Z6'6TL'T GIB'RENT 850’1 SNOOTR[38TIA]
¥$5°956'T EI$°109 AN eFTEET'T TPO'PET T L9O'TRE LOT°8PE BET'16L 61888 650461 SLIOSUT JUSUT)SaAU]
TeL'69t 196'FLT 98¢ 88T 66 V8T LIEvPE 6EE°L6T 19€°LTE OFb 16T TSO%ELT £1£°708 $)13]10] PO SO
RZ6'LPRT RO9EPR'T BS66TRT BRZ'LTST ¢1Z°26T'T LTF196'T BLSSEE'T 669°GLL'T 8S9'8T8‘T 0660691 $30LAT36 10] SadTer)
PRZELLOT 9TE o191 TZS°0LS vl S6LFEE YT STTTSHET GLP'RELTI PTOEITS 6L5°TE6'E RLIGHTE 9LEPPEE [EJUSUILIDA0S Ia)u]
PEETLYT EBPCIHT 000°018'T REELELT 089°EET° 7ELISTE T F1T°LBOT 880°LEG'T 8SO°8C6 9zL'FSO'l sjmitad pue s2g1901]
BEB'PEO'ST § GIG'ESI'6L § CSPRCTLGT § OIS°0LTO1 § ErS'oplvT § TOL'TETST § vhe'6hLTz § 00L°0ITIT § OFSL61°0C $§ 665°688°61 § save],

£007 700T 1007 0007 6661 8661 o6l 9661 $661 ¥661 tea [wosy]

SIeax [BasI] Us] 188
HOMNOS AH SHNNAATT TYINANNIHAOD TV IHNHD

SIONI'T T MHIANT IO 40 HDOVTTIA



.

SGLT -

spaooay] adeIA
5AINGS AAC]
'100z7 w sjusunredap a1y pue solfod a1 Ul suoynqInUos UoTsuad Iafofdurs graydgany pue sorjod sir Jqf Sununosow urfaq sFv|IA AL «

"spun j A1eaqr] - Jun) jusuoduro) pue spun,J a0ialag jqa(] ‘anuasay [eisady ‘eIsllan sapnjou] HLON

16180 S § vLROSTOV § VIOLLOTY § S8ROBEYTr § veT'BIS'SS § SEZ6SHEs $§ E50°LpF0S § vPOTEFOF § TT1°80S°6T § TPI'SY9FT § SHANLIANIAXH TVIOL
SHSOTY'S $69°680'Y 99€°8LY'S 188°690°S 16612207 8P 065 7T YLETTOOT 599°67E°¢1 606 790°S TESFIOT 2014498 1431
BS6'T6ET'Y 060°006"c £89°8EL°E 991 8RY'E £LBLTTE 8r6°80T°E 88L'PERT 0L0°TY5'T LY 0E9T BRSOSFT UOTE3I05] PUE 21030y
- 016'41L 781908 185 E0F°T 06L°9SE] 190°0Fy'T 0ZTLRET £6TV9E°T ¥60'00T°7 TE6'E€80°'T » UCSUag
LESERO'L £FT'EET'D 075'568's £56'78EG LYF'YoL'S 8T 68EY LBO'$BT'S 9R8cLY'E 90t €L5°E LT6 APEE 519205 pus sfemT[3iq
$69°9£5°8T 01£vTE 91 9ES'BLEST LTT'POs el SLTBOOTI LIS'OCTTI £OT'89F 1T 1ZS'LEL 0T LES'TOS 0T SOLTLRG £3ayes oTignJ
QTLTFEOT § 99266601 § LTESLTOL § O0BEL'68L°TI § S6R'BEC'S § £166996 § 1790588 § ROOTPSL § TE90ECS § 6SIPSRY  § JusUIUIaA0F [BIAUL)
£00T 7001 1002 0007 6661 8661 L66Y 0661 S661 F661 Iea A [BosL|
SIea X [BOST] UaJ 1887

NOLLDONNA A" SHANLIANTJXE TVINTANYIAOD IVHUNAD

SIONITT "M HIANATO 40 OV TTIA



(This page is intentionally left blank.)




-oL1 -

%L0 66 %1066 %E8'86 %LYLE %T 66 A9LOTTIO) BOVINIDHA
PTREEO01  § 6£9°89L°01 § 12699201 § ILF PRL'E g 7T9°L95'6 3 SNOLLDHETI0D
0L9'EEL'OT § 15260 EPEOL80T §  O0RL0°1 1Z71'88¢01  § 06860 6TE°LLG'S § 0£96'0 SHO'ES9°G g 1920'( SNOISNILXT XV.L TV.ICL
PRIEET S110°0 P50z L6100 C6L SR LL10°0 TPSPOT L6100 165°L91 0810°0 puny uoisuag s3aSyan,
T60°T0F LPEOD 9LT'SLE 85€0°0 I#$°E0F #8£0°0 01S°LLE F9£0°0 ZE8°65¢ 98€0°0 pun nolsuag asfod
POPPLLT 62510 S8L'TRL ] £991°0 FoL 1L L 15210 88L°TET' L Q61170 LSE6LT'] £LE1°0 pun{ 3014188 1930
oPEPINE #3970 9£6°081°¢ 9£0£°0 9£6'081°¢ 8Z0E0 F6L'B01°E 100€°0 991°050°¢ FLTED pund A1e197
05E°196 #3700 909°08 ¢ $$50°0 8LZ°0L8 62800 CHT'LOE'T 32340) S69°6E1°1 £ZT10 pun, Juswaiay

[edIdrunpy stoul||]
00E'8bL'Y § Z60¥0 S68'06L°F S TLSKO LLLEEF'Y ¢ 17ZF0 005°959°¢ ¢ §Z5¢0 POE9S9°E § ST6E0 puny ajerodto)
SNOISNALXE X VL
junoury ey unowy »IBY unouy «1BY Junowy «1BY JUNOUTy elihl)
PO 1LE°091°1 § 978 LLLLPO'T § £ZL°80E0S0°T § LOS'GTO'9E0T § 866 3PS 16§ SNOLLVNTVA AdSSIssy
2661 L661 9661 $661 r661 Jeag AnoT xeL

sleaj [eosiq uaj ise]
SNOLLDATIOO ANY SNOISNHLXH ‘SALVY ‘SNOLLYIIVA QU$$ISSY XV ALAHd0¥d

SIONITT “MTIANTTO 10 FOVTTIA



_——

_——

YatD Ajuno) ay} jo 1o

30INoG BB

"UOTEN|RA PISSISSE Jo Q[ ¢ Jod are syjes xvy Ayodorg

ESaa——

%000 2299'66 %SL 86 UL R %8766
- s vzo'ozs'Tl 8§ ¥o6°81S° 11§ 996'CLETL § FPISHEI'TT 8
619°000°Cl 8§ SL6L0 P6LTISTL § STIBLO S09v99°1T  § LILLO SYT'STS 1T $ 88E60 &P SIZ'IT 8 6TZ60
000°05L 0500 000°6RS #9€0°0 000°0tS LSE0'0 609°82 981070 S50 68000
000°564 88700 000°589 9ZF0'D) 000°05¢ #9£0°0 503'63¢ 81€0'0 oT¥'8l€ 69200
169181 ¥ZI10 GRSTIR'I 82110 SHILLL TLITO L85°898°1 TIST0 L58°808°] 9ZS10
PIL'6OL'Y 976Z'0 GEB1ECY S69T0 00LEEP'E TLTT'O OvEv6T'E £897°0 OFEPILE 87920
000529 £8¢0'0 000°51¢ 0ZE0'0 000'00% 1£€0°0 000°0Z$ ¥Tr0°0 000°02S 8100
¥ST6TT'Y § ¥652°0 0ZEEE9'y § TRRTO 09%'698°%Y  § 1TTE0 ¥P8'CTTS ¢ SSTYO 00£°84¢'S § 66IFD
junoury <Y junowry u&mm unoury Y junouwsy PETER| Junowy =Y
IPELSTOE9 L $ TPTPIGL09°)L § 669TP9 116°1 § 007°9¢9°L7T°1 $ ELO°166°EVT1 §

TILOITTIOD HOVINIDHAd
SNOLLDATTIOO

SNOISNELXH XV1 TV.LOL

pung uolsuad sIdyaing
PUnJ UOISUI4 291j0]
puny asIAIag 193¢7
pung Areiqi

pun,f awWaInTy
{ediarungy soul((|
pun,j ajesodion

SNOISNALXH XV1

SNOLLYITYA JHSSHSSY

£00T

00T

1002

000z

6661

Jeaq AADT XE]J,

s189 X [eosid ua] Ise]

(panuiuo)) SNOLLOE110D ANY SNOISNALXH ‘SALYYH ‘SNOLLYITVA JASSASSY XV1 ALHdd0Nd

SIONITT ‘AHIANATO 40 20V 1TIA




-8L1-
AR Aymo] a1 Jo 010
ERIS el
nounedaq I9URUL] MITAUIL) JO 9ZE[TA ) Aq PAIETUTISH
EE€E ETS'ELL068FY  I¥BLST'OE9'T  £59°TS 9LT'FSI SLO6POTHI STO'ELE'OTE ETE'8T9'RIT'T *£00T
EEEE OTLTYSTL8Y  THTPIS'LO9T  §ST°08 £85°091 891696 6ET R0E°856°91€ BTE6PLOST'T 7002
£EEE L6O'BT6PESY  669°THO'TIST  SL1TC 016FPEl Z0IZEEOET £87°1L0'06C 62T'TBO'SR0'L 10027
EEEE 009'896'T89'E  00Z'959°LTTT  69E'PT 99L°TT1 TBIETTITEL SST'SLF'SST 8Z1°0T6 018 0002
EE'EE 6I0GLETEL'E  EL9'TI6G'EFT'T  §69°HT rFOETI TL9'E06'ZEL 6LLP68'BST £88'PF0°TS8 6661
EEEE ECIETIYIBFE  TFOTLEO9TT  §69°%C 9L8'971 LOO'LBSE0T POT0ER'BET 661°T08°L18 R661
E€EE BLV'EEE'OPT'E  9IRLLLOVOT 99T kL YL LEL EYYEYLY6 LBU'S06VIT OLE'BLS G EL L66T
EEEE 691°9Z6°0ST°E  E£TL'BOE0SO'T  SLOSTT 901°651 PSEBLY'LE 10S€56°912 LBS 9009EL 9661
E€EE 126°8S0°B01°E LOS'610°9E0°T  SLO'STIL 795°09 LTE'STL'96 1¥6°555°2TC 70979591L 5661
EE'EE 9TVLLT'LS6'TS THI'65L°686 §  FBTBII $ 8TF6E $ O0LTPS9'66 § O0BT'SOILIZ § 088'I¥8'859 § ve61
AN[EA [FIIDY anfes AEA uneq ﬁmoﬁ.—ﬂﬁ —,nmhm—-ﬁﬁ HmmoquEOU ﬁm._ﬁnmﬁ_mum ®ax
ParemNS TE)OL Jemoy possassy Ao
01 aneA pajeunsy oL Xe[,
passassy [ejoL
Jo oney
SIE3 A |BIST HB] ISE]

ALMHIOUd HTIVXV.L AQ HIYTVA TVILLOV AHLVINILSH ANV TISSHSSY

SIONITTI *MATANATD 40 FDVTTIA



{This page is intentionally left blank.)

i
i
|
A
|
|
|
|
i
'.
|
L
)
|
i
|
|
I
|




-6L1 -
LEOO 9¢00 9€0°0 14070 2€0°0 6£0°0 1#0°0 0F0'0 6£0°0 190 8T1€ LOBTSHOT0] a8pug pue peoy - diysuso] plRUYMON
600°0 100 ¥10°0 12070 61070 07070 T70°0 7200 L1070 L1100 8T'1E LOS'TSP B0 [e32100) - dIYSUMO], PJRIFYHON
£00°0 £00'0 £00°0 €000 £00°0 £00°0 $0070 S00°0) 90070 800'0 59'7 TSO'LOE 8L J0URISISS Y {RIAUIN) - diYsumo y SITIN
- - - - - - - - - - 597 TSOLOL'SL afipug pue peoy - diysumoy sajIN
££0°0 ££0°0 £€0°0 LEOO L£00 9€0°0 1#0°0 2E0'0 6£0°0 0r0°0 597 TS9'LOESL [erauag) - digsumo], sa|iN
£00°0 000 700°0 Z00°0 £00°0 £00°0 £00°0 £00°0 £00°0 #00'0 052 T00°L99°0¢ Q0URISISS Y [RiauaD) - dIUsumo] JOUY MaN
- - - - - - - - - - 08T T00°L99'0S 2dpug pue peoy| - dIysumof, 1311Y, MaN
S70°0 00 700 950°0 #50°0 750'0 L5070 ¥S0°0 7500 $60°0 052 T00°L9995 Jesauar) - diysumo] U] maN
91070 S10°0 S10°0 90 S10°0 $10°0 910°0 51070 ¥10°0 S10°0 85T 6ELBTTSL 22URB)SISSY [2IOUIN) - dR[SUMO L AUIBIN
000 6£0°0 6£0°0 00 P00 P00 #7070 1#0°0 LFDO 7500 85T 6EL8TT'SL 23p1if pue peoy - diysumo ] aurepy
6L0°0 6L0°0 6L0°0 680°0 #3070 $80°0 68070 9800 $80°0 680'0 85T 6€L8TTSL [B33UA0) - dIYSUmMO], SUIERY
710 920°C 920 8677 861°C FETT 56T S9T'T ¥z T §EE'T 00'1 PEI'TLE 1€ LOTH 100Yyag Y31 sure
6097 697 ¥69°C YA LTOE 8L0€ £9l'¢ 9L0't 090'¢ LTEE 61°F PEI'TLETE £U# P LISI Jooyds
RER €181 eIg'l ov0'T $68°1 016°[ ST $96'] £r6' | LIz £S5 068'T59'6T1 [ €4 121151 [o0Uag
SPLT So.T SoLT £TT'¢ 068'C 611’ 092°¢ 8E1'E sIlg 00€'¢ C6'8F POL' PO 8E] QL# 11UsI [00Yos
9€L'T orLl OFL'l 766°1 oLs'1 ors’1 561 €061 668'1 £T0°C LYSE LEL'OST'I0TT $TTH [00Y2S YB11Y PISYION
2E€'T TLTT TLTT TIST 113 4 ¥8F'T 85T L0S'T 18+°¢C §99°7 FEFT 0T¥ 99567 L9# 10101 [00H25
060°T 098°[ 09%°1 890°T £06'1 5761 9107 6261 £06'1 SE0°T €1 FRLFI6°GE 61T# [0042S YSIH SofIN
79¢T 0Tr'e 0Tr'T TEL'T 7097 SEQT 99.°T 0EL'T 88L°T 786'T YT L RT6FILOT LE# 1S jooyos
LOLT LT LT ¥SPE t6lE L80'E FIEE 9L6'T £16C $6T'E L'y LIT'39E°8¢ 6EH# 101IDSIT 10095
66L°1 11971 1191 9t6°'1 SH8'T 1281 7£6°1 6261 S16°1 501'C £€'T SH1'€806S E0Z# jooyds YB1H J9UL maN
[43% £€29'T £79°C 0£0°€ 6£8'C 166'C 331°¢ 1L0E 656T 6LEE 06'58 178 L1L6F8 FE# LS [o0Yog
9810 9810 981°0 €120 £0T°0 SOT0 91Z°0 8070 ££7°0 ST ¥5'6 00T'959°LZT'1 SEG# 980[j0D AumiIo)
9150 11670 F15°0 7190 3L6°0 LSS0 86%°0 9Ly () 8Lt0 884°0 LST8 906 $TS 91T 1S e MIAUSLD
60070 0100 0100 1100 11070 11070 110°0 110°0 1100 110°0 LL01 YO8 0V 10F6 JuaWIAEqY 0NNbsojA a104S YION
6200 2£0°0 7£0°0 - £20°0 - - L2700 - 6200 9T 007°959'L7T°1 suanda(g paJepljosuo)) Aune)
19€°0 Tor'0 10¥°0 SIP'0 6110 FrE 0 IS¥'0 ¥ 0 S6%'0 S0 2d 00795y LTT PusIq
co.zmﬂ_.ﬂuﬁw_ JJB AN cﬂ:o&obwz
TO0'0 L00'0 LO0O 8000 800°0 8000 800°0 800°0 800°0 8000 79T 00T'969°LTT 1 wnueues g L weqinqng
650°0 L90°0 L9070 690°0 0L0°0 TLO0 FLOD ¥LO0 TL0°0 £L0°0 i1 00Z2'959°L7T'1 12LLSI(] 2439524 15210,
0£9°0 9pL'0 OFL 0 ¥28°0 $S8°0 1160 6160 66070 ¥660 £66°0 il 00T'969°LTT'1 007 Jo Ajuna)
£62°0 8TT'O 8TTO 692°0 1570 G970 F0£'0 £0£°0 10€°0 LTED 00°001 00T'969°LTT'1 AIRIqIT O[T ADIAUI|E)
£05°0 §PS0 9291 1L9°0 7690 0990 SEL'O L89°0 £99'0 60L°0 007001 007°959'L2T'T  § MITAU|D) JO 3Te([IA
£007 00T 1007 0007 6661 2661 1661 9661 $661 F661  AQIADID (0T “MIIAUIID Jeax A3 XE],

jooadenA  JoadejA M
Urjuadtad  On|BA passassy

SIB9 A |BISI] ud] ISBY
SINHANITACD ONIdIVTIIAC ANV L2TdId - SILVd XV.L ALdId0dd

SIONITTL “MATANTTO 40 9OV TTIA




=081~

Y13[7) Ajune)) A Jo 3UHO

omog ee(]

"UONEN[RA PIgsasse Jo 0] § Jod aie sommI xey Apadolg

0100 010°0 010°0 110°0 o100 0100 - - - - 0T0 #95°080'€ JustIareqy ainbsop 1samyLIoN
650°0 60070 600°0 210 9§1°Q 0z10 - - - - TLPE P Sot'er WIS ARIUES MOPESI YO
0LE0 F6£°0 F6E°0 78+°0 LLVO P61°0 - - - - 00°601 607 0401 SE# BAIY 901413 [R[03dg mAAUD|D
0650 0£9°0 0£9°0 6EL70 6TL0 LPL O £18°0 0180 $6L°0 £98°0 00°001 €I5°Z81'T £E# BALY 21A13G [eradg MolAUsD)
$60°0 S0 ¢11°0 9¢1'0 FELO 6£1°0 LT10 LZ10 601°0 Lo 00°001 666°S0T'C TEH BOIY 321A18G [10adg M3TAUD| D)
LETO 98%°0 981°0 699°0 $99°0 L3890 06L°0 0820 9730 SR80 007001 669°0LY | £4 B3IV 291105 [B13dg MILAUA[D
- YA R rad | 019'l £61°1 rAYAl! 861°1 961 SI6°I AT 00001 SELVPIT LTH Y 301135 [B103dg malAuR[D)
§ES°0 0LSD 0480 TILO LIL0 119'0 000°1 0Z8°0 9¢L°0 LLLO 00001 £L¥'6T9 PTH BAIY 201AI0G [R103AG MIIATUID
06270 $0€'0 $0OE'0 oo 66€°0 LEVO LSO 1Z5°0 LZS0 vLSO 00°001 0£1°38¢"T TT# BV D1ALDG [R103dG MILAUID
SLTO v6T0 ¥67°0 99¢°0 65€°0 LLED AN £1r 0 9710 08t 00°001 615°1L0'S 074 BAIY 2914138 |eadg mataua[
19t°0 17670 12570 9190 709°0 979°0 869°0 L69°0 LOL0 L8O 00°001 1Z+°2€8 8 [# BRIV 201410 [133dg MItAUR[D)
0550 8850 8850 61L0 STL'O orL0 0£8°0 ££8°0 6¥8°0 806°0 00'001 STE0TLT LT# B3LY 31A13G [e1adg mataoa
- - - - 8580 1880 1560 S¥60 LS6°0 §SIl 08 001 SPP0ES 913 BRIV 3014135 [R123dS ma[AU[D
§9¢0 1160 115°0 290 8090 6£9°0 1690 $69°0 ROL'O 06L°0 00001 8€9°065°1 T1# BATY 3014195 [e120dg mILATIA]Y)
FAFA] 6570 6520 ¥0£0 162°0 §TE0 6970 79€°0 S3€°0 LEF0 00001 £TL'TLS'E [ T# BaIY 921A13G [133dS MILAUI[D
1150 8790 879°0 618°0 AIN! P11 SETI 997’1 T1E°1 08¢l 00°001 gE1'0£7°z 014 ealy a21ADS [R103dG MIIAUG[D)
L3170 83570 88570 1LLO STl PSOl orl'l £91°1 €071 §9¢'T 00°001 Lt6'89€°T 6if BATY 321A13S [£192dg MILAUSID
- - - - - - 1Z1°0 0z1'0 zio €210 00°001 CEO6FO°LT O BaIY A0IARG [E1Rdg MAIAURD

- - - 0L60 916'1 036'1 e 'z 0L1'T ST 007001 SIL'VIE G BRIV 301AIG [r0adg malAUR[D

- - - - - - - - - - 00°001 9¢£8'000°C P BADY 301AIRG [e10adS MBIAUS[D

- - - - - - - - £21°0 1ZH°0 00001 ¥99'766 £# BAIY 30IALG |R[D2dG MALAU[D)

- - - - - - - - 01€0 1L0°0 00'001 16¥°706 T4 BAlY 2014195 [E123dS MIlAUR[D
6510 690 690 7950 €50 85¥°0 98¢0 ¥8¥0 16¢°0 0£S°0 #€0 895'60TS I91ISI(] YR d NOOKION
7980 0£0'1 0£0°1 S0Z'1 901 681°1 ¥zl £zl IR | 6Z€°1 122 0TL 126 DL UONIAN0I] A1 Suley YHON
79070 L0O0'0 LO00 ¥L0°0 L91°0 BLT0 2310 881°0 €610 00Z°0 8P'SE SRY'6YLFTI 121MS1(T Alejiuesy SpUOM PIRIJYHON
0100 - - - - 600°0 600°0 €100 #10°0 €100 871t LOBTSHOTO  §  adumsissy [eIsUaD - dnjsumo], pijguoN
£00T 7002 1002 0007 6661 8661 1661 9661 5661 661 MAAUSD  QOOT MIIALID reaf AndT xe]

joadejin  joade[A ul
ul juadladg us_m> Passassy



- 181 -

spuny [{u - Furpuvisjuo spuoq UenedTg [EIPUL0 POL (£)
SNSTWa;) JO Nwalng ‘sarounuc;) Jo jusunaedaq g 0 {7)
NIa[ Ajuod aq Jo 210 {1)
35IMo%g e)u(
PAUWLNST ,
PLERTE § GTOLTE g 9T981°T § 9e'85T'1 $ E6'BLTI § Se99ET $ RE'BSH'T g 99087 § LA'RSLT § LYBEF 3 wprdeo sadqap
papuoy vonedqs
Terauss joN
%058 %SL'S %50.9 %6T'F %56E 0T %5ES %199 %ESD %IR'T onfua
passasse ) 19ap
papuoq Tonuanqo
[aragad 19n Fo onwy
£PT°60L" 68 LLOOPT 6R 9LE'BEY' TS 95L'859'TS 980°35T 6 i5TTRARY ¥BR'8L0°95 BEGPEP 69, PR 609 LY LBT 19891 19ap
papuoq vonesnqo

[e1susd Jap]

000*0TL'Y 000 sPT'L 000 005 L 000°0F8°L 000°0LT 8 0ST'vRL'S 059" PPE's 056'€LT Y 008°ERT'S Q0R'TZED satuaasl sspdizuz
wiolj sjgqeied qag]

LSLOr0'T £T6'BPOT ¥Zs 118 FFTIEFT P16 TS9E 665'48¢°7 9ar’ 9Ty TSOWIL'L 9L 10101 £T0'518°0 ajqu[ruay
SaTHOWL 301ATa% 1qa(]

00009F LS H000FPELE 000'008'TOT 000'0£6'Z9 000'086°09 000'SS8 6% 000°0¥3°69 000'S1€°T8 000°568'Z8 000'00LYT 19ap
ﬁufﬁ_un— ﬁomﬁnm:n—o

ersnad ssoapy g

TPRELSTOEYT § ZPTPIS'LOYT § 668TPOTIST § COTOSHLTT'T § €LYTEECPTT § THOTLCOOT'T § YERLLLLPOT § ETL'WOC'0S0'T § LOS6TO9L0'T § %66°8PS'TES § enfas paseansy (Z)

LYBTY LYE TP LIy LPE'TH LEv'RE LEV'RE LEF8E LEF'RE LEV'BE LEPSE uaysindod (1)

#»E00T o0z 100T 000T #6661 8661 Losl 9661 £64l ro61 Toa g ot

5193 1 [doSL] UaJ 1807

VI1IdVO ¥dd 1990 JIANOF NOLLVOTTEO TYAINID LIN NV
ANTVYA TISSUSSY O4 LU JHANOCH NOILVOITHO TV HINdD LAN A0 OLLVYH

SIONI I MHEANHTY 40 HOVTTIA



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

December 31, 2003

Article VII, Section 6(k) of the 1970 Illinois Constitution governs computation of the legal
debt margin.

"The General Assembly may limit by law the amount and require referendum approval
of debt to be incurred by home rule municipalities, payable from ad valorem property
tax receipts, only in excess of the following percentages of the assessed value of its
taxable property . . . (2) if its population is more than 25,000 and less than 500,000 an
aggregate of one per cent: ... indebtedness which is outstanding on the effective date
(Iuly 1, 1971) of this constitution or which is thereafter approved by referendum . . .
shall not be included in the foregoing percentage amounts.”

To date, the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities.
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Education
Level in (3)
Per )] Years of (2) Unemploy-
Fiscal )] Capita Median Formal School ment
Year Population Income Age Schooling Enroliment Percentage
1994 38,437 & 32,161 * 37.5 * 16.0 6,023 37
1995 38,437 33,144 »* 37.5 * 16.0 8,461 a1
1996 38,437 34,037 * 375 * 16.0 8,590 30
1997 38,437 34,886 * 37.5 * 16.0 8,676 2.6
1998 38,437 35,578 * 375 * 16.0 9,315 25
1999 38,437 36,315 * 375 * 16.0 9,241 23
2000 41,847 37,566 413 16.1 11,525 2.5
2001 41,847 38,430 * 41.5 * 16.1 11,525 3.7
2002 41,847 38,930 * 41.7 * 16.1 11,525 4.5
2003 41,847 39,708 * 419 * 16.1 11,525 4.6
* Estimiated

Data Sources

(1) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census

(2) Includes elementary and high school students.

(3) Illinois Department of Labor, Illinois Department of Employment Security (not seasonably adjusted).
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

MISCELTANEOUS STATISTICS

December 31, 2003

Date of incorparation
Form of government
Geographic location
Area

Population
1950
1960
1970
1980
1990
2000

Number of Total Housing Units (2000 Census)

Median Value Owner-Occupied Noncondominium Housing Units

Distribution of Owner-Occupied Noncondominium Houses by Value

{2000 Census)

Unit Values by Range (1)
Under $100,000
100,000 - 199,999
200,000 - 299,999
300,000 - 499,999
500,000 - 999,999
%1 million or more

Fire Protection
Number of firefighters
Number of stations
Number of fire hydrants
1.5.0. Rating

Police Protection
Number of police vfficers

Number of school crossing guards

Number of stations

Library Services
Number of libraries
Number of books
Number of records
Number of audio casseties
Number of slides (sets)
Number of video tapes
Number of compact discs

Number of registered borrowers

20C1 book circulation
Adult materials
Children's materials

- 187 -

June 20, 1899
Council/Manager
20 Miles North of Chicaga

13.27 Square Miles

6,142
18,132
24,880
32,060
38,437
41,847

15,810
$ 336,000

Unit Distribution

Number Percent

159 1.43%
1,278 11.52%
3,227 29.10%
4,203 37.90%
1,987 17.92%

236 2.13%

11,090 100,00%

85

2,300
Class 3

78
22

I
238,828
469
12,020
61
11,439
104,904
35,778

313,888
427,031
740,919



VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINCIS
MISCELLANEOIJS STATISTICS (Continued)

December 31, 2003

Recreation Facilities
Number of parks and playgrounds 36
Park area in acres - Park District owned 47
Park area in acres - Park Distriet leased 135
Mumicipal Parking Facilities
Number of parking spaces 1,168
‘Waterworks Operations
Number of sewer customers at December 31, 2003 10,872
Number of metered water customers at December 31, 2003 15,478

Gallons of water purchased during fiseal year
Gallons of water billed during fiscal year
Water storage capacity

Ground storage

Elevated storage

Number of full-time emplovees at December 31, 2003 336
Miles of streets maintained by Glenview
identified by functional classification:
Arterinl $ 7
Collector 5
Residential 106
Cul-de-gacs 12
Total b 130
Miles of alleys maimtained by Glenview 22
Miles of streets within the Village of Glenview
tnaintained by Cook County or the State of llinois 22
Miles of sanitary sewers 80.6
Miles of storm sewers 74
Number of Villagc-owned street lights 465
Building activity
Number of permits issued in 2002
Valiue of construction authorized in 2003 2,991
206,573,285

Data Source

Village Records
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3,321,375,000
2,922,810,000

14,000,000 gallons
1,000,000 gallons
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VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW, ILLINOIS

MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES
NON-REAL ESTATE TAX

December 31, 2003

Percent Percent Iliinois Percent

Fiscal Sales of Total Utility of Total Income of Total

Year Tax Revenue Tax Revenue Tax Revenue
1994 $ 4,438,932 244% $ 2,512,867 13.8% §& 2,157,707 11.9%
1995 4,843,071 25.3% 2,935,696 15.3% 2,266,279 11.8%
1996 4,661,985 23.6% 3,099,365 15.7% 2,656,744 13.4%
1997 4,794 830 21.1% 3,184,812 14.0% 2,483,946 10.9%
1998 5,092,357 20.9% 3,340,555 13.7% 2,666,003 10.9%
1999 5,758,617 23.0% 3,262,725 13.0% 2,740,281 11.0%
2000 6,522,922 23.7% 3,712,583 14.5% 2,990,432 10.9%
2001 7,184,006 23.5% 4,147,388 13.6% 2,963,486 9.7%
2002 8,765,038 28.8% 4,119,522 13.5% 2,745,035 9.0%
2003 10,830,776 32.5% 5,787,142 17.4% 2,593,235 7.8%

Note: Includes General Fund only
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Due

12-1
2004 . .
2005. .

2006. .
2007. .
2008 . .

2008. .
2010..

2011

2012.
2013..

2014.
2015..
2016. .
2017. .
2018..

VILLAGE OF GLENVIEW
Cook County, lllinois

ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

STATEMENT OF INDEBTEDNESS

As Per Cent of Per Capita
Amount Applicable Assessed Estimated (2000 Census
as of Dec. 31, 2003 Value True Value Pop. 41,847)

Assessed Valuation of Taxable Real Properiy, 2002 . . .. $1,733,937,051 100.00% 33.33% $ 41,435.16
Estimated True Value of Taxable Real Properly, 2002. .. 5,201,811,153 300.00% 100.00% 124,305.47
Dlrect Ganeral Obligation Bonded Debt(1):
Payable From Property Taxes . ......... ... uun.. $ 7,957,700 0.46% 0.15% $ 19016
Self-Supporting Debt .. ........ R, 86,392 300 4.98% 1.86% 2,064.48
Total Direct Bonded Debt .. .. ... ... cuevu ... $ 94,350,000 5.44% 1.81% $ 2,254.64
Overlapping Bonded Debt Payabla from Property Taxes{2):
SChoolS. .. oo e e s $ 34,217,204 1.97% 0.66% $ 817.67
Otherthan Schools .. ..v.uvu i v 61,902,812 3.57% 1.19% 1,479.27
Total Overlapping Bonded Debt ................. § 96,120,116 5.64% 1.B5% 3 2.206.94
Total Direct and Overapping Bonded Debt , . ........... 190,470,116 10.98% 3.66% $ 4551.58
Total Direct and Overlapping Excl. Self-Supporting . ... & 104,077,816 6.60% 2,00% $ 2487.10

Notes: 1. The Village is a home-rule unit under the 1970 lifinois Constitution and as such has no debt limit nor is It required to seek
referendum approval for the issuance of general obligation debt. Sse “Rstireament Schedule of Qutstanding Village
General Obligation Debt™ below for a listing of the Village's non-general obligation debt and currently oulslanding general
obligation debt. Of the Village's general obligation debt 91.6% or $86,3892,300 is considerad self-supporting.
2. See “Detalled Qverlapping Bonded Indebtedness Payable From Property Taxes at December 31, 2003"

RETIREMENT SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING VILLAGE GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT (Note 1}
{As of December 31, 2003}

l Notes; 1.

oA

_ Principal Amounts Debt Service
Self Supporting With Projected Abatement From Tax Levies
Water and Sewer Funds(2) Tax Increment Revs. (3) Total From
Pald From Pre-Series Series Series Series Series Series Cumul. Levy Property
Prop Taxes{d) _ 2003(5) 2003A 2003B(6) 1898 2001 2003A Amount _ Percent _Year Taxes
$1,672700 § 382,300 $ 75000 § 180,000 $ 1,510,000 $§ 500,000 $ 940,000 $ 5,260,000 5.6% 2003 §1,955,833
1,660,000 260,000 105,000 185,000 1,575,000 4,800,000 955,000 9,540,000 15.7% 2004 1,815,497
1,750,000 275,000 110,000 185,000 1,640,000 5,000,000 975,000 9,835,000 28.2% 2005 1,954,963
1,875,000 280,000 110,000 190,000 1,715,000 5,000,000 995,000 10,175,000 37.0% 2008 2,002,974
1,000,000 305,000 110,000 195,000 1,790,000 5,000,000 1,020,000 9,420,000 47.0% 2007 1,045,000
-0 - 320,000 345,000 205,000 1,870,000 5,000,000 -0 - 7,740,000 55.2%
105,000 455,000 210,000 1,855,000 5,000,000 7,725,000 63.4%
-0 - 470,000 220,000 2,050,000 5,500,000 8,240,000 72.1%
485,000 225,000 2,145,000 5,500,000 8,355,000 81.0%
-0 - 500,000 -0 - 2,250,000 -0 - 2,750,000 B83.9%
505,000 2,360,000 2,865,000 B86.9%
525,000 2,480,000 3,005,000 80.1%
545,000 2,805,000 3,150,000 93.4%
580,000 2,735,000 3,315000 97.0%
-D- 2.875.000 2,875,000 100.0%

$7,957,700 $1,937,300 $4,920,000 $1,795,000 $31,555,000 $41,300,000 $4,885,000  $84,350,000

Excludes 32,343,822 note payable In annual princlpal and inferest payments of $215,377 through 2019 to the sellers of the utility company that

was acqulred in Sepfember, 1997. The remaining principal amount of special service area bonds, the proceeds of which have been used for
various neighborhood local improvermnents and which are secured by property taxes to be levied in the applicable special sefvice areas, Is shown
as overlapping debt in the table "Detailed Overliapping Bonded Indebtedness Payable From Property Taxes”.
As a home rule unlt under the 1970 Hinois Constitution, the Village has no dabt fimit and it can issue general obligation bonds without
referendumn. The Village has chosen to fund various wataersewer improvements with general obligation bonds and abate taxes from user
charges. The Village's water system serves a population of approximately 125,000 of which approximately 83,000 are outside the Village limits
{63,000 in unincorporated areas and 20,000 in the Citizens Ulilities service area).

The Series 1998, Series 2001 and a portion of the Serfes 2003A Bonds are expected to be pald from incremental property taxes at the Glenview
Naval Air Station Economic Development Projact Area plus B0% of the land sale proceeds derived From the Village’s sale of land at the Project
Area.

Includes remaining maturities of the Village’s Series 2000 Bonds, and a portion of the Series 2002 Bonds.

Includes the remaining Series 1997 and a portion of the Series 2002.

The Serles 20038 Bonds (which refundead the Series 1992) are payable primarily from revenues of the service area of a private water company
{Citizans Ulilities) outside the Village limits.
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DEBT RATIOS AND PER CAPITA DEBT—LAST TEN BOND SALES (Note 1}

Ratio to Estimated Actual Value(?) Per Capltaff)
Direct Debt Direct & Overlapping Debt  Direct & Overlapping Debt
Including Excluding Including Excluding Including Excluding
Village Issue Self- Seli- Self- Self- Self- Self-
Sale Date Amount Supporting Supporiing(2) Supperting Supporting(2) Supporting Supporting{2}
August 30,1994 . .. .. $ 8,025,000(3) .94% .60% 3.00% 2.66% $2,229.73 $1,978.80
January 25,1995 . .. 60,000,000(4) B7% 57% 2.98% 2.68% 2,219.67 1,995.53
October 17,1995 .. .. 500,000 .B9% S57% 317% 2.B5% 2,360.61 2,123.34
October 15,1996 ... . 8,435,000¢5) 1.01% .45% 3.18% 2.62% 2,580.75 2,134.53
August 5, 1997 ..... 6,175,000 1.13% 42% 3.15% 2.44% 2,544.13 1,969.57
October 20, 1998 . ... - 34,400,000¢8) 2.12% I7% 3.98% 2.23% 3,125.64 1,752.00
December 5, 2000 ... 4,970,000 1.68% 3% 3.28% 1.93% 3,109.34 1,831.83
August 7, 2001 ..... 41,800,000 2.47% .33% 4.90% 2.43% 4,377.57 2,172.83
February 5, 2002 . ... 6,885,0007y 2.75% .30% 4.92% 2.47% 4,353.97 2,185.71
March 4,2003 ., .... 11,845,000 2.14% 21% 4.35% 2.42% 4.834.24 2,688.75

Noles: 1. Ratios and per capita information as set out In applicable Official Statemeanis. The Village’s Bond Anticipation Bonds
which sofd on January 25, 1995 are nol includad in these ratios (see Note 4).

2. Excluding the Village's self-supporting general obiigation bonded debt.

3. Final issue amount was $8,040,000. This issue advance refunded the caliable maturities of the Senes 1989 and 1890

issues.

4, General Obligation Band Anlicipation Bands, Series 1995 ("BABS"} the proceeds of which were used o fund infarest up
to the respective maturify dates of the BABS and to create a capital improvement fund for redevelopment costs of the
Glenview Naval Air Station which officially closed on September 8, 1995. The principal amount of the Bond Anlicipation
Bonds was not included in the debt ratios and per capita data — when thase maturities were refinanced with Series 1996
and the Series 1998 Bonds, they appeared in the debt ratios and per capita debt.

8. Proceeds used fo refund the December 1, 1996 malurify of the BABS.
6. A portion of the preceeds of the Senes 1998 Bonds was used to refund the December 1, 1998 maturity of the BABS.
7. Proceeds used to redeem the Series 1993 and 1994.
DETAILED OVERLAPPING BONDED INDEBTEDNESS PAYABLE FROM PROPERTY TAXES
AT DECEMBER 31, 2003
Percent of Village's Applicable
Village’s Share (Note 1)
2002 Real of Gross Debt To Be Paid
Property in Gross From Real Property Taxes
SCHOOL DISTRICTS: Taxing Body _Bonded Debt Percent Amount
Elementary Districts:
Glenview School Distict No. 34 . .. ... ... ... .. 69.3% $ 19,600,000 85.867% $16,820,983
Northbrook School District No. 30. ... .. emneaa s 11.3% 7,808,067 37.604% 2,973,742
West Northfield School District No. 31 .. .......... 9.7% 8,585,000 27.197% 2,334,848
Wilmette School District N0, 39 . ... ............. 3.2% 11,380,000 4.613% 525,015
East Maina School DistrictNo. 63. . .............. 2.4% 18,405,000 4.111% 756,657
Golf School District No. 67 . . ... .o iiincn i ons 2.4% 5,033,512 15.355% 772,915
Avoca School District No. 37 ............ e 1.7% 1,995,000 7.420% 148,029
100.0%
High School Districts:
Northfield Township High School District No. 225 . ... 89.8% 22,307,581(3) 35.525% 8,147,746
New Trier Township High School District No. 203 .. .. 4.9% 17,160,000(3) 2.313% 396,837
Niles Township High School District No. 219 . ., ... .. 2.8% 86,368,171 1.346% 1,162,150
Maline Township High School District No. 207 .. .. ... 2.4% 17,070,000 0.992% 169,282
100.0%
Community College District:
Oakton Community Coliege No.535 .. .. .......... 100.0% -0 9.706% . -0 -
Total School Districts ... v vt i i i i e i it et st e $34,217,204
OTHER THAN SCHOOL DISTRICTS:
Cook County, Including Forest Preserve District .. ... .. 100.0% $2,545,815,000(2) 1.530% $3B,943,956
Metropolitan Water Reclamation Distriet .. ... .. ... ... 100.0% 1,353,037,000(2) 1.563% 21,150,155
Glenview Park District . . ... .. ................... 99.2% 1,235,000(3) 82.789% 1,022,444
Northbrook Park District. .. ... ................... 4% 18,020,000 0.327% 58,925
North Malne Fire Protection District ... .. e - 4% 100,000 2.230% 2,230
Gilanview Special Service Areas . .. ................ Various 725,202 100.000% 725202
Total Other Than School Districts ... ..o o e oo it e e P $61,802,912

Notes: 1. Village's share based upon 2002 Real Property valuafions.
2. Exciudes short-term cash fiow notes.

3. Excludes the following “Altemate Bonds™ issued pursuant to Public Act 85-1419, which are considered 1o be self-
supporting since thay are payable from user fees or other pledged non-property tax sources: Northfleld Township
High School District No. 225 - §21,975,000; New Trier High School District No. 203 - $4,260,000 and Glenview

Park District - $31,675,000.
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EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATION FOR TAXING PURPQOSES {Note 1)

For General Taxing Purposes(Note 1) For Ali Taxing Purposes

Tax Gross Less Net For Increase Net For Plus Total For All
Levy Real Exemptions General Taxing Qver General Taxing Incremental Taxing
Year Property {2) Purposes Prlor Year Purposes (6) _Valuation{7} _Purposes{6)
1998(3) ...... $1,224,686,771 $64,315,730 $1,160,371,041 +10.7% $1,160,371,041 § -0 - $1,160,371,041
1989 ........ 1,309,030,170 65,038,497 1,243,981,673 +7.2% 1,243,991,673 2,216,856  1,246,208,529
2000 ........ 1,293,037,637 65,381,437 1,227,656,200 -1.3%(5) 1,227 656,200 5,537,964 1,233,194,164
2001(3) ...... 1,587,554,408 75,911,709 1,511,642,699 +23.1% 1,511,642,699 39,650,935 1,551,293,634
2002 ........ 1,682,291,173 74,776,931 1,607,514,242(4) +6.3% 1,607,514,242 126,395,809 1,733,937,051

Notes: 1. Properly in Cook County is separated inlo eight classifications for assessment purposes (ranging in 1985 from 16% for
residential fo 40% for commercial property). After the assessor estabiishes the fair market vaiue of a parcel of land, that
value is multiplled by one of the classification perceniages to arive af the assessed valuation for that parcel. The Hiinois
Depantment of Revenue fumishes each counly with an adjustment factor (the equalization factor) to equalize the level of
assessment between countias. After the equallzation factor Is applied, the valuation of the property for taxing purposes
has been eslabilshed—tax rates are applied lo the equalized valuation.

2 Includes four categorios of exsmptions in 2002: the Senior Citizens' Homestead Exemption ($8,850,250); the General
Homesfead Exemplion ($49,840,640); the Senior Citizens Tax Freeze Homeslead Exernption ($14,713,645) and the
Long-Term Homeowner Exemption ($1,392,.396). The Senlor Citizens’ Homestead Exemption, sffactive for tax years
1991 and following, is a reduction of $2,.500 ($1,500 in levy years 1972-1983 and $2,000 in levy years 1584-1990) in the
equalized assessed valualion of real property owned and occupied by a person 65 years of age or older. The General
Homestead Exemption is available to owner-occupied residential property; the amount of the exemption is the increase
in the cument years equalized assessed valuation above the 1977 lax year equalized assessed valuation, with a
maximum of $1,500 in 1978, $3,000 batween 1979 and 1982, $3,500 between 1983-1980 and $4,500 thereaftar, The
Senior Citizen Tax Fraeze Homastead Exemption, first effective in levy year 1994, provides that persons 65 or older with
a household income of less than $40,000 (up from $35,000 in levy year 1998 and prior) may receive an exemplion in the
amount of the difference between the currenl equalized assessed value of their principal residence and the lowest
previous assessment in a qualifying year, even if the senior was not eligible for some Inlervening year. The Long-Term
Homeowner Exemption is a Cook County program that providas property tax relief to long-term homeowners who meet
certain income requirements and who have been adversely affected by rapid increases in property values.

3. Under the curent tnennial reassessment system In Cook County, one third of the Counly is reassessed each year. The
Village was reassessed In 1998 and 2001 (for laxes o be collected in 2002).

4. By valuation,83.0% of the Village is in Nornthfieid Township, 6.1% Is in Niles Township,6.1% is in Maine Township, and
4.8% is in New Trier Township. Includes $160,583 of Railroad Property now classified as Real Property.

5. The 1.3% decreass in 2000 were primarnly due to a decrease of 1.2%, in the State imposed equalization Jactor for Cook
County.

6. The Village’s lax rate is calcuiated based on the Village's Net Equalized Assessed Valuation (shown in this table as ‘Net
For General Taxing Purposes™ and is extended against its entire Equalized Assessed Valualion (shown in this table as
“Tolal for All Taxing Purposas”) excluding only the stalutory exemptions. Of the taxes collected, thal portion applicable
to incremental valuation (valuation of tax increment districts) Is remitled to the Village by the County Collector for teposit
in the applicable lax allocation fund. The Equalized Assessed Valuation for which the Village receives ils portion of the
{otal tax rate for alf non-TIF purposes is shown in the lable as “Nef for General Taxing Purposes.”

7. When the Glenview Naval Alr Station Tax fncrement District was created, It included the Air Station and an older
industrial area adjacent thereto. As of January 1, 1999, the Incremental valuation was added from changes in that
industrial area. Land Valuations in that industnial area have increased for a varlety of reasons including the fact the
property being adlacent to a major new roadway entrance info the redeveloped base and a nearby new Melra train

station.
TAX RATES PER $100 EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATION
{Levy Years)

Village of Glenview: 1998 1899 2000 2001 2002
BondsBnd Interest................ P . % .156 $ .145 $ .152 $ 117 $ .113
Pensions (Police, Fire, IMRF & Social Security) . 095 077 .03 1085 A1
Corporate...... teseersanerearranns Cerena .409 430 426 322 .288

Total Village(?) . ... coovrivnnn s ceareas  $ 660 $ .652 $ 671 $ .545 $ 512

Cook County {Incl. Forest Preserve) .. .............. .o83 .955 893 813 751

Metropolitan Water Reclamation District . . ... ........ 444 419 415 401 371

Glanview S.D. Number34 , ... ... ... .. ... ...... 2.991 2.839 3.030 2.623 2.509

Northfield Township H.5.D. Number225. ..., .. .. . 1.840 1.870 1.992 1.740 1.682

Oakton Community College Dist. Number 535 .. ... . .205 .203 .213 186 78

Glenview Park District ... ..., ... cvviiirinnnan. 587 578 B12 51 AG2

Glenview PublicLibrary(@) . . .. . ... ...t .269 251 .269 .228 270

Northfield Township and Al! Other . ... ... .. .. e 078 .068 .081 089 067

Total(3) .. ... e e $8.057 $7.835  $8176  $7.146  $6.833

Vilageas aPercentof Total ....ccvevecronennans 8.2% 8.3% 8.2% 7.6% 7.5%

Notes: 1. As a home rule unit under the 1970 llinois Constitution, the Village has no statutory tax rate limitations.
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2, Beginning in ievy year 1985, the tax rate for Library purposes Is considered under Slate law to be a

separate levy from the Village.

3. Tax rate applicable lo the larges! lax code that represented 45.2% of the Village's 2002 lax base and is

located in Northfield Township.

TAX EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS

(Village Purposes Only)

Total Taxes Collected as
Levy Collection Total Taxes of December 31, 2003(1)
Yeat Year Extended Amount {2} Percent
1898 . .. 1999 $7,658,448 $7,702,489 100.57%
1999 . .. e e 2000 8,110,825 8,080,664 99.63%
2000 . .. e e, 2001 8,237,573 8,296,330 100.71%
2001 .. e e, 2002 B,238,452 8,441,291 102.46%
2002 ., .. e e e 2003 8,230,473 8,346,033 101.40%

Notes: 1. Source: Cook County Treasurer's Office. Taxes coflected, including late payments, are shown as

collections In the year when due regardless of when the colfection occurs. The “Amount
Collected™ is not the same as distributions to the Village as collsctions inciude taxes paid under
protest. When the laxes are paid under protest are remitted, they are nol included as laxes
collected as they have already been considsred “coflected’.

. Cook Courtly property taxes are payable in two instaliments: the first on March 1, and the second

on the lafter of August 1 or 30 days after the malling of the tax bills. The first installment is an
estimated bill and is one-half of the prior year’s blll. The second Instaliment is based on the
current levy, assessment and equalizalion and reflects any changes from the prior year in those
factors. The second instalfment date for levy years 1998-2002 were November 1, 1999, October

2, 2000, November 1, 2001, November 1, 2002, and October 1, 2003, respectively.

1997 AND 2002 TAX BASE DISTRIBUTION BY PROPERTY CLASSIFICATION

Village of Glenview

Taxable Valuation2} Percent of Total

Property Classlfication: . 1997 2002 1987 2002
Residential .. .......... ..., $ 736,518,370 $1,251,887,575 70.3% 72.2%
Commercial(1) ...... e ea e ataaaaeas 214,905,081 329,600,589 20.5% 19.0%
Industrial . ........ ... .. .. i, 96,143,443 150,208,049 9.2% 8.8%
Railroad . ..o o i i i i 137,766 160,583 NIL NIL
=Vt 1. 73,166 80,255 NIL NIL

Total .......... FO A $1,047,777,826 $1,733,937,051 100.0% 100.0%
Percent Increase 19972002 . ... ... .. acatnenon +65.5%

Noles: 1. The commercial classification includes apafiment buildings with over six upits and any apartment/retall

mixed use buildings.
2. Includes incremenial valuation in the Village's tax Increment financing district.

TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS

Equalized

Assessed Percent of
Rank Taxpavyer Properties Valuationf?) Village {2)
1.... KraftGeneralFoods ............ Corporate Headquarters/Research Campus .  $47,817,115 2.8%
2., Grubb & Ellis Services. .. ... ..... AON Insurance Compary .............. 21,695,167 1.3%
3 .... Mid Amoricar Asset. ............ Commercial Property. ........... e 17,366,366 1.0%
4 .... Signode,Div.OFITW ........... Corporate Headquarters - ... ... ... pae - 17,322,464 1.0%
5 .... Pearson Tax Department. ........ Corporate Headguartars — Book Publishing(3) 12,281,783 0.7%
6 .... Wyndham International. .. ...... .. DoubletreeHotel ......_ ... .. ... ... 12,196,366 0.7%
7.... TheGlenClub. ...............,. GolfCourseand Clubhouse............. 11,196,257 0.6%
8 .... Parkside Senior Services......... The Seasons at Glenview Place.......... 10,403,940 0.6%
9.... Target ................. .... ReilStore. .. .. e 8,258,737 0.5%
0. Sanders 2100LP . ............. Cornmercial Property. . .. ... ... ienn. 7.277.685 0.4%

Total Teri Largest Taxpayers ... ..... et a it $165,815,880 9.6%

Notes: 1. Valuations as of January 1, 2002 for 2003 taxing purposes.

2. Total 2002 Village valuation of $1,733,937,051 (including incremental valuation).
3. Corporate headquarters of Scott Foresman.
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I GENERAL FUND
Summary Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
I {Fiscal Years Ending December 31)
Audited(Note 1)
2003
Revenues/Transfers: (3) 1999 2000 2001 2002  _Budgelf?) __ Actual | _ﬁggg_e_t{g}_
Property Tax@s . . coo e erervnenanennn $5,088,157 $ 5,628,468 § 5,808,880 $ 5,877,232 $ 5,953,520 % 5,876,466 $ 6,632,495
Property Taxes-Fire Protection District(7) . . . 2,123,992 1,968,076 1,968,062 2,171,117 2,260,000 2,245,157 2,300,000
' SalesTaxes .. ...ovverinninaaaan 5,758,617 5,522,922 7,184,006 8765038 8,300,000 10,830,776 10,600,000
Home Rule Sales Tax (3) ..... Ve -0 - -0 - -0 - -0 - -0 - -0 - 100,000
Ufility Tax and Telecommumcahons Tax. 3,262,725 3,712,583 4,147,388 4,119,522 4,125,000 5,787,142 4,482,750
State Income TaxPhoto Use Tax. ........ 3,249,388 3,551,020 3,483,970 3,183,744 3,305,000 2,970,258 3,030,000
Franchise Taxes . .................... 379,362 195,281 414,768 285,110 287,500 308,138 288,000
Hotel Room/Amusement Tax(4) .......... 803,135 872,019 748,188 615,083 600,000 717,486 650,000
Bullding Permits/Cert. Of Cecup. . ... . ... 996,745 1,456,765 2 467,698 2,063,149 1,852,200 1,399,853 1,061,000
I Other Licenses and Permits. . . .......... 236,925 280,634 342,302 352,334 284,800 271,701 285,000
Charges For Services ............. Fee - 741,991 1,280,928 1,152,553 1,108,048 1,189,841 1,021,693 1,342,875
Finesand Forfeits .. ............. AN 281,525 224,431 215,284 207,720 200,000 181,384 200,000
Interest . . ... ... . 478,582 665,382 769,833 401,213 360,000 155,307 360,000
Transfers-In:
Waterworks. . .....ooveiieni i 457,808 500,750 493,710 508,600 528,400 529,400 555,000
c Wholesale Water. . .. .. ............. 102,200 102,000 105,000 112,150 106,000 106,000 106,500
The Glen Redev./Caretaker . ... ....... 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
} North Maine Utilities ............... . 381,981 292,674 307,500 307,500 307,500 307,500 307,500
I Escrow Deposit Interest(5). . . ......... 194,993 190,994 172,351 120,000 100,000 80,000 80,000
Other ... . it f ey 107,132 1,327,086 118,100 248,830 1,025,945 250,945 288,350
LandSales ...... ..ot 531,593 295,460 956,854 -0 - 400,000 -0- 1,250,000
All Other Revenues . ... .... Cheeaaeaes 1,075,386 887 172 934,280 _ 1,332,408 1,139,259 1,577,050 1,330,595
1 Total Revenues/T ransfers .......... $26,256,244 $20,958,645 $31,794,527 $31,783,798 $32,329,765 $34,8620,256 $35,155,065
Expendltures/Transfers:
General Government . .. .. ............ . % 4854514 $ 5,132,169 $ 5,450,092 $ 6,080,618 $ 7,079,065 $ 7,690,646 § 9,546,522
PublicSafety .......... ... o ial 12,357,263 13,295,031 15,389,726 15,850,504 15,892,442 16,976,478 18,137,281
Highwaysand Streets .. ............... 4,774,392 5,100,455 5,866,080 6,118,925 6,196,849 6,235,315 7,208,108
Pensions ............c.. iy 515,397 570,574 -0 - -0 - -0 - -0 - -0 -
Subtotal Expenditures ... ............ $22,501,566 $24,098,229 526,705,897 $28,030,047 $30,168,356 $30,902,439 535,892,911
Capital Equipment Replacement Transfers (6} 1,024,203 1,001,302 1,061,830 1,225,220 1,405,221 1,252,124 1,316,995
Capital Project Transfers/Capital Cutiay . ., . 1,199,285 6,172,068 2,437,418 345,066 2,559,145 2,047,756 -0 -
l Debt Seryice Transfer . ................ -0 - -0 - 210,805 219,336 218,335 219.335 -0 -
Total Expenditures/Transfers .....,.. $24,725,754 $31,271,600 $30,416,048 $29,823,669 $34,352,057 $34.,421,654 $37,209,906
Revenue Over {Under} Expenditures:
Before Capital/Transfers ............ ... $ 3754678 $ 5860416 $ 4,877,825 $ 3,534,415 $ 1,942,074 $ 3,498,482 § (737,846}
After Capltal/Transfers .. _ ... ......... . $ 1,530,490 $({1,312,855)% (1,378,479}% 1,960,120 $ (2,022,292} § 198,602 §(2,054,841)
Adjustments to Fund Balance ........ e B -0- % -0- % 37M1034% -0 - $ 1,776,368
Fund Balance at December 31 ............ $13,502,152 $12,189,197 $13,938,713 $15,898,842 $17.873812
I Balance Sheet at December 31
Assets: 1989 2000 2001 2002 2003
Cashandinvestments .. .. ... ........... $10,356,035 $12,206,729 $14,756,756 $15,032,003 $14,186,080
Receivables:
Property Taxes ..........c.ucvouinn. . 5,604,175 5,672,153 5,785,884 5,731,379 5,606,072
SaiesTax ........coiiriiinnieaans 527596 1,146,631 1,968,913 2,628,031 2,851,743
Utility Taxes .........oiunneiannns 316,573 425,315 343,985 712,811 1,014,754
Other Receivables . ... .............. 560,790 566,103 161,283 635,006 333,824
Due From Other Funds . .............., 3,223,415 521,106 137,073 185,501 656,538
I All Other Assets ... ... ............. 14,482 -0 - 32,385 -0 - 292,814
Total ASSEIS . ... ... $20,603.066 520538037 $23.186289 §24.924.231 §25.041,835
Liabilities and Fund Balancs:
Accounts Payable .. .............. ... 5 156,192 ¢ 609,688 $§ 547,977 § 349836 § 422,066
I CtherPayables . .................. ... 926,120 951,802 1,531,691 1,671,823 979,516
DueToOtherFunds .................. 30,920 232,004 137,314 40,022 56,610
Deferred Revenues . ... ... ........... 5,886,811 5,822,728 6,029,209 5,861,043 5,636,411
All Other Liabilities. . . .. .. ............. 100,871 732,418 1,001,385 1,103,265 73,520
: Fund Baiange;
Reserved .................. ... ... $ 19,867 § 10,000 $ 10,000 % 10,000 & -0 -
Designated for Surcharge Recelpts ... .. 1,334,848 1,334,848 1,334,848 1,334,848 -0 -
Undesignated . .... e 12,147,437 10,844 349 12,593,865 _14.553,994 17,873,812
Total Fund Balance ............... $13,502.152 $12.189.187 $13.838,713 515898842 §17.873.812
I Total Liabilities & Fund Balance ...... $20,603.066 $20.538.037 $23,186.289 $24,924.831 $25.041.935
Notes: 1. These condansed financial stalements for the General Fund for the years ending December 31, 1999-2003 have been prepared from the full
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports of the Village of Glenview and do not purport to be complele financial statements. The full financial
I statements, together with the report of the Village's independent accountants, are avallable upon request. Ses Note 1 to *Combined Statement-
-All Furids®.
2. The Village Manager submits a proposed operating budget to the Board of Trustees which budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing them. Subsequent to budget hearings, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. The Village Manager
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is authonzed to transfer budgeled amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions that after the tolal expenditures of any
fund must be approved by the Board of Trustees. Budgels are adopted on a basis conslstent with generaily accepted accouniing principles.

As a home-rule unit, the Village can increase revenues by Increasing its property tax lavy, adopling a Prepared Food and Beverage Tax and
increasing its home rule sales tax, The Village could also re-impose a moior vehicle license fee, which, if set at the prior level, could generate
over $450,000 in annual revenues (fiscal year 1997 was the last complete year the fee was in effect). The Village adopted a % of 1% sales tax
effective July 1, 2004, which is expected to yield $1.7 million on annualized basis. In calendar 2004 the proceeds will be allocated $100,000 to
the General Fund and $850,000 to the Capifal Projects Fund.

Effactive May 6, 1985, the Village adopled a 5% hotef room tax. The Village currently has five operating hotels with 856 rooms. The Village
adopted a 4% Amusement Tax effactive January 1, 1998,

Developers are required fo depasit with the Village an amount equal to the cost of all improvements being built and dedicated to the Village
which dgposits are retumed upon satisfactory complsetion of the improvemenfs. Interest eamnings on the amounts in the Escrow Deposit Fund
are transferred to the General Fund.

The Capffal Equipment Replacement Fund (CERF) was established by ordinance in 1979 with the stated purpose of evening oul the annual
expenditures for major capital expenditures. A# of the Village's on-road and off-read equipment, fire, public works, elc., is included. Each
Department is charged with the equivalent of a deprsciation charge which is remitted in cash to the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund
{carned in the Capital Projects Fund). As of Decemnber 31, 2003, audited cash and Investments In the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund
totaled $10,047,720.

On September 1, 1992 the Gilenbrook Fire Protection District was merged into the Glenview Fire Depariment. The Fire Protection District
continuas to levy properly taxes on that part of its lax base outside the Village limils and remn‘s those tax receipts to the Village for services in
the unincorporated area that now represents ifs lax base.

COMBINED STATEMENT--ALL FUNDS(Note 1)

Fund Balances 1999-2002 and Summary 2003 Revenues, Excess Revenues and Fund Balance
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003 (12)

Revenues Excess
Ingl. Transters Revenues
December 31 - Audited Property Over Fund
Govemmental Fund Types: 1999 2000 2001 2002 Tax Total Expendliures Balance
GeneralFund ................ $ 13,502,152 $ 12,189,197 $13,938,713 § 15,898,842 § 5,053,320 $ 23,900,567 $ 1,974,970 § 17,873,812
Special Revenue Funds:
IMBRF ... . % 72,445 $ 229,524 § 377,500 § 468,501 512,437 747,375 (8,360} 460,141
Motor Fuel Tax ............. 299,213 206,926 211,825 243,579 -0 - 1,252,235 61,935 305,514
Refuse and Recycling . . ... ... 1,192,944 1,398,883 1,623,380 1,862,954 -0 - 1,144,599 254,390 2,117,344
911 Communications. . ....... 330,485 397,895 456,719 305,842 -0 - 619,478 236,553 542,395
GNAS Redevelopment(2) ..... {1,385,304) 4,612 (3,824) (50,808), -0 - 3,528 {21,572) {72,378)
GNAS Caretaker. . .......... {31,669) 4,807 {159,839) {58,518) -0 - 105,896 (106,397) (164,915)
Foreign Fire Insurance . ...... -0 - -0 - -0 - 39,637 -0 - 48,403 33,312 72,849
Speclal Tax Allocation. .. ..... -0 - 3.477 16.716 953,690 6,572,481 12,005,785 (676,744} 276,946
Total Special Revenue. . . ... $ 478,114 § 2,246,124 § 2,522,567 $ 3,764,779 § 7.084,918 $15927,309 $ (226,883)% 3,537,896
Debt Service Funds ........... 3,651,914 2,431,244 2,811,524 1,048,923 1,803,693 13,367,844 (25,021} 1,023,902
Capltal Project Funds ., . ....... 84,410,215 107,673,236 _158292 122 _ 112,838,113 -0 - 37.439.831 _(65,695.662) 47,142,451 I
Total Governmental Funds. . . $102,042,395 $124,539,801 $177,664,926 § 133,550,657 $14,841,931 § 90,635,551 $(63,972,596) $§ 69,578,061
Proprietary Fund Type(3)
Enterprise Funds:
Waterworks(4) .......... ... $ 16,628,339 316,666,968 $ 17,638,968 $ 18,439,075 $ -0 - § 8738735 $12,341,908 § 30,780,983
Sewerage(4)............... 3,888,659 3,796,276 3,630,150 3,879,344 -0 - 1,252,398 3,463,140 7,342,484
Wholesale Water(d). ... ...... 759,400 733,552 564,303 451,575 -0 - 1,709,155 402,060 853,635
North Malne Water and Sewer(4) {110,109} (421,839) (274,344) (235,976) -0 - 2,152,967 1,293,336 1,057,360
Commuter Parking Lot. ... .. .. 194.545 240,595 275,773 335,762 -0 - 300,717 1,057,825 1,393,587
Total Enterprise Funds . . ... $ 21,360,834 $ 21,015,552 $ 21,834,850 § 22,869,780 $ -0 - § 14154872 $18,558,269 § 41,428,049'
Intemal Service Funds:
Municipal Equipment Flepair/5) . $§ 144,454 $ 225598 § 234,417 § 88807 % -0- § 981,950 § (192,596) % (103,789)
Insurance . ................ 3,847,080 3,733,331 3,552,484 3,538,071 -0 - 4,602,504 {319,657) 3,218,414
Capltal Equipmint Fleplace -0 - -0 - -0 - -0 - -0 - 1,620,648 8,928,887 8,928,887
Total Intemal Setvice Funds . $ 3,991,534 $ 3058920 § 3.786.901 § 3626 878 % -0- $ 7205102 3 8416634 § 12043512
Total Proprietary Funds . . . .. $ 25,352,368 $ 24,974,481 § 25,621,751 § 26,496,658 § -0 - $ 21,360,074 $26,974,803 $ 53,471,561
Fiduciary Fund Types(6}:
Escrow Depost(Z){(10). .. ....... $ 124782 § 149,161 $ 149,167 $ 145398 § -0~ B 61,946 $  (18,054)% 127,344
Depasit(10). . ... ..o ivea.s 36,080 46,407 53,706 55,827 -0 - 3,609 3,609 59,436
Police Dept Special Account(10) . . 14,847 25,665 26,088 26,185 -0 - 35,638 20,232 46,417
PolicePension . .............. 25,629,270 29,157,175 25,380,377 31,060,435 -0 - 4,411,070 3,133,604 34,194,129
Flrefighters' Penslon . ... ....... 36,747,303 _ 40 166,889 41,979,483 44 326,852 =0 - 2,789,108 863,210 45 190,062
Total Fiduciary Funds . ..... $ 62,652,282 $ 65,545,297 § 71,588,815 § 75,614,687 § -0 - § 7,301,371 § 4,002,691 § ?9.617.388.
Component Unit:
Library Fund(8@) .. ............. § 1875071 % 1650683 8 1339278 % 984541 § 4328029 3 4867361 § 418821 § 1,403,462
Total Alf Funds{Memo Only). . $191,822,116 $220,750,262 $276,114,770 §236,646,553 $19,165.960 §$124,164,357 $(32,576,081) $204,070,472
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Cash and Investments at Dec. 31: 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Gengral Fund . ................ $ 10,356,035 % 12,206,729 § 14,756,756 § 15,032,003 $ 14,186,090
Special Revenue Funds ......... 1,877,420 2,160,449 2,535,726 3,858,758 8,107,921
Debt Service Funds ,........... 3,653,017 2,427,557 2,813,024 1,063,992 1,076,796

Capital Project Funds:
Capital Equip Replacement(77) .. $ 7,846,046 $ 8796785 $ B,715538 $ 9,771,515 $ 10,047,720

GNASProject .. ............. 59,529,350 66,510,250 106,108,151 B1,584,185 17,708,070
Village Permanent. . .......... 17,015,699 26,651,077 36,253,716 26,147,121 27,159,563
Capital Projects. . ............ 6,595,418 8,864,515 11,129,659 10,679,464 9,555,392
AlOther . ... . ... ..ot 2,395,735 6.517,597 6,862,198 5,039,754 4,564,800
Total Capital Projects ....... $ 93,182,248 $117,340,224 $169,069,262 $133,222,039 § 69,035,554
Proprietary Funds . ., .. ....... .. 9,563,407 8,943,705 8,693,237 9,292,124 8,563,935
Flduciary Funds(€) ............. 66,375,530 73,801,575 75,493,448 60,288,132 78,727,243
Component Unit - Library Fund(8) .. 1,988,069 1,550,164 1.525,360 1,189.433 1.582.815

Total Cashand Investments(8) $166,995,726 $218,439,403 $274,886,613 $244,016,481 $181,280,354

Notes: 1. These condensed financial statements for the years ending December 31, 1899-2003 have been prepared from the full Comprehensive
Annual Financlal Reports of the Village of Glenview and do not purport to be complele audits. The full financial statements, together
with the report of the Village's independent accountants, ara available upon request. The accounting policies of the Village conform to
generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental units. The accounts of the Village aré organized on the basis
of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The various funds are grouped Into the three
broad categories of Govermnmental Funds, Fidugiary Funds and Propristary Funds. Within the Governmental Funds are the Gengral
Fund (the general operation fund) which is used to account for all financial resources except those required o be accounted for in
another fund; Special Revenue Funds which are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally resincted
to expaenditures for specifled purposes,; Debf Service Funds; and Capital Project Funds. ANl governmental funds and expendable trust
funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus which has only current assels and current liabilitias on
the balance sheet and operating statements present increases and decreases in net current assets. All propristary funds and pension
trust funds are accounted for on a fiow of economic resources measurement focus With all assets and fiabillties associated with the
operation of these funds included on the balance sheets and fund equity segregated into contributed capital and retained earmings—
operating statements present increases and decreases in net lotal assels. The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for all
Govemmenial Fund Typas and Expendable Trust Funds (In the Fiduciary Funds category). All remaining Fiduciary Funds (Pension
Trust Funds) and Proprietary Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. The “Report of independent Audiiors" in
the Village's general purpose financial stalemenis for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 included the following language
(comparable "clean” opinions were included in the Village's 1935-2002 audits shown in this table):

“Iin our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Village of Glenview, illinois, as of December 31, 2003, and the results of its aperations and the cash fiows of lts proprietary fund
types for the year then ended and conformlty with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Also, in our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements referred to above present fairy, in all material
respacts, the financial position of each of the individual funds of the Village of Glenview, iflinois, as of December 31, 2003, and
tha results of agperations of such funds and the cash flows of Individual proprietary funds for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.”

2. The Glenview Naval Air Station Redevelopment Fund was created 1o account for the resources and expsnditures incurred in the

development of the Gleniview Naval Air Base land which was vacated by the Navy on Sepfember 8, 1995.

3. The amounts shown as fund balances for the Proprielary Funds are retained eamings (exciudes contributed capital) and the amounts

shown as "excess revenues” represent the change in retained earnings. "Total revenuas® represent oparating revenues.

4. Prior to fiscal year 1993, the Village maintained two Waterworks Funds {o provide accounting for the eastem postion of the Village
(Waterworks East) and the westem portion and the applicable unincorporated area adjacent 1o the westem border of the Village
(Watarworks West) that is served by the water system (retained eamings at December 31, 1992 wera $3,009,087 for Waterworks East
and $5,537,828 for Waterworks West). The two accounting funds were set up in 1877 when the two private waler companies serving
the applicable western portion and unincorporated areas were, at the request of the rasidents, acquired by the Village for the purpdse
of up-grading the water quality in that arsa by replacing well water supply with Lake Michigan water supply that had been available to
eas! Glenview since 1337. It was delermined that the cos! of amortizing the debt applicable lo the acquisition of the two privale water
companies and constructing the necessary lransmission main, storage and west system up-grading would be paid for by the customers
of the west system. The use of differing rates continued uniit 1992 when a unified rate structure waa put in place and the use of a
minimum charge for water usage was efiminated. The two funds were combined in fiscal year 1993. A separale Sewarage Fund was
created in fiscal year 1986 lo account for the funds necessary fo provide sanitary sewer service lo both the incorporated and
unincorporated arsas served by the Village. Prior fo 1986, these funds were accounted for in the two Waterworks Funds. The
Wholesaie Water Fund accounts for the sale of water fo Citizens Uillity Company for its service area outside the Village of Glanview.
The North Maine Water and Sewer Fund accounts for all financial activity related to the Village providing water and sewer service to an
unincorporaled area southwest of the Village (formerly served by the North Suburban Public Utilities Company).

The Municipal Equipment Repair Fund is used to account for the costs of repairing and maintaining afl Village vehicles.

Excludes the Village's Agency Funds.

The Escrow Deposit Fund is used to account for monies on deposit with the Viflage~the cost of public improvements lo be dedicated lo

the Village must be escrowed with the Village and as payments are requirad for satisfactory work complated, monies are released fo

contractors. inlerest eamed on the escrowed deposits is retained by the Village and annually transferred 1o the General Fund.

8. Beginning in fiscal year 1993, the Library Fund was presented in the audit as a component unit of the Village because the Library
possesses fhe characteristics of a legally separate government (separatefy elected 7-member board which annually determines s
budget and tax levy).

8. The Vilage's Cash Control and Investment Policy was originally adopled on February 21, 1983 and was revised on March 15, 1985,
January 16, 1990, March 19, 1996 and January 8, 2000.

10. As of January 1, 2003, the Escrow Deposit, Deposit, and Police Dapartment Special Account Funds were classified as Speciaf

Revenue Funds.
11. As of January 1, 2003, the Capital Equipmen! Replacement Fund was ciassified as an Intemal Service Fund.
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12.  As of January 1, 2003 (for fiscal years ending December 31, 2003 and thereafter), the Village adopled the provisions of: Govemmenial
Accounting Slandards Board Staterments No. 34, Baslc Financial Staternents — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — For Slata
and Local Govemments; Staternent No. 37, Basic Flnancial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — For State and
Local Govemments: Omnibus; Statement No. 38, Cerain Financial Statement Note Disclasures; and GASB Interpretation No. 6,
Recognilion and Measurement of Certaln Liabillties and Expenditures in Govemmental Fund Financial Statermemts. This resulted in a
change in the Village’s method of accounting and a change in the formai and content of the basic financial statements including notes fo
financial staternents. As a result, direct comparisons with certain rasults from prior fiscal years are not passible,

CAPITAL ASSETS (Note)
(At December 31, 2003)
Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated: Capital Assets Not Being Depraciated:
Land .....coii i i $_ 500000 ] 3 T« D | 302 B51
Total Capital Assets Not Being Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated . . ................ $ 500,000 Depradiated . . ...........cvuu. $ 302,B51
Capltal Assets Being Depraciatad: Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Improverments .. ........ $ 4,116,038 Buildings and Improvements. . . ......... $ 446,954
Equiprnent and Vehicles ... .. ... e 14,044 Water system . ... .. e e 36,546,679
Total Capital Assets Being Sewersystem ..............c..cu. .y 9,701,126
Depreclated ................. $ 4,130,132 Equipment and Vehicles . ..._......... 2,857,396
Less: Accumulated Depreciation . ..... {1.792,861) Total Capital Assets Being
Total Capital Assets Being Depreclated ................. $ 49552155
Depreciated, Net . ............. § 2.337.271 Less: Accumulated Depreciation . ... .. (15.175,524)
Total Capital Assets Being
Govemmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 2.837.21 Depreciated, Net. . ............ $ 34,376,631
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net .. § 34,679,482

Note: Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastruciure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and simitar items),
are reported in the applicable govermnmenial or business-type activities colurmns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by the Village as assels with an initial, individual cost in excess of $50,000 and an estimated useftd life in excess
of one year. Such assels ara recorded at hislorical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or consiructed. Donated capital
assels are recordsd at estimated fafr markel value af the date of donation. The cast of normal malnfenance and repairs thal do not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Major outfays for capital assets and improvements
ar@ capitalized as profects are constructed. Intsrest incurrsd during the construction phase of capital assals of business-type
activities Is included as part of the capitalized value of the assels constructed. Capital assels are depreciated using the stralght-iine
method over the estimaled usefu lives.
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